CITY COUNCIL REPORT



Meeting Date:

July 5, 2017

General Plan Element:

Economic Vitality

General Plan Goal:

Utilize redevelopment and revitalization efforts to sustain

economic well-being

ACTION

Construction Manager at Risk Construction-Phase Services Contract for Scottsdale Airport
Terminal Area Redevelopment Project. Adopt Resolution 10777 authorizing contract 2017-060COS with JE Dunn Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of \$14,193,166.00 along with a City
Project Contingency of \$440,927 for a total contract price of \$14,634,093.00 to conduct
construction phase services as Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the first phase of the
Terminal Area Redevelopment Project at Scottsdale Airport.

BACKGROUND

The purpose of this action is to award a CMAR construction-phase services contract 2017-060-COS, guaranteed maximum price (GMP #1) with JE Dunn Construction.

The proposed redevelopment will make better use of the terminal area space that includes two existing City owned buildings. The first building, the Terminal building, was constructed in the 1960's and is currently configured for commercial airline service with a large boarding area which will never be used for this purpose. The second building, the Aviation Business Center, was constructed in the 1970's and was originally configured for the Federal Aviation Administration. The building is divided into many small, 100 square foot, offices which are difficult to lease.

The City Council adopted Airport Master Plan has identified a better use of the terminal area and a need for hangar and supporting office space for medium to large corporate jets. This new development will fulfill these needs by demolishing two existing buildings and replacing them with two large executive hangars, a modern, energy efficient office building, and a new parking lot.

This first phase of the project will involve the construction of the site utilities, parking lot and the two hangar complexes.

15708673v1			
Action Taken			

City Council Report | Award of Construction Contract # 2017-060-COS

GMP #2 which will be brought forward to the City Council for consideration at a future date, will be used to construct the new Aviation Business Center Building.

The Aviation Department decided to use a CMAR contract to construct this project. Typically, CMARs are best used for complex construction such as buildings. The advantage to the CMAR method is that the contractor is brought into the process early during design. They are able to make value engineering recommendations, conduct constructability reviews, and they are able to solicit bids from pre-qualified contractors. This typically reduces the chances of having large change orders due to incomplete or poor designs and also allows for shorter completion schedules.

ANALYSIS & ASSESSMENT

Recent Staff Action

In order to select JE Dunn Construction as the most qualified company, staff prepared and publicly advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for a CMAR to provide pre-construction phase services for the Scottsdale Airport Terminal Area Redevelopment Project. Twelve responses were received by the deadline of May 3, 2016. A panel of six conducted interviews, evaluated the responses, and chose JE Dunn Construction as the CMAR for this project.

JE Dunn Construction subsequently completed those services by soliciting subcontractor bids and then provided the GMP to the City.

Community Involvement

The public was provided the opportunity to comment on this proposed action at the Airport Advisory Commission meeting on June 19, 2017. No negative comments were received and the Airport Advisory Commission unanimously approved a motion to recommend to the City Council adoption of Resolution 10777, authorizing contract 2017-060-COS.

RESOURCE IMPACTS

Available funding

Funding is currently available in CIP Project Center AB59, Airport Terminal Redevelopment Project.

In May 2017, \$23.5 million of Municipal Property Corporation (MPC) long term debt was issued to finance the redevelopment project; due to a favorable market, an additional \$1.7 million of premium was received. A total of \$25.2 million is available for project funding. Aviation rates and fees will be used for debt service obligations. New long term contracts for leased hangars, restaurant facilities and office space along with fixed tenant rents, miscellaneous rental agreements and permit fees are forecasted to sufficiently cover debt service requirements.

City Council Report | Award of Construction Contract # 2017-060-COS

Staffing, Workload Impact

No additional City staff or overtime will be needed to administer this project.

Maintenance Requirements

The City will have no maintenance requirements for the two hangar complexes. The tenant will be responsible for all maintenance of those facilities after the 1-year warranty period expires. The maintenance requirements for the new parking facility will be equal to or less than what is currently needed for the existing parking lot.

Future Budget Implications

For GMP #1, the City will not have any additional budget requirements due to the fact that the lease for the hangars and ancillary support spaces require the tenant to maintain those facilities for the duration of the lease.

OPTIONS & STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Recommended Approach

Adopt Resolution 10777 authorizing contract 2017-060-COS, GMP #1, with JE Dunn Construction, in the amount of \$14,634,093.00 to conduct construction phase services as Construction Manager at Risk for the Terminal Area Redevelopment Project at Scottsdale Airport.

Proposed Next Steps

If the contract is authorized by City Council, the project is expected to start by the end of July, 2017 and will be completed within 13 months.

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT(S)

Aviation Department

STAFF CONTACTS (S)

Chris Read, Airport Operations Manager, Aviation Department

APPROVED BY

Gary P. Mascaro, C.M., C.A.E., Aviation Director

(480) 312-7735, gmascaro@scottsdaleaz.gov

Date

City	Council Report	Award of	Construction	Contract #	2017-060-COS
------	----------------	----------	--------------	------------	--------------

Jeff Nichols, City Treasurer

Date

(480) 312-2364, jenichols@scottsdaleaz.gov

ATTACHMENTS

- 1. Resolution No. 10777
- 2. Contract No. 2017-060-COS
- 3. Project Area Map

15692011v1

RESOLUTION NO. 10777

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCOTTSDALE, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK PHASE ONE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 2017-060-COS WITH JE DUNN CONSTRUCTION, FOR THE AIRPORT TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Scottsdale desires to redevelop the terminal area at the Scottsdale Airport; and

WHEREAS, JE Dunn Construction, has offered to provide to the City the requisite construction phase services necessary to redevelop the terminal area; now, therefore

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Scottsdale as follows:

Section 1. That the Mayor of the City of Scottsdale is hereby authorized and directed to execute Contract No. 2017-060-COS, with a guaranteed maximum price of fourteen million one hundred ninety-three thousand one hundred sixty-six dollars (\$14,193,166) along with a City Project Contingency of four hundred forty thousand nine hundred twenty-seven dollars (\$440,927) for a total project price of fourteen million six hundred thirty-four thousand and ninety-three dollars (\$14,634,093) between the City and JE Dunn Construction, for Phase One construction manager at risk construction services in connection with the terminal area redevelopment project at Scottsdale Airport.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Scottsdale, Arizona, this 5th day of July, 2017.

ATTEST:	an Arizona municipal corporation
Carolyn Jagger, City Clerk	W. J. "Jim" Lane, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bruce Washburn, City Attorney

By: Eric Anderson, Senior Assistant City Attorney

15704204v1



CITY OF SCOTTSDALE

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

PROJECT NAME: TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT

PROJECT NO: AB59

CONTRACT NO: 2017-060-COS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

RECITALS	1
ARTICLE 1 – CMAR'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	1
ARTICLE 2 – CITY'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	15
ARTICLE 3 – CONTRACT TIME	18
ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT PRICE	21
ARTICLE 5 – CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PRICE AND TIME	24
ARTICLE 6 – PROCEDURE FOR PAYMENT	30
ARTICLE 7 – CLAIMS AND DISPUTES	36
ARTICLE 8 - SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION	40
ARTICLE 9 – INSURANCE AND BONDS	42
ARTICLE 10 – INDEMNIFICATION	50
ARTICLE 11 – GENERAL PROVISIONS	52
ARTICLE 12 – DEFINITIONS	64
EXHIBIT A - PROJECT DESCRIPTION SCOPE OF WORK	
EXHIBIT B - PRECONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT	
EXHIBIT C - CMAR'S GMP PROPOSAL	
EXHIBIT D - STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND	
EXHIBIT E - STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND	
AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS	
CONTRACTOR'S NOTICE OF FINAL PAY ESTIMATE	
CONTRACTOR'S NOTICE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE	

CITY OF SCOTTSDALE

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

PROJECT NO: AB59 CONTRACT NO: 2017-060-COS

THIS CONTRACT, entered into this <u>5th</u> day of <u>July</u>, 2017, between the City of Scottsdale, an Arizona municipal corporation (the "CITY") and JE Dunn Construction Company, a Missouri Corporation ("CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK" or "CMAR").

RECITALS

- A. The Mayor of the City of Scottsdale is authorized by provisions of the City Charter to execute contracts for construction services.
- B. The City intends to construct the TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT Project, located in the terminal area redevelopment project at Scottsdale Airport, and referred to in this Contract as the "Project".
- C. The CMAR has represented to the City the ability to provide construction management services and to construct the Project. Based on this representation the City desires to engage JE Dunn Construction Company, to provide these services and construct the Project.
- D. Contract No. 2016-091-COS has been executed previously between the City and CMAR for Preconstruction Design services. Those services may continue during the duration of this Contract.

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the parties' mutual covenants and conditions, the City and the CMAR agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 – CMAR'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1.0 The CMAR shall furnish any and all labor, materials, equipment, transportation, utilities, services and facilities required to perform all Work for the construction of the Project located in the terminal area redevelopment project at Scottsdale Airport, and to completely construct the Project and install the material in the Project for the City. The Work shall conform to the Project Contract Documents as modified. The services may not be required to be performed in the sequence in which they are described.

1.1. GENERAL SERVICES

1.1.1. The CMAR's Representative must be reasonably available to the City and have the necessary expertise and experience required to supervise the Work. CMAR's Representative must communicate regularly with the City but not less than once a week and must be vested with the authority to act on behalf of the CMAR. The CMAR's Representative may be replaced only with the written consent of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If a change of CMAR Representative becomes necessary as a result of separation from employment, City will not

PROJECT NO: AB59

unreasonably withhold consent to designation of new CMAR Representative.

1.2. **GOVERNMENT APPROVALS AND PERMITS**

- 1.2.1. Unless otherwise provided, the CMAR shall apply for and obtain or assist the City and the Design Team in obtaining all necessary permits, approvals and licenses required for the prosecution of the Work from any government or quasi-government entity having jurisdiction over the The CMAR is specifically required to obtain the necessary environmental permits or file the necessary environmental notices. Any environmental permits and licenses will be paid by the City in accordance with the provisions of Article 2.4.
- 1.2.2. Copies of all necessary permits and notices must be provided to the Construction Coordinator and/or Contract Administrator before starting the permitted activity. This provision is not an assumption by the City of an obligation of any kind for violation of the permit or notice requirements.
- 1.2.3. The CMAR shall apply for and obtain permit(s) for building and demolition, but the fees will be paid by the City in accordance with Article 2.4. The CMAR will also obtain any necessary regulatory or permitting. reviews for grading and drainage, water, sewer and landscaping, but the fees for the permitting will be paid by the City in accordance with Article 2.4.
- 1.2.4. The CMAR shall be responsible for all other review and permit fees not specifically listed in Article 2.4 below or as qualified in Exhibit B.
- 1.2.5. The CMAR shall be responsible for the cost of construction-related water meter(s), water and sewer taps, fire lines and taps, and all water bills on the project meters until Substantial Completion of the Project. Arrangement for construction water is the CMAR's responsibility. Construction water does not include "test water" required to complete new water line pressure tests.
- 1.2.6. For purposes of this Contract, the Maricopa Association of Governments (M.A.G.) Standard Specification 107.12 is modified to read as follows: The CMAR, at its own expense, shall be responsible for the acquisition of any necessary temporary easements for construction purposes, storage, maintenance, and refuge haul-off as indicated upon the plans, which are required in addition to existing easements and right-of-way secured by the City.

PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 1.3.

- 1.3.1. Before beginning any Work, the Contract Administrator will schedule a Preconstruction Conference. The City and the CMAR have entered into a separate written contract for Design Phase services establishing the fee the City will pay the CMAR for all Preconstruction services
- **1.3.2.** The purpose of this conference is to establish a working relationship between the CMAR, utility firms, and various City agencies and staff. The

agenda will include critical elements of the work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major lump sum items, CMAR Payment Requests and processing, coordination with the involved utility firms and/or utility companies (i.e. APS, SRP, SW Gas, etc.), and emergency telephone numbers for all representatives involved in the construction.

- **1.3.3.** The construction Notice to Proceed (NTP) date will be established at the Preconstruction conference.
- 1.3.4. The CMAR will provide a Baseline Project Schedule indicating duration, manpower and equipment resources required to complete all major work activities. The City and Design Team will review and comment on the Baseline Project Schedule. The CMAR and Construction Coordinator and Contract Administrator shall agree on the Baseline Project Schedule. No Work will begin until the City accepts the Baseline Project Schedule.
- 1.3.5. The CMAR will submit a Schedule of Values based on the work and bids accepted from selected Subcontractors. These general line item Values must reflect the actual labor time, materials, profit and overhead for the Work.
- **1.3.6.** CMAR attendees must include CMAR's Representative who is authorized to sign documents on behalf of the firm, the job superintendent, and the CMAR's safety officer.

1.4. CONTROL OF THE WORK

- 1.4.1. The CMAR must properly secure and protect all finished or partially finished Work, and is responsible for the Work until the entire contract is completed and accepted by the City. Any payment for completed portions of the Work will not release the CMAR from this responsibility; however, it must turn over the entire Work in full accordance with these specifications before final settlement will be made. In case of suspension of the Work for any cause, the CMAR shall take all precautions as necessary to prevent damage to the Project and shall erect any necessary temporary structures, signs, or other facilities at no cost to the City; unless such suspension is caused by the City or a party for which the City is responsible, in such case CMAR's compensation shall be equitably adjusted for such costs.
- **1.4.2.** After all Work under the Contract is completed, the CMAR shall remove all loose concrete, lumber, wire, reinforcing, debris and other materials not included in the final Work from the Project site.
- 1.4.3. The CMAR must provide, through itself or Subcontractors, the necessary supervision, labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, temporary utilities and other temporary facilities to permit the CMAR to complete the Work consistent with the Contract Documents, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of the City or a separate contractor.
- **1.4.4.** The CMAR must perform all construction activities efficiently and with the requisite expertise, skill and competence to satisfy the requirements of

- the Contract Documents. The CMAR shall at all times exercise complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences and techniques of construction.
- **1.4.5.** Survey stakes and marks required for the completion of the construction shown on the plans and as described in the specifications shall be furnished by the CMAR.
- **1.4.6.** Where the Contract Documents require that a particular product be installed and applied by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, the CMAR shall ensure that the Subcontractor employed for this work is approved.
- 1.4.7. The CMAR shall take field measurements and verify field conditions and shall carefully compare all field measurements and conditions and other information known to the CMAR with the Contract Documents before commencing activities. Errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered shall be immediately reported to the City.
- **1.4.8.** Before commencing Work, the CMAR and each Subcontractor must verify measurements at the Site. To the extent of differences discovered between actual dimensions and the dimensions indicated on the drawings; differences that are discovered shall be submitted to the City for resolution before proceeding with the Work and to the extent resulting in additional costs, CMAR shall be entitled to a Change Order.
- **1.4.9.** The CMAR shall accurately establish, maintain and protect all building and construction grades, lines, levels, and bench marks. This work shall be performed or supervised by an Arizona licensed Surveyor.
- 1.4.10. Any person employed by the CMAR or any Subcontractor who, in the opinion of the City, does not perform his work in a proper, skillful and safe manner or is intemperate or disorderly shall, at the written request of the City, be removed from the Work by the CMAR or the Subcontractor employing the person, and shall not be employed again in any portion of Work without the written approval of the City.
- 1.4.11. The CMAR assumes responsibility for the proper performance of the Work of Subcontractors and any acts and omissions in connection with this performance. Nothing in the Contract Documents creates any legal or contractual relationship between the City and any Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any third-party beneficiary rights.
- 1.4.12. The CMAR must coordinate the activities of all Subcontractors. If the City performs other work on the Project or at the Site with separate contractors under the City's control, the CMAR agrees to reasonably cooperate and coordinate its activities with those of the separate contractors so that the Project can be completed in an orderly and coordinated manner without unreasonable disruption.
- **1.4.13.** On a daily basis, the CMAR shall prepare a Contractor's Daily Report. The City's Construction Coordinator or its Capital Project Management

(CPM) Inspector will provide a sample report format to the CMAR. The report must detail the activities that occurred during the course of the day, all equipment utilized and the number of hours operated, and all personnel on the site inclusive of Subcontractors. The Daily Reports shall be submitted to the Construction Inspector a daily basis, unless otherwise arranged. Failure to provide Daily Reports as arranged or requested above may result in the retention of monthly progress payments until the Reports are brought up to date.

1.4.14. In the event of noncompliance with this Article 1.4, the City may require the CMAR to stop or suspend the construction in whole or in part. Any suspension, due to the CMAR's noncompliance will not be considered a basis for an increase in the Contract Price or extension of the Contract Time.

1.5. CONTROL OF THE WORK SITE

- 1.5.1. Throughout all phases of construction, including any suspension of the Work, the CMAR must keep the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction waste to permit the performance of its construction services efficiently, safely and without interfering with the use of adjacent land areas. Upon Substantial Completion of the Work, or a portion of the Work, the CMAR will remove all debris, trash, construction wastes, materials, equipment, machinery and tools arising from the Work to permit the City to occupy the Project or a portion of the Project for its intended use.
- 1.5.2. Dust Control. The CMAR will take appropriate steps, procedures or means required to prevent abnormal dust conditions due to its construction operations. The dust control measures shall be maintained at all times during construction of the Project to the satisfaction of the City, in accordance with the requirements of the Maricopa County Health Department Air Pollution Control Regulations and City of Scottsdale Supplement to M.A.G. Standard Specifications together with applicable provisions of Federal and State Law.
- 1.5.3. Dust Control Coordinator. At any City construction site with greater than 1 acre of disturbed surface area, subject to a permit issued by a Control Officer requiring control of PM-10 emissions from dust generating operations, the CMAR must have at all times at the Site, at least one Dust Control Coordinator trained in accordance with the requirements of A.R.S. §49-474.05 during primary dust generating operations that is related to the purposes for which the Dust Control Permit was issued. The Dust Control Coordinator must have full authority to ensure that dust control measures are implemented at the Site, including authority to conduct inspections, deploy dust suppression resources, and modify or shutdown activities as needed to control dust. The Dust Control Coordinator must be responsible for managing dust prevention and dust control on the Site. including the use of leaf blowers and street sweeping equipment. The Dust Control Coordinator must have a valid Dust Training Certification Identification Card readily accessible on the Site while acting as the Dust Control Coordinator.

The requirements described in the above paragraph do not apply if CMAR can establish to the satisfaction of the Contract Manager that one of the exemptions under A.R.S. §49-474.05 applies.

A Subcontractor who is engaged in dust generating operations at a Site that is subject to a Dust Control Permit issued by a County Control Officer and that requires the control of PM-10 emissions from dust generating operations must register with the County Control Officer. The Subcontractor must have its registration number readily accessible on the Site while conducting any dust generating operations.

- 1.5.4. If applicable, the CMAR shall maintain ADA and ANSI accessibility requirements during construction activities in an occupied building or facility. ADA and ANSI accessibility requirements must include, but not be limited to, parking, building access, entrances, exits, restrooms, areas of refuge, and emergency exit paths of travel. The CMAR shall coordinate all Work to minimize disruption to building occupants and facilities.
- 1.5.5. Only materials and equipment used directly in the Work may be brought to and stored on the Site by the CMAR. When equipment is no longer required for the Work, it shall be removed promptly from the Site. Protection of construction materials and equipment stored at the Site from weather, theft, damage and all other adversity is solely the responsibility of the CMAR.
- 1.5.6. The CMAR shall dispose of all waste products and debris including excess earth material that will not be incorporated into the Work under this Contract at an appropriate off-site location in conformance with applicable Federal, State and Local Regulations. Notwithstanding the above, removal of waste products and debris that contain hazardous materials preexisting on the site will be treated in accordance with section 1.10.13.
- 1.5.7. The CMAR shall supervise and direct the Work. The CMAR is solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction. The CMAR shall employ and maintain on the Work a qualified supervisor or superintendent who has been designated in writing by the CMAR as the CMAR's representative at the Site. The representative must have full authority to act on behalf of the CMAR and all communications given to the representative will be as binding as if given to the CMAR. The representative, or an able substitute preapproved by the Contract Administrator, must be present on the Site at all times as required to perform adequate supervision and coordination of the Work. Where appropriate, all Provisions of M.A.G., Section 105.5, will be applicable.
- **1.5.8.** In the event of abnormal weather conditions, such as windstorms, rainstorms, etc., the CMAR shall immediately inspect the Work Site and take all necessary actions to insure public access and safety are maintained.

PROJECT No: AB59

1.5.9. Damage to Property at the Site. The CMAR is responsible for any damage or loss to property at the Site, except to the extent caused by the acts or omissions of the City or its representatives, employees or agents, or any other party for which the City is responsible, and not covered by insurance. The costs and expenses incurred by the CMAR for which it is responsible under this Article may be paid as a Cost of the Work to the extent that the costs and expenses are in excess of or are not covered by required insurance, and to the extent of any deductibles, but shall not increase the GMP.

- 1.5.10. Damage to Property of Others. The CMAR shall avoid damage, as a result of the CMAR's operations, to existing sidewalks, curbs, streets, alleys, pavements, utilities, adjacent property, the work of Separate Contractors and the property of the City. The CMAR shall repair any damage caused by the operations of the CMAR, which costs will be paid as a Cost of the Work to the extent that these costs and expenses are in excess of or are not covered by required insurance, and to the extent of any deductible, but shall not increase the GMP.
- 1.5.11. Failure of CMAR to Repair Damage. If the CMAR fails to begin the repair of damage to property as required in Articles 1.5.9, and 1.5.10 and diligently pursue the repair, the City will give the CMAR 10-days written notice to begin repairs. If the CMAR fails to begin the repairs within the 10-day notice period, the City may elect to repair the damages with its own forces and to deduct from payments due or to become due to the CMAR amounts paid or incurred by the City in correcting the damage.

1.6. SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES

- **1.6.1.** When required, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are to be forwarded to the Construction Coordinator and the Contract Administrator for reviewing order to demonstrate the way in which the CMAR proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.
- 1.6.2. The CMAR shall review, approve, and verify that all submittals meet the requirements of the Contract documents. Six (6) hard copies of each Shop Drawing, Product Data, Sample, and similar submittal required by the Contract Documents will be delivered to the Construction Coordinator for review. Electronic submittals in lieu of hard copies may be acceptable if approved by the Construction Coordinator. Submittals made by the CMAR, which are not required by the Contract Documents, may be returned without action.
- **1.6.3.** The CMAR shall perform no portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals until the necessary submittal has been approved by the City. All Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals. The CMAR shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals by the City's approval.
- **1.6.4.** By approving, verifying and submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the CMAR represents that the CMAR has

determined and verified materials, field measurements and related field construction criteria, or will do so, and has checked and coordinated the information contained within the submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.

- **1.6.5.** The CMAR shall not be relieved of responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by City approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the CMAR has specifically informed the City in writing of the deviation at the time of submittal and the City has given written approval to the specific deviation.
- **1.6.6.** Informational submittals upon which the City is not expected to take responsive action may be identified as informational submittals in the Contract Documents.
- **1.6.7.** When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems or equipment is required by the Contract Documents, the City shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of the calculations and certifications.

1.7. QUALITY CONTROL, TESTING AND INSPECTION

- 1.7.1. Inspection. The City's Construction Inspectors may be stationed on the Work Site. The Construction Inspector may direct the attention of the CMAR and report to the Construction Coordinator the progress of the Work, the manner in which Work is being performed, and whether it appears that material furnished or Work performed by the CMAR fails to fulfill the requirements of the specifications and this Contract, but the inspection will not relieve the CMAR from any obligation to furnish acceptable materials or to provide completed construction that is in compliance with the Contract Documents in every particular. The Construction Inspector's purpose is to assist the City's Representative and should not be confused with an inspector associated with a City regulatory agency or with an inspector from a City Laboratory under Article 1.8.
- 1.7.2. In case of any dispute arising between the Construction Coordinator or Construction Inspector and the CMAR as to material furnished or the manner of performing the Work, the Construction Inspector will have the authority to reject materials or suspend the Work until the question and issue can be referred to and decided by the City. Construction Inspectors are not authorized to revoke, alter, enlarge, relax, or release any requirements of the specifications. Construction Inspectors will in no case act as or be considered as foremen or supervisors or perform other duties for the CMAR.
- 1.7.3. The furnishing of any services for the City shall not make the City responsible for or give the City control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequenced procedures or for safety precautions or programs or responsibility for the CMAR's failure to perform the Work in accordance with Contract Documents.

MATERIALS TESTING 1.8.

- **1.8.1.** All materials used in the Work must be new and unused, unless otherwise noted, and must meet all quality requirements of the Contract Documents.
- **1.8.2.** All construction materials to be used on the Work or incorporated into the Work, equipment, plant, tools, appliances or methods to be used in the Work may be subject to the inspection and approval or rejection of the City. Any material rejected by the City will be removed immediately and replaced in a manner acceptable to the City.
- 1.8.3. The procedures and methods used to sample and test material will be determined by the City. Unless otherwise specified, samples and tests will be made in accordance with the following: The City of Scottsdale Material Testing Manual and the standard methods of American Association of State and Highway Transportation Off Roads (AASHTO) or American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM), and Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) supplements.
- 1.8.4. The City may select a pre-qualified Independent Testing Laboratory and will pay for initial City Acceptance Testing.
 - 1. When the first and subsequent tests indicate noncompliance with the Contract Documents, the cost associated with that noncompliance will be paid for by the CMAR.
 - 2. When the first and subsequent tests indicate noncompliance with the Contract Documents, all retesting will be performed by the same testing agency.
- 1.8.5. The CMAR shall cooperate with the selected testing laboratory and all others responsible for testing and inspecting the Work and will provide them access to the Work at all times upon reasonable notice.
- 1.8.6. All soils and materials testing will be performed by the City's designated agent and payment for testing shall be paid for as outlined below. In coordination with the CMAR, the City will order tests and distribute test results for all construction areas. The City will distribute test results within 24 hours of receipt.
 - 1. The City will pay for soils or materials testing through a separate contract.
 - 2. Other material testing: When the first or subsequent tests indicate noncompliance with the Contract Documents, the cost associated with that noncompliance will be paid by the CMAR. The City's Project Contingency cannot be utilized for the cost of re-testing.

PROJECT No: AB59

- 1.8.7. At the option of the City, materials may be approved at the source of supply before delivery is started.
- 1.8.8. Code compliance testing and inspections required by codes or ordinances or by a plan approval authority, and which are made by a

legally constituted authority are the responsibility of and will be paid by the CMAR, unless otherwise provided.

1.8.9. The CMAR's quality control testing and inspections are the sole responsibility of the CMAR.

1.9 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS/AS-BUILTS

- **1.9.1** During the construction period, the CMAR shall maintain at the jobsite a set of blueline or blackline prints of the Construction Document drawings and Shop Drawings for Project Record Document purposes.
 - The CMAR shall mark these drawings to indicate the actual installation where the installation varies appreciably from the original Construction Documents. The CMAR shall give particular attention to information on concealed elements which are difficult to identify or measure and record later. Items required to be marked include but are not limited to:

Dimensional changes to the drawings
Revisions to details shown on drawings
Depths of foundations below first floor
Locations and depths of underground utilities
Revisions to routing of piping and conduits
Revisions to electrical circuitry
Actual equipment locations
Duct size and routing
Locations of concealed internal utilities
Changes made by Contract Amendments
Details not on original Contract Drawings

- 2. The CMAR shall mark completely and accurately Project Record Drawing prints of Construction Documents or Shop Drawings, whichever is the most capable of indicating the actual physical condition. Where Shop Drawings are marked they shall include cross-reference locations on the Construction Documents.
- 3. The CMAR will mark Project Record Drawings electronically.
- 4. The CMAR will note Requests for Information (RFI) Numbers, Architects' Supplemental Information (ASI) Numbers and Contract Amendment Proposal Numbers, etc., as required to identify the source of the change to the Construction Documents.
- 5. The CMAR will at the time of providing the notice as set forth in section 6.5 submit Project Record Drawing prints and Shop Drawings to the City or its representative for review and comment.

PROJECT No: AB59

- 1.9.2 Immediately upon receipt of the reviewed Project Record Drawings from the City, the CMAR shall correct any deficiencies or omissions to the drawings and prepare the following for resubmission to the City:
 - 1. A complete set of PDF electronic files of all Project Record Drawings clearly marked with "As-Built Document." Files shall be named consistent with the Plan Set Index.
 - The PDF files will be converted from the CADD files of the Construction Documents provided by the City under Article 2.0 accurately bearing the CMAR's As-Built information from the Project Record Drawings in red and delivered to the City as part of the Project closeout.
 - 3. The CMAR's original redlined mark-up prints of the Project Record Drawings.

1.10 PROJECT SAFETY

1.10.1 CMAR Safety Program. All Work will be performed in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, statutes, rules and regulations including Arizona Division of Occupational Safety and Health (ADOSH) policies and procedures. The CMAR is required to attend a City safety briefing session at the Preconstruction meeting.

The CMAR will provide a safe jobsite and work environment for the safety and health of employees and members of the general public and will comply with all legal requirements including but not limited to the following:

Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA)
Electrical Safe Work Practices Standards
OSHA Personal Protective Equipment Standards
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 70E Standard for
Electrical Safety in the Workplace
OSHA Fall Protection Standards
OSHA Confined Space Entry

All other applicable requirements of OSHA and local codes and agencies having jurisdiction.

Contractors that violate these rules and regulations may be subject to job shutdown or removal from City facilities.

- **1.10.2** City Safety Rules and Expectations. Risk Management Division makes available a packet that contains the City's OSHA compliance guidelines, emergency evacuation, the City's safety and health plan, and other safety information.
- **1.10.3 Contractor Safety Tailgate Meetings**. The CMAR shall conduct tailgate safety meetings regularly to ensure that safety on the job is given priority.

The Sign-in sheet of the tailgate meeting must be given to the City Inspector within 48 hours after the meeting.

- 1.10.4 Accident/Injury Procedure. The CMAR shall contact the Contract Administrator and Risk Management Department within 24 hours of the occurrence of an accident or injury arising out of the CMAR's work under this Contract.
- 1.10.5 Unsafe Acts. The CMAR employees shall abate or remedy any unsafe act or condition which may arise in the course of CMAR's work under this Contract.
- 1.10.6 Safety Audits. The City reserves the right to conduct safety audits at the job site and stop unsafe acts at any time. In addition, the Construction Coordinator or CPM Inspector must be notified should any OSHA inspections occur at a City job site.
- 1.10.7 The CMAR recognizes the importance of performing the Work in a safe manner so as to prevent damage, injury or loss to (i) all individuals at the Site, whether working or visiting, (ii) the Work, including materials and equipment incorporated into the Work or stored on-site or off-site, and (iii) all other property at the Site or adjacent to the Site.
- 1.10.8 The CMAR assumes responsibility for implementing, monitoring, and documenting all safety precautions and programs related to the performance of the Work.
- 1.10.9 The CMAR will, before beginning construction, designate a Safety Representative with the necessary qualifications and experience to supervise the implementation and monitoring of all safety precautions and programs related to the Work. Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents, the CMAR's Safety Representative will be an individual stationed at the Site who may have responsibilities on the Project in addition to safety.
- **1.10.10** The CMAR must provide OSHA 300A Summary log information including total recordable cases, total case rates, and lost workday incident rates for the past 2 calendar years. This information can be compared to Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) rates to determine whether a contractor has below average or above average accident/injury rates. Bureau of Labor Statistics information can be obtained through Risk Management. The Safety Representative will make routine daily inspections of the Site and will hold weekly safety meetings with CMAR's personnel, Subcontractors and others as applicable.
- 1.10.11 The CMAR will immediately report in writing any safety-related injury, loss, damage or accident arising from the Work to the Contract Administrator and, to the extent mandated by Legal Requirements, to all government or quasigovernmental authorities having jurisdiction over safety-related matters involving the Project or the Work.

PROJECT No: AB59

1.10.12 The CMAR's responsibility for safety under this Article 1.10 is not intended in any way to relieve Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of their own contractual and legal obligations and responsibility for (i) complying with all Legal Requirements, including those related to health and safety matters, and (ii) taking all necessary measures to implement and monitor all safety precautions and programs to guard against injury, losses, damages or accidents resulting from their performance of the Work.

1.10.13 The CMAR and Subcontractors must provide Material Safety Data Sheets for all substances that are delivered to the City, that come under the OSHA Toxic and Hazardous Substances – Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200, Hazard Communication (reference Occupational Safety and Health Standards, Subpart Z Toxic and Hazardous Substances – Hazardous Communication Standard).

The CMAR and all Subcontractors using chemicals on City property must use only the safest chemicals, with the least harmful ingredients. These chemicals must be approved for use by a City of Scottsdale representative before bringing them to the Project Site.

The CMAR and all Subcontractors will make every attempt to apply approved chemicals with highly volatile organic compounds, outside of normal working hours. Adequate ventilation must be used at all times during the application of these approved chemicals.

In conjunction with the Occupational Safety and Health Standards, Subpart Z Toxic and Hazardous Substances – Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200 Hazard Communication, the CMAR and Subcontractors are informed of the presence of (or possible presence of) chemicals in the area where the work requested will be performed. All selected Contractors shall contact the City for specific information relative to the type of chemicals present and location of appropriate Material Safety Data Sheets.

Unless included in the Work, if the CMAR encounters on-site material which it reasonably believes to contain asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or other hazardous substances or materials regulated by Public Health Laws, it will immediately stop work and report the condition to the City.

If the material is found to contain asbestos, PCB or other hazardous substances or materials regulated by Public Health Laws, the CMAR will not resume work in the affected area until the material has been abated or rendered harmless. The CMAR and the City may agree, in writing, to continue work in non-affected areas on-site. If CMAR sustains damages or delay arising out of unforeseen hazardous materials, an extension of Contract Time and additional costs shall be recoverable by CMAR in accordance with Article 5.

1.11 WARRANTY

- **1.11.1** The provisions of M.A.G. Section 108.8 shall apply with the following additional requirements:
 - Should the CMAR fail to begin repairs or corrective work within 14 calendar days after receipt of written notice from the City, the City may perform the necessary work and the CMAR shall reimburse the City for the actual cost.
 - 2. The warranty period on any part of the work repaired or replaced is extended for a period of 1 year from the date of the repair or replacement.
 - 3. This warranty does not apply to damage caused by normal wear and tear or by any acts or circumstances beyond the CMAR's control.
- **1.11.2** Intentionally Omitted.
- **1.11.3** Nothing in this warranty is intended to limit any manufacturer's warranty which provides the City with greater warranty rights than provided in this Article 1.11 or the Contract Documents. The CMAR will provide the City with all manufacturers' warranties upon Substantial Completion.
- **1.11.4** The CMAR's warranty obligation will be the maximum allowed by the Arizona Registrar of Contractors

1.12 CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK

- 1.12.1 The CMAR agrees to correct any Work that is found to not be in conformance with the Contract Documents, including that part of the Work subject to Article 1.11 above within a period of 1 year from the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or any portion of the Work, or within any longer period, to the extent required by the Contract Documents. A Progress Payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the City will not constitute acceptance of the Work if not in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 1.12.2 The CMAR will take meaningful steps to begin correction of nonconforming Work subject to this Article 1.12. These measures include but are not limited to timely correction of the Work. If the CMAR fails to initiate necessary measures for this Work within 7 days of receipt of written notice from the City, the City, in addition to any other remedies provided under the Contract Documents, may provide CMAR with written notice that the City will commence correction of the nonconforming Work with its own forces.
- **1.12.3** If the City does perform this corrective Work, the CMAR will be responsible for all reasonable costs incurred by the City in performing this correction.

- 1.12.4 The CMAR will immediately respond to any nonconforming Work that creates an emergency.
- 1.12.5 The 1 year period referenced in this Article 1.12 applies only to the CMAR's obligation to correct nonconforming Work and is not intended to be a period of limitations for any other rights or remedies the City may have regarding the CMAR's other obligations under the Contract Documents.

SUBCONTRACTOR AND MAJOR SUPPLIER SELECTION 1.13

The Parties have entered into a Preconstruction Agreement that contains Subcontractor and Major Supplier provisions. In selecting Subcontractors and Major Suppliers, the CMAR will comply with the provisions in the Preconstruction Agreement. [For horizontal construction, as defined in A.R.S. §34-101(15), the CMAR must self perform not less than 45% of the Work as required by A.R.S. §34-605(G).]

ARTICLE 2 - CITY'S SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.0 **DUTY TO COOPERATE**. The City will, throughout the performance of the Work. cooperate with the CMAR and perform its responsibilities, obligations and services in a timely manner to facilitate the CMAR's timely and efficient performance of the Work and so as not to delay or interfere with the CMAR's performance of its obligations under the Contract Documents. The City will furnish the CMAR a CADD file or other format if available at no cost of the Construction Documents acceptable to the City and CMAR, at no cost to the CMAR.

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR/CONSTRUCTION COORDINATOR 2.1

- 2.1.1 The Construction Coordinator will provide City-supplied information and approvals in a timely manner to permit the CMAR to fulfill its obligations under the Contract Documents.
- 2.1.2 The Construction Coordinator will promptly notify the CMAR if the Construction Coordinator observes any failure on the part of the CMAR to fulfill its contractual obligations, including any default or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the drawings and specifications.
- The City may contract separately with a Design Team, and may include partial construction administration services for the Project. A copy of the Design Team's contract will be furnished to the CMAR.
- 2.1.4 Both the Contract Administrator and Construction Coordinator are responsible for construction administration of the Work. The Design Team, if authorized by the City, will review, approve or take other appropriate action upon the CMAR's submittals such as Shop Drawings. Product Data and Samples in accordance with Article 1.6. CMAR may communicate directly with the Design Professional but shall include the Contract Administrator in any such communication.
- 2.1.5 The Contract Administrator or Construction Coordinator and the Design Professional will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Design

Professional's response to these requests will be made to the City with reasonable promptness as to not delay the Work. The City will timely forward the response to the CMAR.

- **2.1.6** The Contract Administrator has the authority to authorize Change Orders up to the limits permitted by the Procurement Code.
- 2.2 CITY'S SEPARATE CONTRACTORS. The City is responsible for all Work performed on the Project or at the Site by separate contractors under the City's control. The City will contractually require its separate contractors to cooperate with, and coordinate their activities, so as not to interfere with the CMAR, in order to enable timely completion of Work consistent with the Contract Documents. The CMAR agrees to reasonably cooperate and coordinate its activities with those of the separate contractors so that the Project can be completed in an orderly and coordinated manner without unreasonable disruption.
- **2.3 PERMIT REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS**. Approving specific parts of the Building Permit is the responsibility of the City's Capital Project Management. The City of Scottsdale Plan Review Division issues Certificates of Occupancy.
- 2.4 FURNISHING OF SERVICES AND INFORMATION
 - **2.4.1** The City will be responsible for the payment or waiver of the following:
 - 1. City review and permit(s) fees for building, encroachment, and demolition permits.
 - 2. City review fees for grading and drainage, water, sewer and landscaping.
 - 3. Utility design fees for permanent services.
 - 4. Obtaining Clean Water Act Nationwide 404 Permits.
 - 5. City Development Fees.
 - 6. Environmental Permits and Licenses.
 - 2.4.2 Unless expressly stated to the contrary in the Contract Documents, the City will provide (at its own cost and expense) to the CMAR, the following information:
 - 1. To the extent available, surveys describing the property, boundaries, topography and reference points for use during construction, including existing service and utility lines;
 - 2. Temporary and permanent easements, zoning and other requirements and encumbrances affecting land use, or necessary to permit the proper design and construction of the Project and enable the CMAR to perform the Work;
 - 3. A legal description and Street or Physical address of the Site;

- 4. To the extent available, as-built record and historical drawings of any existing structures at the Site;
- 5. To the extent available, environmental studies, environmental impact statements, reports and impact statements describing the environmental conditions (including hazardous materials) known to exist at the site:
- 6. Upon request, the City will provide all City standards and guidelines, supplementary conditions and special provisions that will be included in the plans and specifications for the Project. These may include but are not limited to: disposal of surplus material, special security provisions, investigation of underground facilities, traffic controls and regulations, special quality control testing and termite treatment requirements.

The City will secure and execute all necessary Contracts with adjacent land or property owners that are reasonably necessary to enable the CMAR to perform the construction.

If CMAR believes that additional surveys, easements or other information are necessary to perform the Work, CMAR will notify the Contract Administrator. Contract Administrator will then consult with the Design Team to determine if such documents or information is necessary. If the City concurs, the City will provide the requested information. If the Parties cannot agree whether additional documents or information is necessary, the dispute will be resolved in accordance with Article 7.

2.5 PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

- 2.5.1 The City may contract separately with one or more Technical Consultants to provide project management assistance to the Project. The Technical Consultant's contract as well as the contracts of other firms hired by the City will be furnished to the CMAR upon request. The CMAR will not have any right however, to limit or restrict any contract modifications that are mutually acceptable to the City and Technical Consultant.
- 2.5.2 The Technical Consultant services will augment the City staffing resources to effectively manage the objectives of the City and this Project with the goal of managing the key project communication, cost and time parameters.
- **2.5.3** The Technical Consultant may provide preprogramming and design standards.
- 2.5.4 The City may contract with the Technical Consultant to provide some or all of the following services during the performance of the construction:
 - Conduct Site visits at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the completed construction and to determine in general if the construction

PROJECT NO: AB59

is being performed in accordance with the Construction Documents. The Technical Consultant will keep the City informed of progress of the construction and will endeavor to quard the City against defects and deficiencies in the construction. The Technical Consultant may have authority to reject construction which does not conform to the Construction Documents and to require additional inspection or testing of the construction in accordance with Articles 1.7 and 1.8:

- 2. Review and recommend approval of the CMAR's Payment Requests;
- 3. Interpret matters concerning performance under and requirements of the Contract Documents on written request of the City. The Technical Consultant's response to these requests will be made with reasonable promptness and within any time limits agreed upon;
- 4. Analyze, recommend and assist in negotiations of Change Orders;
- 5. Conduct inspections to determine Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance:
- 6. Receive and forward to the City for the City's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract Documents and assembled by the CMAR.

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT TIME

3.0 CONTRACT TIME

- 3.1 Contract Time will be 297 days as indicated in the Notice to Proceed (NTP).
 - 3.1.1 Contract Completion Time will start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with Substantial Completion. The City will issue a NTP letter establishing the mutually agreed upon NTP date for this Contract.
 - 3.1.2 Failure on the part of the CMAR to adhere to the Project Schedule may be the basis for termination of this Contract by the City.
 - Each GMP amendment to this Contract will establish a separate construction NTP date, Performance Period and Substantial Completion date for the entire Project. The Performance Period(s) may be sequential or may run concurrently.
 - 3.1.4 The CMAR agrees to commence performance of the Work and achieve Performance Periods and the Contract Time.
 - 3.1.5 All of the times stated in this Article 3 are subject to adjustment in accordance with Article 5.

3.2 **PUNCH LIST PREPARATION**

At the time CMAR seeks Substantial Completion, the CMAR, in conjunction with the City, will prepare a comprehensive list of Punch List items, which the City may edit and supplement. The CMAR will proceed promptly to complete and

correct the Punch List items. Failure to include an item on the Punch List does not alter the responsibility of the CMAR to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Warranties required by the Contract Documents will not commence until the date of Substantial Completion unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. Seven (7) days before the City issues its Final Acceptance Letter, the CMAR will deliver to the City all Operation and Maintenance Manuals necessary for the City to assume responsibility for the operation and maintenance of that portion of the Work.

3.3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

If Substantial Completion is not attained within the Contract Time as adjusted, the City will suffer damages which are difficult to determine and accurately specify. The CMAR agrees that if Substantial Completion is not attained within the Contract Time as adjusted, the CMAR will pay as liquidated damages the amounts specified in Section 108.9 of the M.A.G. Standard Specifications, incorporated in this Contract by reference. These amounts may be adjusted downward depending on the anticipated or actual loss caused by the delay and the difficulty of proof of loss.

- 3.4 PROJECT SCHEDULE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. Each approved GMP proposal shall include a Project Schedule as prescribed in Article 3.5 with a Critical Path Method diagram construction schedule that will indicate the path of critical activities and establish the Performance Period encompassed by the GMP. The CMAR will maintain the construction schedule throughout the construction.
 - 3.4.1 The Project Schedule will be initially submitted at the start of this Contract as required by Article 1 and updated and maintained throughout the Contract Services.
 - 3.4.2 The Project Schedule will be revised as required by conditions and progress of the Contract Services, but any revisions will not relieve the CMAR of its obligations to complete the Contract Services within the Contract Time(s), as these dates may be adjusted in accordance with the Contract Documents.
 - **3.4.3** An Updated Project Schedule will be submitted monthly to the City at least 5 days before the CMAR's monthly Payment Request.
 - 1. The CMAR will provide the City with a monthly status report with each Project Schedule detailing the progress of Construction, including whether (i) the construction is proceeding according to schedule, (ii) discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities exist in the Contract Documents that require resolution, and (iii) other items that require resolution so as not to jeopardize the ability to complete the construction as presented in the GMP and within the Contract Time(s). The monthly status report and Project schedule shall be provided electronically to the Contract Administrator and Construction Coordinator no later than the 25th of each month.
 - 2. With each Project Schedule submitted, the CMAR will include a transmittal letter including the following:

- Description of problem tasks (referenced to field instructions, Requests for Information (RFIs), Change Order or claim numbers) as appropriate.
- Current and anticipated delays not resolved by approved change orders, including:
 - Cause of the delay.
 - Corrective action and schedule adjustments to correct the delay.
 - o Known or potential impact of the delay on other activities, milestones, and the date of Substantial Completion.
 - o Changes in construction sequence.
- Pending items and status including but not limited to:
 - o Pending Change Orders.
 - o Time extension requests.
 - Other items.
- Substantial Completion date status:
 - o If ahead of schedule, the number of days ahead.
 - o If behind schedule, the number of days behind.
- Other project or scheduling concerns.
- 3.4.4 The City's review of and response to the Project Schedule is only for general conformance with the scheduling requirements of the Contract Documents. The review will not relieve the CMAR from compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents or be construed as relieving the CMAR of its complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences and techniques for executing the Contract Services.
- 3.4.5 The Project Schedule will include a Critical Path Method diagram schedule that will show the sequence of activities, the interdependence of each activity and indicate the path of critical activities.

The Critical Path Method diagram schedule will be in days and indicate duration, earliest and latest start and finish dates, and will be presented in a time scaled graphical format for the Project as a whole.

- The activities making up the schedule will be of sufficient detail to assure that adequate planning has been done for proper execution of the Work and provide an appropriate basis for monitoring and evaluating the progress of the Work.
- 2. The Critical Path Method diagram construction schedule will be based upon activities which would coincide with the Schedule of Values.
- 3. All submittals associated with each Work activity and the review time for each submittal shall be set forth in a separate Submittal schedule to be approved by the Contract Administrator.

- 4. The schedule will show milestones, including milestones for Cityfurnished information, and will include activities for City-furnished equipment and furniture, if any, when those activities are interrelated with the CMAR's activities.
- 5. The schedule will include a critical path activity that reflects anticipated weather delay during the performance of the Contract. The duration will reflect the average climatic range and usual industrial conditions prevailing in the locality of the Site. Weather data will be based on information provided by the National Weather Service or other approved source.

3.5 **COST ESTIMATES**

Provisions pertaining to cost estimates may be found in the GMP Proposal, attached as Exhibit C.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN 3.6

As a part of the Preconstruction Agreement, the City has required the CMAR to prepare a Construction Management Plan.

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT PRICE

4.0 The CMAR agrees to do all Work for the construction of the improvements and to completely construct the improvements and install the material, as called for by this Contract, free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever to the extent the City makes payment therefore, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated in the GMP, as may be amended from time to time, as set forth in the GMP Proposal, attached as Exhibit C, and by reference made a part of this Contract.

CONTRACT PRICE 4.1

- **4.1.1** The Contract Price is a not to exceed price of \$14,193,166, as stated in detail in the GMP Proposal, attached as Exhibit C.
- 4.1.2 The Contract Price is the sum of the GMP plus the City's Project Contingency defined in Article 12 and is subject to adjustments made in accordance with Article 5.
- **4.1.3** The CMAR is responsible for payment of all State of Arizona and City of Scottsdale transaction privilege (sales) taxes due on construction income. whether or not these taxes are specifically separated in the bid amount.
- **4.1.4** Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contract Price is to include all sales, use, consumer and other taxes throughout the term of this Contract, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect.
- 4.1.5 Any Contingencies and Allowances as agreed upon between the City and the CMAR will be in the GMP.

4.2 CMAR CONSTRUCTION FEE FOR CHANGES. If the GMP requires an adjustment due to changes in the Work, the cost of any changes will be determined under Article 5.

4.3 GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP)

- 4.3.1 At the end of the design phase or at a time mutually agreed upon by the City and CMAR, and as a part of the Work done under the Preconstruction Agreement, the City will request the CMAR to provide a GMP, or series of GMP's if the CMAR determines phased construction would be in the City's best interest. The approved GMP(s) is set forth in Exhibit C, attached to this Contract.
- 4.3.2 The CMAR guarantees to bring the completion of the construction of the Project within the GMP or the CMAR alone will be required to pay the difference between the cost incurred and the GMP. Unused savings including unused General Conditions and Construction Contingency will be retained by the City at the completion of the Project.
- **4.3.3** The GMP is composed of the Total Cost of the Work (Direct Costs), the CMAR's Indirect Costs and the Construction Contingency which are defined as:
 - 1. The Total Cost of the Work (Direct Costs) is the negotiated hard construction work as defined in Article I as performed by the CMAR through self-performed work, Sub-Contractors' work and any other third party as set forth in Article 1.13 requirements for selection of subcontractors and major suppliers. It includes the costs for all direct labor, materials and equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including transportation and storage thereof, materials testing prescribed in Article 1.8, equipment rentals and warranty of the work.
 - 2. The CMAR's Indirect Costs include the costs for General Conditions, Payment and Performance Bonds, Insurance, the CMAR Construction Fee and Taxes.
 - a. The General Conditions amount is an amount added to the GMP for Project supervision and other indirect costs according to construction terms as defined in Article 12, to the extent incurred by CMAR. These costs are not reflected in other GMP items. Costs may include, but are not limited to, the following: Project Manager, Superintendent, Full-time General Foremen, workers not included as direct labor costs engaged in Project support (e.g. loading/unloading, clean-up, etc.) and administrative office personnel at the rates set forth in the accepted GMP Proposal. Other costs may include: temporary office, relocation costs, travel costs, permit, licenses, and fees not specifically listed in Article 2.4 or as qualified in Exhibit B, fencing and other facilities, office supplies, office equipment, minor expenses, utilities, vehicles, fuel, sanitary facilities, and telephone and internet services at the site.

- b. Payment Bonds, Performance Bonds and Insurance are actual costs applied to the GMP at the rates detailed in the GMP Proposal.
- c. The CMAR Construction Fee is a negotiated fixed fee that is proposed by the CMAR for management and related services of the CMAR Project. The fee includes the CMAR's profit and home office overhead, whether at the CMAR's principal or branch offices, including the administrative costs, home office costs and any limitations or exclusions that may be included in the General Conditions.
- d. Taxes include all sales, use, consumer and other taxes which are legally enacted when negotiations of the GMP were concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect. Taxes are actual costs.
- 3. The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes a Construction Contingency which shall be available for CMAR's use, subject to City's prior review and approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, for legitimate unforeseen construction expenses which cannot be included in a Change Order. Unforeseen construction expenses include, but are not limited to: 1) overtime premiums and other costs due to schedule acceleration and/or compression; 2) labor and material cost overruns; 3) gaps in scope of Subcontracts or CMAR self-performed work; 4) additional weather protection costs not previously budgeted; 5) additional temporary facility or temporary heating costs not previously budgeted; (6) errors in estimated quantities and 7) additional Subcontractor and/or supplier costs not included within Subcontracts, Material & Equipment Contracts and/or Purchase Orders. The amount of the Construction Contingency is established in Exhibit C.
- **4.3.4** The GMP is cumulative. The amount of any GMP amendment will be negotiated separately and will reflect the CMAR's risk from that point forward in the Project.
- **4.4 GMP PROPOSAL**. The GMP Proposal will be that as provided in the Preconstruction Agreement, and the GMP Proposal is attached as Exhibit C.
- **4.5 GMP APPROVAL**. The approval of the GMP will be in accordance with the provisions of the Preconstruction Agreement, attached to this Contract as Exhibit B.

4.6 TAX/LICENSE

The CMAR must secure and maintain, during the life of the Contract, State of Arizona and City of Scottsdale Transaction Privilege (sales) Tax Licenses.

To obtain a State of Arizona Privilege (Sales) Tax License Application, please go to the following website: http://www.revenue.state.az.us/ADOR Forms/70-79/74-4002 fillable.pdf

To obtain a City of Scottsdale Transaction (Sales) Tax License Application, please go to the following website: http://www.scottsdaleaz.gov/taxes/salestax.asp

4.7 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PRIVILEGE (SALES) TAXES

The CMAR is responsible for payment of all applicable State of Arizona and City of Scottsdale transaction privilege (sales) taxes due on construction income whether or not these taxes are specifically separated in the bid amount. The taxes are to be reported on either a progressive billing (accrual) basis or cash receipts basis, depending on the method chosen at the time application was made for the Privilege (sales) Tax License.

City Privilege (sales) tax exemptions/deductions may be applicable to certain projects. The CMAR is advised to consider this as it prepares its bid. Please review, in detail, Sections 415, 465, and 110 of the Scottsdale Revised City Code, Appendix C to determine if exemptions/ deductions are applicable. For tax guidance, please reference the City Code and other tax resources at the following website: http://www.scottsdaleaz.gov/taxes/

The State of Arizona has similar exemptions, please reference A.R.S. Title 42 at the following website:

http://www.azleg.state.az.us/ArizonaRevisedStatutes.asp?Title=42

For further questions regarding tax treatment, please contact the Arizona Department of Revenue at (602) 255-2060 and the City of Scottsdale Tax & Audit Section at (480) 312-2625.

ARTICLE 5 - CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT PRICE AND TIME

5.0 DELAYS TO THE WORK

5.1 DELAYS TO THE WORK

- **5.1.1** Delays may be compensable, concurrent, excusable or non-excusable as defined in Article 12.
- 5.1.2 If the CMAR is delayed in the performance of the Work due to acts, omissions, conditions, events, or circumstances beyond its control and due to no fault of its own or those for whom CMAR is responsible, the Contract Times for performance may be reasonably extended by Change Order.
- 5.1.3 The CMAR must request an increase in the Contract Time by written notice including an estimate of the probable effect of delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay only one request is necessary.
 - 1. Written notice shall be submitted within 14 days of the commencement of the cause of the delay.

- 2. If written notice is submitted more than 14 days after commencement of the cause of the delay, the period of delay will be considered to commence 14 days before the giving of the notice.
- 5.1.4 By way of example and subject to Article 11.7, events that may entitle the CMAR to an extension of the Contract Time include acts or omissions of the City or anyone under the City's control (including separate contractors), Acts of God or public enemy, changes in the Work, Differing Site Conditions, Hazardous Conditions, unusual delay in transportation, and excessive inclement weather conditions not reasonably anticipated, war or other national emergency making performance temporarily impossible or illegal, or strikes or labor disputes not brought about by any act or omission of the CMAR.
- 5.1.5 If excessive inclement weather conditions are the basis for a request for additional Contract Time, these requests will be documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time and could not have been reasonably anticipated, and that weather conditions had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.
- 5.1.6 Permitting the CMAR to proceed to complete any Work, or any part of the Work, after the date to which the time of completion may have been extended, will in no way act as a waiver on the part of the City of any of its legal rights under this Contract.
- 5.1.7 In the event that the CMAR claims damages as a result of expenses incurred by a delay for which the City is responsible, the CMAR and the City will negotiate to determine the amount of these damages as set forth in Arizona Revised Statutes Section 34-609 (E).
 - 1. In addition to the CMAR's right to a time extension for those events stated in this Article 5.0, the CMAR may also be entitled to an appropriate adjustment of the Contract Price provided, however, that the Contract Price will not be adjusted for those events described in this Article that are beyond the control of both the CMAR and the City, including the events of war, acts of terrorism, floods, labor disputes (but not including CMAR's own work force and those of its subcontractors), earthquakes, epidemics, excessive inclement weather conditions not reasonably anticipated, and other acts of God.

5.2 DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

- **5.2.1** If the CMAR encounters a Differing Site Condition(s), the CMAR may be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s) to the extent the CMAR's cost or time of performance are the direct result of a Differing Site Condition(s).
- 5.2.2 Upon encountering a Differing Site Condition, the CMAR shall notify the Construction Coordinator or Contract Administrator of the condition within 7 days after the condition has been encountered. The CMAR must also give the City an opportunity to observe such condition before disturbing or altering the Differing Site conditions. The failure of the CMAR to give

PROJECT No: AB59

written notice and make the Claim as required by this Article and Article 7.1.5 shall constitute a waiver by the CMAR of any rights arising out of or relating to such Differing Site Conditions. (Final costs must be submitted within thirty (30) days after notice is received by the City, unless extended by written agreement of the parties.)

5.2.3 In order for the CMAR to obtain any additional compensation or time extensions for Differing Site Conditions, the CMAR must demonstrate that it encountered a material difference at the Site, as defined in Article 12, that required it to expend additional cost or time. The CMAR must also establish that it actually and reasonably relied upon the representations found in the Contract Documents concerning the Site conditions.

5.3 APPLICATION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME

- **5.3.1** If performance by the CMAR is delayed for a reason set forth in Article 5, the CMAR may be allowed a reasonable extension of time in conformance with this Article. Before the CMAR's time extension request may be considered, the CMAR shall notify the City of the condition which allegedly has caused or is causing the delay, and shall submit a written application to the City identifying:
 - 1. Liquidated damage assessment rate, as specified in the Contract;
 - 2. Original total GMP;
 - 3. The original Contract start date and completion date;
 - 4. Any previous time extensions granted (number and duration);
 - 5. The extension of time requested.
- **5.3.2** In addition, the application for extension of time shall set forth in detail;
 - 1. The nature of each alleged cause of delay in completing the Work; and
 - 2. The date upon which each such cause of delay began and ended and the number of dates attributable to each such cause; and
 - 3. A statement that the CMAR waives all claims relating to the requested relief except for those delineated in the application, and the particulars of any claims which the CMAR does not agree to waive. For time extensions for Substantial Completion and final completion payments, the application shall include a detailed statement of the dollar amounts of each claim item reserved; and
 - 4. A statement indicating the CMAR's understanding that the time extension is granted only for purposes of permitting continuation of Contract performance and payment for Work performed and that the City retains its

right to conduct an investigation and assess liquidated damages off the adjusted date of completion, if any, as appropriate in the future.

5.4 ERRORS, DISCREPANCIES AND OMISSIONS

- **5.4.1** If the CMAR discovers errors, discrepancies or omissions in the Contract Documents, it shall promptly notify the Construction Coordinator and request clarification. The CMAR shall also provide a copy of any notice to the City Contract Administrator.
- **5.4.2** If the CMAR proceeds with the Work affected by any known errors, discrepancies or omissions, without providing notice thereof, it does so at its own risk. Adjustments involving these circumstances made by the CMAR before clarification by the Design Professional are at the CMAR's risk.
- **5.5 CITY REQUESTED CHANGE IN WORK.** The City reserves the right to make, at any time during the progress of the Work, any alterations as may be found necessary or desirable.
 - 5.5.1 Any alterations and changes shall not invalidate this Contract nor release the surety, and the CMAR agrees to perform the Work as altered, the same as if it had been a part of the original Contract Documents. The CMAR shall notify the surety of the changes and will assure that the alterations and changes are adequately covered by the surety bond.
 - **5.5.2** Upon receipt of a request for Change in Work, the CMAR will prepare a proposal in significant detail according to Article 5.11. The CMAR's proposal will include a detailed description of any schedule impact.
 - **5.5.3** Legal Requirements. The Contract Price or Contract Times will be adjusted to compensate the CMAR for the effects of any changes in the Legal Requirements enacted after the date of the Contract or the date of the GMP, affecting the performance of the Work.

5.6 CHANGE ORDERS

- 5.6.1 In accordance with Scottsdale Revised Code Section 2-200 and any related Rules and Procedures, the City and the CMAR will negotiate in good faith and as expeditiously as possible the appropriate adjustments for a Change Order. Upon reaching an agreement, the parties will prepare and execute an appropriate Change Order reflecting the terms of the adjustment. The change in the Work may or may not include an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 5.6.2 All changes in the Work authorized by Change Orders will be performed under the conditions of the Contract Documents. The decision to issue Change Orders rests solely with the City and any decision to issue a Change Order must be promptly complied with by the CMAR, subject to the provisions of Article 5.4. The Contract Administrator has the authority to authorize Change Orders up to the limits permitted by the City's Procurement Code.

5.6.3 The execution of a Change Order by the CMAR shall constitute conclusive evidence of the CMAR's agreement to the ordered changes in work, this Contract as thus amended, the Contract Price, and the time for performance by the CMAR. The CMAR, by executing the Change Order, waives and forever releases any claim against the City for any additional time or compensation for matters relating to, arising out of, or resulting from the work included within or affected by the executed Change Order of which the CMAR knew or should have known, unless specifically reserved therein.

5.6.4 The City may direct the CMAR to perform additional work under the contract by issuing a Construction Change Directive when time and/or cost of the work is not in agreement between the City and the CMAR. During the pendency of a resolution of the price and/or time adjustments between the City and the CMAR, the CMAR may not suspend work and will comply with the Construction Change Directive.

5.7 UNILATERAL DETERMINATION OF COSTS PENDING DISPUTE

If no mutual agreement occurs between the City and the CMAR, the CMAR shall proceed with the Work, and its interim compensation shall be derived by determining the reasonable actual costs incurred or savings achieved, resulting from revisions to the Work. Such reasonable actual costs or savings shall include a component for direct job site overhead and profit, but shall not include home-office overhead or other indirect costs and components. The calculation of actual costs shall conform to Article 5.11.2. Any such costs or savings shall be documented in the format and with such content and detail as the City requires. The CMAR shall promptly submit such documentation and other backup as the City may require in evaluating the actual costs incurred. Such dispute in compensation shall then be subject to Article 5.11.4.

5.8 ADDITIONAL CHANGE ORDER COST REQUIREMENTS

The cost of all items listed in the CMAR's proposal shall be directly related to the Change Order. Indirect costs not specifically related to the Change Order shall not be considered. The CMAR's or Subcontractor's submittals shall include the Total Cost of Work, including, but not limited to, cost of materials, sales tax, cost of all transport, equipment costs and any direct Project expenses. CMAR's or Subcontractor's Direct Labor Costs shall be limited to the hourly rate of directly involved workmen, employer contributions toward CMAR standard benefits, pensions, unemployment or social security (if any), and employer costs for paid sick and annual leave. CMAR's or Subcontractor's Indirect Costs may include, but are not limited to, CMAR's overhead and profit, license fees, insurance and bond premiums, supervision, and vehicle expense directly related to the Change order. Additional CMAR's Construction Fee associated with a change order shall be limited to Five and One Half percent (5.5%) of the sum of the Total Cost of Work and Indirect Costs associated with the changed work.

5.9 LIMITATION OF COMPENSABLE ITEMS

5.9.1 For Change Orders, the total cost or credit to the City shall be based on the additional Total Cost of Work items and Indirect Costs, including CMAR's

overhead and profit, incurred as a result of the change based on the rate schedules set forth in the accepted GMP proposal.

5.10 FIELD ORDERS

- 5.10.1 The City has authority to initiate Field Orders that do not materially and adversely affect the Work, including the design, quality, performance and workmanship required by the Contract Documents. Field Orders will be imposed by written order and will be binding on the City and the CMAR. The CMAR will carry out any written orders promptly.
- 5.10.2 Field Orders will not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times unless or until an adjustment becomes a Change Order.
- **5.10.3** The CMAR may make minor changes in the Work, but the CMAR will promptly inform the City, in writing, of any changes and record the changes, if appropriate, on the Project Record Documents maintained by the CMAR.

5.11 CONTRACT PRICE ADJUSTMENTS

- **5.11.1** The increase or decrease in the Total Cost of Work items and Indirect Costs resulting from a Change in the Work will be determined by the following methods::
 - 1. Using direct cost labor and material rates established in the contract documents as a basis of the adjustment;
 - 2. Using prices found in the Contract or as subsequently agreed between the parties;
 - 3. A mutually agreed upon accepted, lump sum, properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit evaluation by the City; and
 - 4. A negotiated CMAR Construction Fee for the Change in Work, subject to the percentage limitation established in Article 5.8 for CMAR's overhead and profit.
- **5.11.2** If an increase or decrease cannot be agreed to as set forth in this Article 5, the cost of the Change of the Work will be determined by the reasonable expense and savings in the performance of the Work resulting from the change, including a reasonable CMAR Construction Fee, according to the methodology used to establish the contract GMP. The CMAR will maintain a documented. itemized accounting evidencing the expenses and savings associated with the changes.
- 5.11.3 If unit prices are included in the Contract Documents or are subsequently agreed to by the parties, but application of the unit prices will cause substantial inequity to the City or the CMAR because of differences in the character or quantity of the unit items as originally contemplated, the unit prices will be equitably adjusted.

PROJECT No: AB59

- **5.11.4** If the City and the CMAR disagree upon the amount to be paid, whether the CMAR is entitled to be paid for any services required by the City or if there other disagreements over the Scope of Work, proposed changes to the Work, or the time required to complete the Work, the City and the CMAR will resolve the dispute in accordance with Article 7.
 - 1. As part of the negotiation process, the CMAR will furnish the City with a good faith estimate of the costs to perform the disputed services or the additional time required in accordance with the City's interpretations.
 - 2. If the parties are unable to agree and the City expects the CMAR to perform the services in accordance with the City's interpretations, the CMAR will proceed to perform the disputed services, conditioned upon the City issuing a written order to the CMAR (i) directing the CMAR to proceed and (ii) specifying the City's interpretation of the services that are to be performed.
- **5.11.5** Emergencies. In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, or both, the CMAR will act, at its discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in the Contract Price or Contract Time(s), or both, resulting from emergency work will be determined as provided in this Article 5.

ARTICLE 6 - PROCEDURE FOR PAYMENT

6.0 For and in consideration of the faithful performance of the Work required to be done by the Contract Documents, and in accordance with the directions of the City and to its satisfaction, the City agrees to pay the CMAR the Cost of the Work performed and any applicable Indirect Costs, but no more than the GMP as adjusted by any Change Orders and provisions of Article 5. Payment for the specific Work under this Contract will be made in accordance with payment provisions of this Article 6.0.

6.1 GMP PAYMENT REQUEST

- 6.1.1 At the Preconstruction conference described in Article 1.3, the CMAR will submit for the City's review and approval a Schedule of Values. The Schedule of Values will (i) be based on the bids accepted from the successful Subcontractors (ii) include values for all items comprising the GMP including any City allowances, and (iii) serve as the basis for monthly progress payments made to the CMAR throughout the Work.
- 6.1.2 At least 5 working days before the date established for a Payment Request, the CMAR will meet with the Contract Administrator to review the progress of the Work, as it will be reflected on the CMAR Payment Request. The CMAR Payment Request will constitute the CMAR's representation that the Work has been performed consistent with the Contract Documents, has progressed to the point indicated in the CMAR Payment Request, and that, upon payment by the City for the Work, title to all the Work will pass to the City free and clear of all claims, liens, encumbrances, and security interests..

- **6.1.3** The CMAR's Payment Request may request payment for equipment and materials not yet incorporated into the Project if construction progress is in reasonable conformance with the approved schedule.
 - 1. For equipment and materials properly stored at the Site, the equipment and materials will be protected by suitable insurance and the City will receive the equipment and materials free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.
 - 2. For materials and equipment stored off the Site, the City must approve the storage. The material and equipment must be stored within Maricopa County and be accessible for the City's inspection. CMAR shall ensure that the materials and equipment have appropriate insurance, bonding, storage and transportation to the Site.
 - 3. The City will be named as an Additional Insured on all insurance required for all stored materials or equipment.
- 6.1.4 The CMAR will submit a Payment Request in a format acceptable to the City on a date established by the City and the CMAR. The Payment Request will be submitted to the Contract Administrator as identified in Article 7.3. This submittal will include, at a minimum, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a listing of any Deliverables submitted, and the Subcontractors' actual request for payment plus similar narrative and listing of their work.
- 6.1.5 Payments for these services negotiated as a fixed unit price will be made in accordance with actual measured quantities completed during the preceding month as itemized on the Schedule of Values and stated in Exhibit C. Payment for services negotiated as a lump sum will be made in accordance with the percentage of the services completed during the preceding month as itemized on the Schedule of Values in Exhibit C. Those services negotiated, as a not-to-exceed reimbursable sum will be paid in accordance with the actual costs of the service expended during the preceding month. The City will review Payment Requests and make recommendations for approval or denial within 7 days after the City's receipt of each properly submitted and accurate Construction Payment Request, but in each case less the total of payments previously made, and less amounts properly withheld as retention under Article 6.3. Payment Requests will be considered approved and certified for payment after 7 days unless before that time, the Contract Administrator issues a specific finding setting forth in detail those items in the Request for Payment that are not approved for payment.
- 6.1.6 The CMAR agrees to perform all construction as called for by this Contract in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated in this Contract and upon payment by the City to CMAR, such Work shall be free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever.
- **6.1.7** The Schedule of Values will be submitted as prescribed in this Contract, and subject to adjustment in accordance to this Contract and will serve as

the basis for monthly progress payments made to the CMAR throughout the construction.

6.1.8 The CMAR will submit to the City on the first day of the month the "Construction Payment Request" for costs incurred in the prior month.

6.2 PAYMENT OF GMP

- **6.2.1** The City will make payment in accordance with A.R.S. §34-609. Payment will be made no later than 14 days after the CMAR Payment Request is certified and approved by the City's Contract Administrator, less amounts properly retained under Article 6.3. The CMAR will pay all sums due to the subcontractors and suppliers for services and materials within 7 days after the CMAR has received payment from the City.
- 6.2.2 The City will pay the CMAR all amounts properly due. If the City determines that the CMAR is not entitled to all or part of a CMAR Payment Request, it will notify the CMAR in writing within 7 days after the date the CMAR Payment Request is received by the City. The notice will indicate the specific amounts the City intends to withhold, the reasons and contractual basis for the withholding, and the specific measures the CMAR must take to rectify the City's concerns. The CMAR and the City will attempt to resolve the City's concerns. If the parties cannot resolve these concerns, the CMAR may pursue its rights under the Contract Documents, including those under Article 7.

6.3 RETENTION OF GMP

- 6.3.1 The City will retain 10% of each CMAR Payment Request amount, provided, however, that when 50% of the Work has been completed by the CMAR, on CMAR's request one-half of the amount retained, including any substituted securities, will be paid to the CMAR if the CMAR is making satisfactory progress on the Contract, and there is no specific cause or claim requiring a greater amount to be retained. After the Contract is 50% completed, no more than 5% of the amount of any subsequent progress payments may be retained if the CMAR is making satisfactory progress on the Contract. If, however, the City determines that satisfactory progress is not being made on the Contract, the City may reinstate the 10% retention for all remaining progress payments.
- **6.3.2** In lieu of retention, the CMAR may provide an assignment of time certificates of deposit (CDs) from a bank licensed by the State of Arizona, securities guaranteed by the United States, securities of the United States, the State of Arizona, Arizona counties, Arizona municipalities, Arizona school districts, or shares of savings and loan institutions authorized to transact business in Arizona.
 - 1. Securities deposited in lieu of retention must be deposited into a separate account with a bank having a branch located in the City of Scottsdale.

CDs and Securities will be assigned exclusively for the benefit of the City of Scottsdale in accordance with the City's form of Retainage Escrow Contract.

6.4 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- **6.4.1** Substantial Completion will be for the entire Project unless a partial Substantial Completion is identified in the approved GMP schedule and stated in the Notice to Proceed letter. Substantial Completion will be in accordance with its definition in Article 12, and with the criteria in the Notice to Proceed.
- **6.4.2** Before notifying the City as required in Article 6.4.3 below, the CMAR must inspect the Work and prepare and submit to the City a comprehensive list of items to be completed or corrected. The CMAR will proceed promptly to complete and correct items on the list. Failure to include an item on the list does not alter the responsibility of the CMAR to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- **6.4.3** The CMAR will notify the City when it believes the Work, or to the extent permitted in the Contract Documents, a portion of the Work, is substantially complete.
- **6.4.4** Within 5 days of the City's receipt of the CMAR's notice, the City and the CMAR will jointly inspect the Work to verify that it is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 6.4.5 If the Work is substantially complete, the City will prepare and issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion that will establish (i) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or portion of the Work, (ii) the remaining items of Work that have to be completed within 30 calendar days before Final Acceptance, (iii) provisions (to the extent not already provided in the Contract Documents) establishing the City's and the CMAR's responsibility for the Project's security, maintenance, utilities and insurance pending Final Acceptance and (iv) an acknowledgment that warranties commence to run on the date of Substantial Completion, except as may otherwise be noted in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.
- 6.4.6 The City, at its option, may use a portion of the Work which has been determined to be substantially complete, provided, however, that (i) a Certificate of Substantial Completion has been issued for the portion of Work addressing the items in Article 6.4.5 above, (ii) the CMAR and the City have obtained the consent of their sureties and insurers, and to the extent applicable, the appropriate government authorities having jurisdiction over the Project, and (iii) the City and the CMAR agree that the City's use or occupancy will not interfere with the CMAR's completion of the remaining Work.
- **6.4.7 Substantial Completion.** Upon Substantial Completion of the entire Work or, if applicable, any portion of the Work, the City may release to the CMAR all retained amounts relating, as applicable, to the entire Work or

completed portion of the Work, not to exceed two and one half times (2.5) the reasonable value of all remaining or incomplete items of Work as noted in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

6.5 FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Upon receipt of written notice that the Work or identified portions of the Work are ready for final inspection and acceptance, the City and the CMAR will jointly inspect to verify that the remaining items of Work have been completed as described in Article 6.4. Upon verification that the items have been satisfactorily completed, the City will issue a Final Acceptance Letter.

6.6 FINAL PAYMENT

- 6.6.1 After receipt of a final CMAR Payment Request, and provided that the CMAR has completed all of the Work in conformance with the Contract Documents, the City will make final payment 14 days after the City has issued its Final Acceptance Letter.
- **6.6.2** At the time of submission of its final CMAR Payment Request, the CMAR will provide the following information:
 - 1. An affidavit that there are no claims, obligations or liens outstanding or unsatisfied for labor, services, material, equipment, taxes or other items performed, furnished or incurred for or in connection with the Work which will in any way affect the City's interests, other than those that could arise from the Final Payment that has not been tendered by the City as of the date of the affidavit;
 - 2. An affidavit regarding settlement of claims executed by the CMAR waiving, upon receipt of final payment by the CMAR, all claims, except those claims previously made in writing to the City and remaining unsettled at the time of final payment; and
 - 3. Consent of the CMAR's surety, if any, to final payment.

6.7 **EXTENSION OF TIME FOR FINAL PERFORMANCE**

In the event the CMAR is delayed in performing any task, which at the time of the delay is then critical, or which during the delay becomes critical, as the sole and exclusive result of any act or omission by the City, or someone acting on the City's behalf, or by City authorized Change Orders, unusually severe weather not reasonably anticipatable, fire, or other Acts of God, occurring without the fault or negligence of the CMAR, the date for achieving Substantial Completion, or, as applicable, final completion, will be appropriately adjusted by the City upon the written claim of the CMAR to the City filed in full compliance with the Contract Documents. A task is critical within the meaning of this Article if the task is on the critical path of the most recently approved Progress Schedule so that a Delay in performing the task will Delay the ultimate completion of the Project. ANY CLAIM FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME BY THE CMAR MUST STRICTLY COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF ARTICLE 7 BELOW. IF THE CMAR FAILS TO MAKE SUCH CLAIM AS REQUIRED IN THIS ARTICLE. ANY CLAIM FOR AN EXTENSION WILL BE WAIVED AND SHALL BE DISMISSED.

PROJECT No: AB59

6.8 PAYMENTS TO SUBCONTRACTORS OR SUPPLIER

- 6.8.1 The CMAR will pay its Subcontractors or suppliers within 7 calendar days after receipt of each progress payment from the City, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the CMAR and Subcontractor or supplier. The CMAR will pay for the amount of the Work performed or materials supplied by each Subcontractor or supplier as accepted and approved by the City with each progress payment. In addition, any reduction of retention by the City to the CMAR will result in a corresponding reduction to Subcontractors or suppliers who have performed satisfactory work. The CMAR will pay Subcontractors or suppliers the reduced retention within 7 calendar days of the payment of the reduction of the retention to the CMAR. No Contract between the CMAR and its Subcontractors and suppliers may materially alter the rights of any Subcontractor or supplier to receive prompt payment and retention reduction as provided in this Contract.
- **6.8.2** If the CMAR fails to make payments in accordance with these provisions, the City may take any of one or more of the following actions:
 - 1. To hold the CMAR in default under this Contract;
 - 2. Withhold future payments including retention until proper payment has been made to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with these provisions;
 - 3. Reject all future offers to perform work for the City from the CMAR for a period not to exceed one year from Substantial Completion date of this project; or
 - 4. Terminate this Contract.
- 6.8.3 If the CMAR's payment to a Subcontractor or supplier is in dispute, the CMAR and Subcontractor or supplier agree to submit the dispute to any one of the following dispute resolution processes within 14 calendar days from the date any party gives notice to the other: (a) binding arbitration; (b) a form of alternative dispute resolution (ADR) agreeable to all parties, or (c) a City of Scottsdale facilitated mediation. When a disputed claim is resolved through ADR or otherwise, the CMAR and Subcontractor or supplier agrees to implement the resolution within 7 calendar days after the resolution date.
- **6.8.4** Should the City fail or delay in exercising or enforcing any right, power, privilege, or remedy under this Article, this failure or delay will not be considered a waiver, release or modification of the requirements of this Article or of any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.
- **6.8.5** The CMAR will include these prompt payment provisions in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment for this Contract.

6.9 RECORD KEEPING AND FINANCE CONTROLS

6.9.1 Records of the CMAR's direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses pertaining to this Project and records of accounts between the City and the CMAR will be kept on a generally recognized accounting basis.

From the effective date of this Contract and until 3 years after the date of final payment by the City of Scottsdale to the CMAR, the City, its authorized representative, and the appropriate federal or state agencies, reserve the right to audit the CMAR's records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all pricing data, including data used to negotiate Contract Documents and any Change Orders or Contract Modifications. The City of Scottsdale or its authorized representative will have access, during normal working hours, to all necessary Contractor and Subcontractor facilities, and will be provided adequate and appropriate workspace, in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this Article. The City of Scottsdale will give the Contractor or Subcontractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

The City reserves the right to decrease the Contract Price or payments made on this Contract if, upon audit of the CMAR's records, the audit discloses the CMAR has charged for costs not reimbursable under this Contract.

- 6.9.2 The CMAR will include similar provisions in all of its Contracts with Subconsultants and Subcontractors providing services under the Contract Documents to ensure the City, its authorized representative, and the appropriate Federal and State agencies, have access to the Subconsultants' and Subcontractors' records to verify the accuracy of cost and pricing data for changed work or for any Subcontractor on a GMP subcontract.
- **6.9.3** The City reserves the right to withhold payments due on this Contract in an amount reasonably necessary to protect its interests if the above provision is not included in Subconsultant's and Subcontractor's contracts, and one or more Subconsultants or Subcontractors, or both, do not allow the City to audit their records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of pricing data.
- 6.9.4 If an audit discloses overcharges, of any nature, by the CMAR to the City in excess of 1% of the total contract billings, the actual cost of the City's audit will be reimbursed to the City by the CMAR up to an amount equal to Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000.00). Any adjustments or payments, or both, which must be made as a result of any audit or inspection of the CMAR's invoices and records will be made within a reasonable amount of time (not to exceed 90 days) after presentation of the City's findings to the CMAR.
- 6.9.5 This audit provision includes the right to inspect personnel records to the extent necessary to determine compliance with Section 11.34 or any other provision requiring compliance with federal or state law.

PROJECT NO: AB59

ARTICLE 7 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

7.0 REQUESTS FOR CONTRACT ADJUSTMENTS AND RELIEF

7.1 REQUESTS FOR CONTRACT ADJUSTMENTS AND RELIEF

- 7.1.1 If either the CMAR or the City believes that it is entitled to relief against the other for any event arising out of or related to the Work, that party will provide written notice to the other party of the basis for its claim for relief. The claims shall set forth in detail all known facts and circumstances supporting the claim; final costs associated with any claim upon which notice has been given must be submitted in writing to the City within thirty (30) days after notice has been received.
- 7.1.2 That notice will, if possible, be made before incurring any cost or expense and in accordance with any specific notice requirements contained in applicable Articles of the Contract.
- 7.1.3 Written notice will be given within a reasonable time, not to exceed ten (10) days, after the occurrence giving rise to the claim for relief or after the claiming party reasonably should have recognized the event or condition giving rise to the request, whichever is later.
- 7.1.4 Notice must include sufficient information to advise the other party of the circumstances giving rise to the claim for relief, the specific contractual adjustment or relief requested and the basis of the request. ANY NOTICE OF CLAIM NOT FILED WITH THE CITY WITHIN SUCH TIME AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRECEEDING PROVISIONS SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO HAVE BEEN WAIVED AND SHALL BE DISMISSED.
- 7.1.5 In the event the Contractor seeks to make a claim for an increase in the Contract Price, as a condition precedent to any liability of the City therefore, unless emergency conditions exist, the CMAR shall strictly comply with the requirements of this section and such claim shall be made by the CMAR before proceeding to execute any work for which a claim is made. Failure to comply with this condition precedent shall constitute a waiver by the CMAR of any claims for compensation.
- 7.1.6 The CMAR must continue its performance under this contract regardless of the existence of any claims by the CMAR.
- 7.1.7 In a claim by the CMAR against the City for compensation in excess of the Contract sum, any liability of the City to the CMAR shall be strictly limited and computed in accordance with the Contract Documents.

7.2 DISPUTE AVOIDANCE AND RESOLUTION

7.2.1 The parties are fully committed to working with each other throughout the Project and agree to communicate regularly with each other at all times so as to avoid or minimize disputes or disagreements. If disputes or disagreements do arise, the CMAR and the City each commit to resolving

any disputes or disagreements in an amicable, professional and expeditious manner so as to avoid unnecessary losses, delays and disruptions to the Work.

- 7.2.2 The CMAR and the City will first attempt to resolve disputes or disagreements at the field level through discussions between the CMAR's Representative, the Project Manager and the Construction Coordinator.
- 7.2.3 If a dispute or disagreement cannot be resolved through the CMAR's Representative, and the City's Contract Administrator, the CMAR's Senior Representative and the City's Senior Representative, upon the request of either party, will meet as soon as conveniently possible, but in no case later than 30 days after the request is made, to attempt to resolve the dispute or disagreements.
- 7.2.4 Before any meetings between the Senior Representatives, the parties will exchange relevant information that will assist the parties in resolving their dispute or disagreements. Should the Parties' Senior Representatives be unable to resolve the dispute or disagreement, either party may proceed with any legal action authorized by law.
- 7.2.5 Duty to Continue Performance. Unless provided to the contrary in the Contract Documents, the CMAR will continue to perform the Work and the City will continue to satisfy its payment obligations to the CMAR pending the final resolution of any dispute or disagreement between the CMAR and the City.

7.3 REPRESENTATIVES OF THE PARTIES

7.3.1 Contract Administrators

The City designates the individual listed below as its Senior Representative ("City's Senior Representative"), which individual has the authority and responsibility for avoiding and resolving disputes under Article 7.2:

City of Scottsdale Dave Lipinski, PE, City Engineer One Civic Center - Suite 205 7447 East Indian School Road Scottsdale, AZ 85251 (480) 312-2641

The City designates the individual listed below as its Contract Administrator:

PROJECT No: AB59

City of Scottsdale Aviation Department Chris Read, Contract Administrator 15000 N. Airport Drive Scottsdale, Arizona 85260 (480) 312-2674

The City designates the individual listed below as its Construction Coordinator:

City of Scottsdale Aviation Department Chris Read, Construction Admin Supervisor 15000 N. Airport Drive Scottsdale, Arizona 85251 (480) 312-2674

7.3.2 CMAR's Representatives

The CMAR designates the individual listed below as its Senior Representative ("CMAR's Senior Representative"), which individual has the authority and responsibility for avoiding and resolving disputes under Article 7.2:

Mike Hunter, Vice President, CMAR Representative JE Dunn Construction Company 2000 W. University Dr. Tempe, AZ 85281 602-443-2646

ARTICLE 8 – SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION

8.0 CITY'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK

The City may, at its discretion and without cause, order the CMAR in writing to stop and suspend the Work. Immediately after receiving this notice, the CMAR must discontinue advancing the Work specified in this Contract. The suspension may not exceed 180 consecutive days. If the City suspends the Work for 181 consecutive Days or more, the suspension will be a Contract termination for convenience.

The CMAR may seek an adjustment of the Contract Price or Contract Time, or both, if its cost or time to perform the Work has been adversely impacted by any suspension or stoppage of the Work by the City.

8.1 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

- **8.1.1** Upon receipt of written notice to the CMAR, the City has the right to terminate this Contract or abandon any portion of the Project for which services have not been performed by the CMAR.
 - 1. The CMAR will estimate the value of the Work it has completed and submit its appraisal to the City for evaluation. The City will have the right to inspect the Work to appraise the Work completed.
 - 2. The CMAR will receive compensation for services performed to the date of termination as provided in Article 6.5 of this Contract and the fee will be paid in accordance with Article 6.5.2, and will be an amount

mutually agreed upon by the CMAR and the City. If there is no mutual agreement, the final determination will be made in accordance with Article 7.

- 3. The CMAR will not be entitled to anticipated profit or anticipated overhead, but is entitled to recover apportioned profit and overhead proportional to the amount of the Work completed. In no event will the fee exceed that stated in Article 8.1.4 of this Contract or as may be subsequently amended.
- 4. The City will make the final payment within 60 days after the CMAR has delivered the last of the partially completed items and the final fee has been agreed upon.
- 5. If the City terminates this Contract in accordance with the provisions of this Article and proceeds to construct the Project through its employees, agents or third parties, the City's rights to use the work product will be as provided in Article 8.3.
- **8.1.2** Upon any termination during construction services, the CMAR will proceed with the following obligations:
 - 1. Stop Work as specified in the notice.
 - 2. Place no further subcontracts or orders.
 - 3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the Work terminated.
 - 4. Assign to the City all right, title and interest of the CMAR under the subcontracts terminated, in which case the City will have the right to settle or to pay any termination settlement proposal arising out of those terminations.
 - 5. Take any action that may be necessary for the protection and preservation of the property related to the Contract that is in the possession of the CMAR and to which the City has or may acquire an interest.
 - 6. Comply with the requirements of Article 6.6.2 (1), (2) and (3).
- **8.1.3** The CMAR will submit complete termination inventory schedules no later than 60 days from the date of the notice of termination.
- **8.1.4** The City will pay CMAR the following:
 - 1. The direct value of its completed Work and materials supplied as of the date of termination:
 - The reasonable costs and expenses attributable to any termination; and

- 3. The CMAR will be entitled to profit and overhead on completed Work only, but will not be entitled to anticipated profit or anticipated overhead.
- **8.1.5** The CMAR will maintain all records and documents for 3 years after final settlement. These records will be maintained and subject to auditing as prescribed in Article 6.8.

8.2 CANCELLATION FOR CAUSE

The City may also cancel this Contract or any part of this Contract with 7 days' notice for cause in the event of any default by the CMAR, or if the CMAR fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Contract. Unsatisfactory performance despite a reasonable opportunity to cure as judged by the Contract Administrator, and failure to provide the City, upon request, with adequate assurances of future performance will all be causes allowing the City to cancel this Contract for cause. In the event of cancellation for cause, the CMAR will be entitled to amounts due and owing to the CMAR under this Contract for work performed, but will also be liable to the City for any and all damages available under the Contract sustained by reason of the default that gave rise to the cancellation.

8.3 CITY'S RIGHT TO PERFORM AND CANCEL FOR CAUSE

- 8.3.1 If the CMAR persistently fails to (i) provide a sufficient number of skilled workers, (ii) supply the materials required by the Contract Documents, (iii) comply with applicable Legal Requirements, (iv) timely pay, without cause, Subconsultants or Subcontractors, or both, (v) prosecute the Work with promptness and diligence to ensure that the Work is completed by the Contract Time, as these times may be adjusted, or (vi) perform material obligations under the Contract Documents, then the City, in addition to any other rights and remedies provided in the Contract Documents or by law, has the rights stated in Articles 8.3.3, 8.3.4 and 8.3.5.
- **8.3.2** In the event the CMAR is in violation of any applicable Federal, State, County or City law, regulation or ordinance, the City may cancel this Contract immediately upon giving notice and a reasonable opportunity to cure to the CMAR. In the event the City cancels this Contract or any part of the services, the City will notify the CMAR in writing, and immediately upon receiving notice, the CMAR will discontinue advancing the Work under this Contract and proceed to close all operations.
- **8.3.3** If the City provides the CMAR with a written order to correct deficiencies, to provide adequate maintenance of traffic, adequate cleanup, adequate dust control, and the CMAR fails to commence complying within the time frame reasonably specified, the City may have work accomplished by other sources at the CMAR's expense.
- **8.3.4** Upon the occurrence of an event as stated in Article 8.3, the City may provide written notice to the CMAR that it intends to cancel the Contract unless the problem cited is cured, or commenced to be cured, within 7 days of the CMAR's receipt of notice.

- **8.3.5** If the CMAR fails to cure, or undertake reasonable efforts to cure the problem, then the City may give a second written notice to the CMAR of its intent to cancel within an additional 7 day period.
- **8.3.6** If the CMAR, within this second 7 day period, fails to cure, or undertake reasonable efforts to cure the problem, then the City may declare the Contract canceled for cause by providing written notice to the CMAR of this declaration.
- **8.3.7** Upon declaring the Contract canceled in accordance with Article 8.3.6, the City may enter upon the premises and take possession of all materials and equipment procured with the City's funds for incorporation into the Project, for the purposes of completing the Work.
- **8.3.8** Upon cancellation or abandonment, the CMAR will deliver to the City all drawings, special provisions, field survey notes, reports, and estimates, entirely or partially completed, in any format, including but not limited to written or electronic media, together with all unused materials supplied by the City. Use of incomplete data will be the City's sole responsibility.
- **8.3.9** The CMAR will appraise the Work it has completed and submit its appraisal to the City for evaluation.
- **8.3.10** If through any cause, the CMAR fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this Contract, or if the CMAR violates any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Contract, the City may withhold any payments to the CMAR for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due the City from the CMAR is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- 8.3.11 In the event of cancellation for cause, the CMAR will not be entitled to receive any further payments under the Contract Documents until the Work is finally completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. At that time, the CMAR will only be entitled to be paid for Work performed and accepted by the City before its default.
- 8.3.12If the City's cost and expense of completing the Work exceeds the unpaid balance of the Contract Price, then the CMAR will be obligated to pay the difference to the City. These costs and expense will include not only the cost of completing the Work, but also losses, damages, costs and expense, including attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by the City in connection with the reprocurement and defense of claims arising from the CMAR's default.
- 8.4 If the City improperly cancels the Contract for cause; the cancellation for cause will be converted to a termination for convenience in accordance with the provisions of Article 8.1.

ARTICLE 9 - INSURANCE AND BONDS

9.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

9.1 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 9.1.1 At the same time as execution of this Contract, the CMAR will furnish the City of Scottsdale a certificate of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form. The ACORD form must be issued by an insurance company authorized to transact business in the State of Arizona.
- 9.1.2 The CMAR, Subcontractors and Subconsultants must procure and maintain, until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Work by the CMAR, his agents, representatives, employees, or Subcontractors.
- **9.1.3** The insurance requirements are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.
- 9.1.4 The City in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained in this Contract are sufficient to protect the CMAR from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the Contract services under this Contract by the CMAR, his agents, representatives, employees, Subcontractors or Subconsultants and the CMAR is free to purchase any additional insurance as may be determined necessary.
- 9.1.5 Claims Made. In the event any insurance policies required by this Contract are written on a "claims made" basis, coverage shall continue uninterrupted throughout the term of this Contract by keeping coverage in force using the effective date of this Contract as the retroactive date on all "claims made" policies. The retroactive date for exclusion of claims must be on or before the effective date of this Contract, and can never be after the effective date of this Contract. Upon completion or termination of this Contract, the "claims made" coverage shall be extended for an additional three (3) years using the original retroactive date, either through purchasing an extended reporting option; or by continued renewal of the original insurance policies. Submission of annual Certificates of Insurance, citing the applicable coverages and provisions specified herein, shall continue for three (3) years past the completion or termination of this Contract.
- **9.2 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE.** The CMAR will provide coverage and with limits of liability not less than those stated below.
 - **9.2.1** Commercial General Liability Occurrence Form

Commercial General Liability: CMAR must maintain "occurrence" form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less than \$2,000,000 for each occurrence, \$2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual Aggregate, and a \$2,000,000 annual general aggregate; such coverage including independent contractors, products completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury. If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess insurance must be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

PROJECT NO: AB59

9.2.2 Automobile Liability - Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles

Vehicle Liability: CMAR must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of \$1,000,000 each accident on CMAR owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the performance of the CMAR's work or services under this Contract. If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess insurance must be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

9.2.3 Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Insurance: CMAR must maintain Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction of CMAR employees engaged in the performance of work or services under this Contract and must also maintain Employers' Liability insurance of not less than \$500,000 for each accident, \$500,000 disease for each employee and \$1,000,000 disease policy limit.

9.2.4 Professional Liability

Professional Liability: If the Contract is the subject of any professional services or work performed by the CMAR, or if the CMAR engages in any professional services or work adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Contract, the CMAR must maintain Professional Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the work or services performed by the CMAR, or anyone employed by the CMAR, or anyone whose acts, mistakes, errors and omissions the CMAR is legally liable, with a liability limit of \$1,000,000 each claim and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate. In the event the Professional Liability insurance policy is written on a "claims made" basis, coverage will extend for 3 years past completion and acceptance of the work or services, and the CMAR, or its selected Design Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the required coverage is in effect. The Design Professional must annually submit Certificates of Insurance citing that the applicable coverage is in force and contains the required provisions for a 3 year period.

If there is no Professional Liability work or service as a part of this Contract, the City will waive the Professional Liability insurance requirement in writing.

9.2.5 Builders' Risk Insurance (Course of Construction). The CMAR bears all responsibility for loss to all Work being performed and to the Work being constructed. The CMAR will purchase and maintain in force Builders' Risk-Installation insurance on the entire Work until completed and accepted by the City. This insurance will be on an All Risk form, for the completed value replacement cost equal to the GMP and all subsequent modifications. The CMAR's Builders' Risk-Installation insurance must be primary and not contributory. The City and CMAR waive all rights of subrogation against the each other and their respective officers, officials and employees. The City and CMAR further waive all

rights of subrogation against their respective contractors, consultants, designers and subcontractors, and shall require those parties to do so against their subtier contractors and consultants.

- 1. Builders' Risk-Installation insurance must name the City of Scottsdale, the CMAR and all tiers of Subcontractors as Insureds as respects their insurable interest at the time of loss. It must contain a provision that this insurance will not be canceled or materially altered without at least 30 days advance notice to the City. The CMAR is also required to give the City 30 days advance written notice of the coverage termination for this project.
- 2. Builders' Risk-Installation insurance must cover the entire Work including reasonable compensation for architects and engineers' services and expenses and other "soft costs" made necessary by an insured loss. Builders' Risk-Installation insurance must provide coverage from the time any covered property comes under the CMAR's control and or responsibility, and continue without interruption during course of construction, renovation and or installation, including any time during which any project property or equipment is in the control and care of CMAR while in transit or off site, or while on site for future use or installation. Insured property must include, but not be limited to, scaffolding, false work, and temporary buildings at the site. This insurance must also cover the cost of removing debris, including demolition as may be legally required by operation of any law, ordinance, regulation or code.

Provided that the deductible does not exceed \$10,000 (other than sublimited weather deductibles), the City will be responsible for any and all deductibles under this policy, unless such loss is caused by the acts of CMAR, its subcontractors or others for whom CMAR is responsible.

- 3. The City may purchase and maintain Boiler and Machinery insurance with the same requirements as Builders' Risk-Installation insurance cited above if the Work to be performed involves any exposures or insurable property normally covered under a Boiler and Machinery insurance policy or made necessary as required by law or testing requirements in the performance of this Contract.
- 4. The Builders' Risk insurance must be endorsed so that the insurance will not be canceled or lapse because of any partial use or occupancy by the City. Builders' Risk Insurance must be maintained until whichever of the following first occurs: (i) Substantial Completion; or, (ii) until no person or entity, other than the City, has an insurable interest in the property requires to be covered.
- **9.3 SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS.** Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must be declared and approved by the City. If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or eliminate any self-insured retentions with respect to the City, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers.

9.4 OTHER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

- **9.4.1** Coverage Terms and Required Endorsements.
 - The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are
 to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: The
 City, its officers, officials, and employees are additional insureds with
 respect to liability arising out of activities performed by, or on behalf
 of, the CMAR; Products and Completed operations of the CMAR; and
 automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the CMAR.
 - 2. The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional insureds to the full limits of liability purchased by the CMAR even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract.
 - 3. The CMAR's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be in excess of the coverage provided by the CMAR and must not contribute to it.
 - 4. The CMAR's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
 - 5. Coverage provided by the CMAR must not be limited to the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Contract.
 - 6. The policies must contain a waiver of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for losses arising from Work performed by the CMAR for the City.
 - 7. The CMAR, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain Commercial General Liability insurance as specified in this Contract for a minimum period of 3 years following completion and acceptance of the Work. The CMAR must submit a Certificate of Insurance evidencing Commercial General Liability insurance during this 3 year period containing all the Contract insurance requirements, including naming the City of Scottsdale, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional Insured as required.
- 9.4.2 Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage: The insurer must agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers for losses arising from Work performed by the CMAR for the City.
- 9.5 SUBCONSULTANT'S AND SUBCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE. Unless the CMAR's Subconsultants and Subcontractors can provide the same level of coverage as detailed in Article 9.2 and name the City and the CMAR as Additional Insureds, the CMAR's certificates must include all Subcontractors and Subconsultants as insureds under its policies or the CMAR must maintain

separate certificates and endorsements for each Subcontractor and Subconsultant. All coverages for Subcontractors and Subconsultants must be in the amounts shown in Article 9.2. Certificates must contain a provision that the insurance will not be canceled or materially altered without at least 30 days advance notice to the City.

9.6 NOTICE OF CANCELLATION. If the CMAR receives notice that any of the required policies of insurance are materially reduced or cancelled, it will be the CMAR's responsibility to provide prompt notice to the Contract Administrator of same to the City, unless such coverage is immediately replace with similar policies. Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract must provide the required coverage and must not canceled until after 30 days written notice has first been given by the insurer, by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City of Scottsdale Risk Management Office 7447 East Indian School Road, Suite 225 Scottsdale, Arizona 85251

9.7 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS. Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of the CMAR, the CMAR must purchase and maintain, at its own expense, the required minimum insurance with duly licensed or approved non-admitted insurers in the State of Arizona with an A.M. Best rating of not less than B++6 with policies and forms satisfactory to City. Failure to maintain insurance as required may result in termination of this Contract at the City's option.

9.8 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE

- **9.8.1** The CMAR must furnish the City Certificates of Insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the City) and with original endorsements effecting coverage as required by this Contract. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.
- 9.8.2 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before Work commences except for Builders' Risk Insurance, which must be received and approved as provided in Article 9.2.5. Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or before the earlier of commencement of Work under the Contract Documents or the signing of this Contract except for Builders' Risk Insurance which must be in effect before commencement of Work and remain in effect for the duration of the Project. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract.
- 9.8.3 All certificates of insurance required by this Contract must be sent directly to the City of Scottsdale, Capital Project Management. The project number and project description must be included on the Certificates of Insurance. The City reserves the right to require complete certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract, at any time.

APPROVAL. Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in 9.9 this Contract must be approved by the Risk Management Division, whose decision is final. This action will not require a formal contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action.

BONDS AND OTHER PERFORMANCE SECURITY 9.10

- 9.10.1 Upon execution of this Contract, the CMAR must provide a performance bond and a labor and materials bond, each in an amount equal to the full amount of the GMP. Bonds must be submitted in accordance with Title 34, Chapter 6 of the Arizona Revised Statutes and will be in substantially the same form as Exhibits C and D attached to this Contract.
- 9.10.2 Each bond must be executed by a surety company or companies holding a Certificate of Authority to transact surety business in the State of Arizona. issued by the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance. A copy of the Certificate of Authority must accompany the bonds. The Certificate must have been issued or updated within 2 years before the execution of this Contract.
- 9.10.3 The bonds must name the City as an Obligee and be acceptable to the City of Scottsdale.
- 9.10.4The bonds must be written or countersigned by an authorized representative of the surety and the bonds must have attached a certified copy of the Power of Attorney of the signing official.
- 9.10.5 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising under the Contract Documents, the CMAR must promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or permit a copy to be made.
- 9.10.6 All bonds submitted for this Project must be provided by a company which has been rated "A- or better" by the A.M. Best Company.

ARTICLE 10 - INDEMNIFICATION

10.0 CMAR'S GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, upon the assertion of a claim, the CMAR, its successors, assigns and guarantors, must defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Scottsdale, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees from and against all allegations, demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, losses, expenses, including but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, investigation and litigation, for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, related to, arising from or out of, or resulting from any negligent act or omission, recklessness, or intentional wrongful conduct by the CMAR or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, or employees performing work or services under this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and any injury or damages by any of the CMAR employees. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of, or recovered under, the Worker's Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of the CMAR to conform to any federal,

state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or court decree. The CMAR will be responsible for primary investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.

Insurance provisions in this Contract are separate and independent from the indemnity provisions of this Article and will not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude of the indemnity provisions. The indemnity provisions of this paragraph will not be construed in any way to limit the scope and magnitude and applicability of the insurance provisions.

10.1 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- **10.1.1** The CMAR must pay all royalties and license fees associated with its performance of services.
- 10.1.2The CMAR must defend any action or proceeding brought against the City based on any claim that the Work, or any part of it, or the operation or use of the Work or any part of it, constitutes infringement of any United States patent or copyright, now or subsequently issued. The City will give prompt written notice to the CMAR of any action or proceeding and will reasonably provide authority, information and assistance in the defense of the action. The CMAR will indemnify and hold harmless the City from and against all damages, expenses, losses, royalties, profits and costs, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and expenses awarded against the City or the CMAR in any action or proceeding. The CMAR agrees to keep the City informed of all developments in the defense of these actions. The City may be represented by and actively participate through its own counsel in any suit or proceedings if it so desires.
- 10.1.3 If the City is enjoined from the operation or use of the Work, or any part of the Work, as the result of any patent or copyright suit, claim, or proceeding, the CMAR must at its sole expense take reasonable steps to procure the right to operate or use the Work. If the CMAR cannot procure the right within a reasonable time, the CMAR must promptly, at the CMAR's option and at the CMAR's expense, (i) modify the Work so as to avoid infringement of any patent or copyright or (ii) replace the Work with Work that does not infringe or violate any patent or copyright.
- 10.1.4Articles 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 above will not be applicable to the extent any suit, claim or proceeding based on infringement or violation of a patent or copyright (i) relating solely to a particular process or product of a particular manufacturer specified by the City and not offered or recommended by the CMAR to the City or (ii) arising from modifications to the Work by the City or its agents after acceptance of the Work, or (iii) relating to the copyrights of any specification, drawings, or any Design Documents or Contract Documents provided by the City, the Design Professional, any consultant retained by the City, or by a Subcontractor or Supplier.
- **10.1.5**The obligations contained in this Article 10.1 will constitute the sole Contract between the parties relating to liability for infringement or violation of any patent or copyright.

PROJECT No: AB59

ARTICLE 11 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.0 The CMAR is advised to contact the City of Scottsdale Development Services to determine the requirements for obtaining a permit for marshaling areas it proposes to use. Marshaling areas must be fenced. The CMAR must obtain written approval from the property owner for marshaling area use. This approval must contain any requirements which are a condition of this approval. Marshaling yard requirements according to M.A.G. Subsection 107.6.1 and the City of Scottsdale Supplemental Specifications will apply.

11.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 11.1.1 Contract Documents are as defined in Article 12.
- **11.1.2**The Contract Documents form the entire Contract between the City and the CMAR. No oral representations or other Contracts have been made by the parties except as specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
- 11.1.3 In the event of any inconsistency, conflict, or ambiguity between or among the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents will take precedence in the order in which they are listed in the definition of Contract Documents in Article 12. As to drawings and plans, given dimensions will take precedence over scaled measurements, and large scale plans over small-scale plans. Contract specifications will take precedence over Contract plans.
- 11.1.4 The Contract Documents are intended to permit the parties to complete the Work and all obligations required by the Contract Documents within the Contract Time(s) for the Contract Price. The Contract Documents are intended to be complementary and interpreted in harmony so as to avoid conflict, with words and phrases interpreted in a manner consistent with construction and design industry standards.
- **11.1.5** This Contract, the Plans, Standard Specifications and Details, Special Provisions, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of Insurance, and Change Orders (if any) are by reference made a part of this Contract.

11.1.6Work Product

1. All work products (electronically or manually generated) including but not limited to: cost estimates, studies, design analyses, original mylar drawings, Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) file diskettes, and other related documents which are prepared or procured in the performance of this Contract (collectively referred to as documents) are to be and remain the property of the City and are to be delivered to the City before the final payment is made to the CMAR. In the event these documents are altered, modified or adapted without the written consent of the CMAR or the Subconsultants, which consent the CMAR or the Subconsultants will not unreasonably withhold, the City agrees to hold the CMAR and the Subconsultants harmless to the extent permitted by law from the legal liability arising out of the City's alteration, modification or adoption of the documents.

- 2. The copyrights, patents, trade secrets or other intellectual property rights associated with the ideas, concepts, techniques, inventions, processes or works of authorship developed, created by the CMAR, its Subconsultants or personnel, during the course of performing this Contract or arising out of the Project will belong to the CMAR.
- **11.2 AMENDMENTS.** The Contract Documents may not be changed, altered, modified, or amended in any way except in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each party.
- 11.3 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. The City and the CMAR mutually agree that time is of the essence with respect to the dates and times contained in the Contract Documents.
- **11.4 MUTUAL OBLIGATIONS.** The City and the CMAR commit at all times to cooperate fully with each other, and proceed on the basis of trust and good faith, to permit each party to realize the benefits afforded under the Contract Documents.
- 11.5 COOPERATION AND FURTHER DOCUMENTATION. The CMAR agrees to provide the documents, as the City will reasonably request to implement the intent of the Contract Documents.
- **11.6 ASSIGNMENT.** Neither the CMAR nor the City will, without the written consent of the other assign, transfer or sublet any portion of this Contract or part of the Work or the obligations required by the Contract Documents.
- 11.7 FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party will be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from acts beyond their control. These acts will include, but not be limited to, riots, acts of war, acts of terrorism, epidemics, labor disputes not arising out of the actions of the CMAR, governmental regulations imposed after the fact, fire, communication line failures, or power failures.
- 11.8 FUNDS APPROPRIATION. If the City Council does not appropriate funds to continue this Contract and pay for required charges, the City may terminate this Contract at the end of the current fiscal period. The City agrees to give written notice to the CMAR at least 30 days before the end of its current fiscal period and will pay the CMAR for all approved charges incurred through the end of this period.
- 11.9 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED...
- 11.10 INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
- **11.11 DAMAGED UTILITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION.** Any utilities that have been disclosed to CMAR or are otherwise known to CMAR that are damaged during construction will be replaced at the CMAR's expense as required by the M.A.G. Standard Specifications.
- 11.12 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other than the City and the CMAR, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken in accordance with the Contract

PROJECT NO: AB59

Documents shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and the CMAR and not for the benefit of any other party.

- 11.13 GOVERNING LAW. The Contract and all Contract Documents are considered to be made under, and will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the conflicts or choice of law provisions. Any action to enforce any provision of this Contract or to obtain any remedy under this Contract will be brought in the Superior Court, Maricopa County, Arizona.
- 11.14 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of the Contract Documents or the application of them to any person or circumstance is invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of the Contract Documents and their application will not be affected and are enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. In accordance with the provisions of ARS § 41-194.01, should the Attorney General give notice to the City that any provisions of the Contract violates state law or the Arizona Constitution, or that it may violate a state statute or the Arizona Constitution, and the Attorney General submits the offending provision to the Arizona Supreme Court, the offending provision(s) shall be immediately severed and struck from the Contract and the City and the CMAR shall, within 10 days after such notice, negotiate in good faith to resolve any issues related to the severed provision(s). If the parties are unable to negotiate a resolution to any issues related to the severed provision(s), the City may terminate this Contract for the City's convenience in accordance with the provisions of Article 8.1.1 hereof.
- **11.15 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.** The CMAR will perform all Work in accordance with all Legal Requirements and will provide all notices applicable to the Work as required by the Legal Requirements.
- **11.16 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.** The CMAR is and will be an independent contractor and not an employee or agent of the City.
- **11.17 CITY'S RIGHT OF CANCELLATION.** All parties to this Contract acknowledge that it is subject to cancellation by the City of Scottsdale as provided by Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes.
- **11.18 SURVIVAL.** All warranties, representations and indemnifications by the CMAR will survive the completion or termination of this Contract.
- 11.19 COVENANTS AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES. The CMAR warrants that no person other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CMAR has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract or any Contract or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. For breach or violation of this covenant, the City will have the right to annul this Contract without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the Contract Price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, together with costs and attorney's fees.
- 11.20 SUCCESSORSHIP. The CMAR and the City agree that the provisions of the Contract Documents are binding upon the parties, their employees, agents, heirs and assigns. This Contract extends to and is binding upon the CMAR, its successors and assigns, including any individual, company, partnership or other

entity with or into which the CMAR merges, consolidates or is liquidated, or any person, corporation, partnership or other entity to which the CMAR sells its assets.

- **11.21 ATTORNEY'S FEES.** In the event either party brings any action for any relief, declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Contract, or on account of any breach or default, the prevailing party will be entitled to receive from the other party an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and reasonable costs and expenses.
- **11.22 HEADINGS.** The headings used in this Contract, or any other Contract Documents, are for ease of reference only and will not in any way be construed to limit or alter the meaning of any provision.
- 11.23 NO WAIVER. The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of the Contract Documents or to require performance of the other party of any of the provisions of this Contract will not be construed to be a waiver of those provisions, nor will it affect the validity of the Contract Documents, or the right of either party to enforce each and every provision.
- **11.24 NOTICE.** All notices or demands required to be given, in accordance with the terms of this Contract, will be given to the other party in writing, delivered by hand or registered or certified mail, at the addresses stated below, or to any other address the parties may substitute by written notice given in the manner prescribed in this paragraph. Notice given by facsimile or electronic mail (email) will not be considered adequate notice.

To City:	Chris Read, Contract Administrator
	City of Scottsdale
	Aviation Department
	15000 N. Airport Drive
	Scottsdale, Arizona 85260
To CMAR:	Mike Hunter, Vice President, Project Executive
	JE Dunn Construction Company
	2000 W. University Dr.
	Tempe, AZ 85281

11.25 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. During the performance of this Contract the CMAR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Federal government's Affirmative Action guidelines to ensure that employees or applicants applying for employment will not be discriminated against because of race, color, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The CMAR must include the terms of this provision in all contracts and subcontracts for Work performed under this Contract, including supervision and oversight. The CMAR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CMAR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to

employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- 11.26 NO PREFERENTIAL TREATMENT OR DISCRIMINATION: In accordance with the provisions of Article II, Section 36 of the Arizona Constitution, the City will not grant preferential treatment to or discriminate against any individual or group on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity or national origin. Additional City Rights Regarding Security Inquiries. In addition to the foregoing, the City reserves the right to: (1) have an employee/prospective employee of the CMAR be required to provide fingerprints and execute other documentation as may be necessary to obtain criminal justice information pursuant to A.R.S. §41-1750(G)(4); (2) act on newly acquired information whether or not the information should have been previously discovered; (3) unilaterally change its standards and criteria relative to the acceptability of the CMAR's employees or prospective employees, or both; and, (4) object, at any time and for any reason, to an employee of the CMAR performing Work (including supervision and oversight) under this Contract.
 - 11.26.1 Terms of this Provision Applicable to all of CMAR's Contracts and Subcontracts. The CMAR will include the terms of this provision for employee background and security checks and screening in all contracts and subcontracts for work performed under this Contract, including supervision and oversight.
 - 11.26.2 Materiality of Security Inquiry Provisions. The Security Inquiry provisions of this Contract are material to the City's entry into this Contract and any breach by the CMAR may, at the City's sole option and unfettered discretion, be considered to be a breach of contract of sufficient magnitude to terminate this Contract. Termination will subject the CMAR to liability for its breach of contract.
- 11.27 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Upon discovery of hazardous materials the CMAR will comply with all applicable laws/ordinances and regulations and take all appropriate health and safety precautions.
 - Unless included in the Work, if the CMAR encounters onsite or as 11.27.1 material to be incorporated in the Work, any material which he reasonably believes to contain asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or other hazardous substances or materials regulated by public health laws, he will immediately stop work and report the condition to the City.
 - 11.27.2 If the material is found to contain asbestos, PCB or other hazardous substances or materials regulated by public health laws, the CMAR will not resume work in the affected area until the material has been abated or rendered harmless. The CMAR and the City may agree, in writing, to continue Work in non-affected areas onsite.
 - 11.27.3 An extension of Contract Time may be granted in accordance with Article 6.

11.27.4 The CMAR will comply with all applicable laws/ordinances and regulations and take all appropriate health and safety precautions upon discovery.

11.27.5 Despite the provisions of this Article 11.27, the City is not responsible for Hazardous Conditions introduced to the Site by the CMAR, Subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. The CMAR will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and the City's officers, directors, employees and agents from and against all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and expenses, including attorneys' fees and expenses, arising out of or resulting from those Hazardous Conditions introduced to the Site by the CMAR, Subcontractors or anyone for whose acts they may be liable.

11.28 TRAFFIC CONTROL

- 11.28.1 Complete street closures will not be permitted unless specified in the Special Provisions. The Traffic Engineering Director or designee must approve the timing and sequence of street closures at least 2 weeks before the closure. This approval is necessary to provide coordination with other roadway projects and special events.
- 11.28.2 Adequate barricades and lighted warning signs must be installed and maintained by the CMAR throughout the duration of the Project. All traffic control must be in accordance with the City of Phoenix Traffic Control Manual or the approved barricade plan unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions.
- 11.28.3 The CMAR must submit a construction schedule and a barricade plan to the Construction Coordinator for approval or modification at least 72 hours before construction is initiated. After review, the Construction Coordinator will forward the construction schedule and barricade plan to the Right of Way Manager (Traffic Engineering). The Construction Coordinator will return the approved barricade plan to the Contractor or ask for additional information.
- 11.28.4 The CMAR will comply with all provisions of the City of Phoenix Traffic Barricade Manual and any other traffic control provisions as may be provided in the technical specifications or in the approved barricade plan.
- **11.28.5** The CMAR must insure that placement and maintenance of all temporary traffic control adheres to the City's Barricade Ordinance. Violations of the Ordinance are subject to fines set forth in the Ordinance.
- **11.29 MATERIAL SOURCE**. No material source has been designated by the City for use on this Project. MAG Specification, Section 106 will apply as will 2008 ADOT Standard Specifications, Section 106.1, 106.2, 106.7 & 106.8, which outline controls and Section 1001-1, -2, & -4, concerning approval of Contractor furnished material source and supplemental Contracts in regards to environmental analysis and the liability for materials testing costs.

- **11.29.1** A CMAR and Subcontractor furnished source will be defined as a material source, which is neither an A.D.O.T. furnished source nor a commercial source, as defined in this Contract.
- 11.29.2 A commercial source will be defined as a material source in which the owner or producer has been for at least one year regularly engaged during regular business hours on a continuous basis in the processing and selling of sand, rock, ready mixed Portland cement concrete, asphaltic concrete and other similar products normally produced and sold to all parties. The company will have an Arizona retail sales tax license.
- 11.29.3 The CMAR and Subcontractor furnished material sources situated in the 100-year flood plain of any stream or watercourse, and located within 1.0 mile upstream and 2.0 miles downstream of any highway structure or surfaced roadway crossing will not be allowed.
- 11.29.4 The location of any new material source or existing non-commercial material source proposed for use on this Project will be reviewed by the appropriate agency having flood plain management jurisdiction over the area of proposed source location. The CMAR and Subcontractor will obtain a letter from the agency addressed to the Contract Administrator certifying that the proposed source location conforms to the requirements of this Contract and applicable Standard Specifications as referenced.
- 11.30 The CMAR will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract documents, work to be performed, all local conditions, and Federal, State and Local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the work.
- 11.31 The CMAR will take whatever steps, procedures or means necessary to remove, move, displace and save all native plants within the contract work area in accordance with the City of Scottsdale's Ordinance No. 1438, Native Plants, and all applicable state and county statutes, ordinances, codes and other policy requirements and recognized methods, procedures, techniques and equipment for protection, salvage, and handling of all plants to be moved from the construction area. This is not a pay item unless specified upon the Schedule of Bid Items.
- 11.32 ENDANGERED HARDWOODS. Any construction, building addition or alteration project which is financed by monies of this state or its political subdivisions will not use endangered tropical hardwood unless an exemption is granted by the Director of the State of Arizona, Department of Administration. The Director will only grant an exemption if the use of endangered tropical hardwood is considered necessary for historical restoration or to repair existing facilities and the use of any substitute material is not practical. Any lease-purchase Contract entered into by this state or its political subdivisions for construction will specify that no endangered tropical hardwood may be used in the construction unless an exemption is granted by the Director. As used in this subsection, "endangered tropical hardwood" includes ebony, lauan, mahogany or teak hardwood.

11.33 HOURS OF WORK

- 11.33.1 All building construction and associated work will be restricted to the applicable summer or winter hours. Construction activity will include any work requiring the use of manually operated or power assisted tools or equipment and vehicles used to excavate, erect or deliver materials associated with construction. Summer hours begin April 1 and end on October 31. No work may begin before 6:00 a.m. or continue after 7:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. No work will begin on Saturday or Sunday before 7:00 a.m. or continue after 7:00 p.m. Sunday work may be conducted only if the CMAR demonstrates, in writing to the building official, justifiable cause for the Sunday work.
- 11.33.2 Winter hours begin November 1 and end on March 31. No work will begin before 7:00 a.m. or continue after 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. No work may begin on Saturday or Sunday before 8:00 a.m. or continue after 5:00 p.m. Sunday work may be conducted only if the CMAR demonstrates, in writing to the building official, justifiable cause for the Sunday work.
- **11.33.3** The City may establish other times of work as necessary based on the geographical location of the jobsite in relation to surrounding occupancies, buildings and structures.
- 11.33.4 The CMAR must submit a written request to the Building Official for a variance from the required work hours at least 7 days before the date for which the variance is desired. Variances will not be granted for more than 30 days at a time. A new application must be made for each additional variance. The CMAR must notify adjacent property owners of the intended work and the duration of the requested variance. Proof of notification must be presented to the building official before the variance can be granted.
 - The application for the variance must demonstrate justifiable cause why the work must be done outside the prescribed time period (e.g. pouring concrete during "summer hours"). A variance will not be granted based solely on convenience or for work that can be completed during daytime construction hours.
 - 2. The application for a variance must state the construction permit number, the address of the work, type of work, time period of the work, and the duration of the variance.

PROJECT NO: AB59

11.34 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. The CMAR understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. The CMAR agrees that the performance of this Work will be in accordance with these laws and to permit the City to verify compliance. The CMAR will also comply with A.R.S. §34-301, "Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited", and A.R.S. §34-302, as amended, "Residence Requirements for Employees". The CMAR will include the terms of this provision in all contracts and subcontracts for Work performed under this Contract, including supervision and oversight.

Under the provisions of A.R.S. §41-4401, the CMAR warrants to the City that the CMAR and all its subcontractors will comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and that the CMAR and all its subcontractors now comply with the E-Verify Program under A.R.S. §23-214(A).

A breach of this warranty by the CMAR or any of its subcontractors will be considered a material breach of this Contract and may subject the CMAR or Subcontractor to penalties up to and including termination of this Contract or any subcontract.

The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee of the CMAR or any subcontractor who works on this Contract to ensure that the CMAR or any subcontractor is complying with the warranty given above.

The City may conduct random verification of the employment records of the CMAR and any of its subcontractors to ensure compliance with this warranty. The CMAR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless for, from and against all losses and liabilities arising from any and all violations of these statutes related to the performance of this Work.

The City will not consider the CMAR or any of its subcontractors in material breach of this Contract if the CMAR and its subcontractors establish that they have complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 8 USCA §1324(a) and (b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by A.R.S. §23-214(A). The "E-Verify Program" means the employment verification pilot program as jointly administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any of its successor programs.

The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract the CMAR enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide services under this Contract or any subcontract. "Services" are defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor of subcontractor. Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. The CMAR will take appropriate steps to assure that all subcontractors comply with the requirements of the E-Verify Program. The CMAR's failure to assure compliance by all its' subcontractors with the E-Verify Program may be considered a material breach of this Contract by the City.

11.34.1 Compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act

The CMAR acknowledges that, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), programs, services and other activities provided by a public entity to the public, whether directly or through a contractor, must be accessible to the disabled public. The CMAR will provide the services specified in this Contract in a manner that complies with the ADA and any and all other applicable federal, state and local disability rights legislation; provided, however, that the CMAR shall not be responsible for violations that occur based on compliance with the drawings, specifications, or other Design Documents or Contract Documents provided by City, the City's consultants, or the Design Professional. The CMAR agrees not to discriminate against disabled

PROJECT No: AB59

persons in the provision of services, benefits or activities provided under this Contract and further agrees that any violation of this prohibition on the part of the CMAR, its employees, agents or assigns will constitute a material breach of this Contract.

11.35 DATA CONFIDENTIALITY

- 11.35.1 As used in this Contract, data means all information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or information prepared by or obtained by the CMAR in the performance of this Contract.
- 11.35.2 The parties agree that all data, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to the CMAR in connection with the CMAR's performance of this Contract is confidential and proprietary information belonging to the City.
- 11.35.3 Except for Subcontractors, Material and Equipment Suppliers, Consultants or other like parties necessary to complete the Work or as required by the City, the CMAR will not divulge data to any third party without first obtaining the written consent of the City. The CMAR will not use the data for any purposes except to perform the services required under this Contract. These prohibitions will not apply to the following data provided the CMAR has first given the required notice to the City:
 - 1. Data, which is or becomes publicly available other than as a result of a violation of this Contract:
 - 2. Data, which was in the CMAR's possession legally and without restrictions before its performance under this Contract. unless the data was acquired in connection with the Work performed for the City;
 - 3. Data, which was acquired by the CMAR in its performance under this Contract and which was disclosed to the CMAR by a third party. who to the best of the CMAR's knowledge and belief, had the legal right to make any disclosure and the CMAR is not otherwise required to hold the data in confidence; or
 - 4. Data, which is required to be disclosed by virtue of law, regulation, or court order to which the CMAR is subject.

PROJECT No: AB59

11.35.4 In the event the CMAR is required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or any other information to which the CMAR became privy as a result of any other contract with the City, the CMAR will first notify the City as required in this Article of the request or demand for the data. The CMAR will give the City sufficient facts so that the City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take the action that the City may consider appropriate to protect the data or other information from disclosure.

- 11.35.5 The CMAR, unless prohibited by law, shall promptly deliver, as stated in this Article a copy of all data in its possession and control to the City. All data will continue to be subject to the confidentiality requirements of this Contract.
- 11.35.6 The CMAR assumes all liability for maintaining the confidentiality of the data in its possession and agrees to compensate the City if any of the provisions of this Article are violated by the CMAR, its employees, agents or Subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this Article will cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court.

11.36 TAXES AND INDEMNIFICATION

The fee listed in this Contract includes any and all taxes applicable to the activities authorized by this Contract. The City will have no obligation to pay additional amounts for taxes of any type. CMAR and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, state and local taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the CMAR. CMAR shall, and require all subcontractors to hold the City harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker's Compensation.

11.37 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 11.37.1 To evaluate and avoid potential conflicts of interest, the CMAR will provide written notice to the City, as stated in this Article, of any work or services performed by the CMAR for third parties that may involve or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by the City. The notice will be given 7 business days before commencement of the Project by the CMAR for a third party, or 7 business days before an adverse action as defined below. Written notice and disclosure will be sent to the City's Senior Representative identified in Article 7.3.
- **11.37.2** Actions that are considered to be adverse to the City under this Contract include but are not limited to:
 - 1. Using data as defined in this Contract acquired in connection with this Contract to assist a third party in pursuing administrative or judicial action against the City;
 - 2. Testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person in connection with an administrative or judicial action against the City; and
 - 3. Using data to produce income for the CMAR or its employees independently of performing the services under this Contract, without first obtaining the written consent of the City.

- 11.37.3 The CMAR represents that except for those persons, entities and projects identified to the City, the services to be performed by the CMAR under this Contract are not expected to create an interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to the interests of the City.
- **11.37.4** The CMAR's failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information as required in this Article on Conflicts of Interest will constitute a material breach of this Contract.

11.38 COMMENCEMENT OF STATUTORY LIMITATION PERIOD AND STATUTE OF REPOSE

- 11.38.1 Before Final Completion. As to acts or failures to act occurring before the relevant date of Final Completion, any applicable statute of limitations will commence to run and any alleged cause of action will have accrued in any and all events not later than the date of Final Completion.
- 11.38.2 Between Punch List Preparation and Final Completion. As to acts or failures to act occurring between the relevant date of Punch List Preparation and before Final Completion, any applicable statute of limitation will begin to run and any alleged cause of action will have accrued in any events not later than the date of Final Completion.
- 11.38.3 After Completion. As to acts or failures to act occurring after the date of Final Completion, any applicable statute of limitations will commence to run and any alleged cause of action will have accrued in any and all events not later than the date of any correction of the Work as to the repair work itself, or the date of actual commission of any other act or failure to perform any duty or obligation by the CMAR or the City, whichever occurs last.
- **11.38.4 Statute of Repose**. The time period for the applicable Statute of Repose will begin to run at the time specified in A.R.S §12-552 as it is amended or renumbered from time to time.

11.39 NO BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL

By entering into a contract with the City, the CMAR certifies that it is not currently engaged in and agrees for the duration of the Contract to not engage in a boycott of Israel as defined in A.R.S. § 35-393.

11.40 EXISTING WORK OCCURRING NEAR TRAFFIC SIGNAL EQUIPMENT

The CMAR will use due care when excavating at or near intersections where traffic signal underground conduit is located. The CMAR will notify the CPM Inspector, 48 hours in advance, of any work at the intersections. The CMAR will be responsible for the installation and maintenance of temporary overhead traffic signal cable as specified by the Streets Department when underground conduit is to be severed by excavations at the intersection. The Traffic Signals Supervisor will have all underground traffic conduit located and will provide the necessary City Traffic Signal Technicians to assist the CMAR in identifying wiring phases

and direction of conduit runs upon 24 hours' notice from the CMAR and at least 1 day before the CMAR's scheduled wiring and installation of temporary cables. The CMAR will be responsible for the wiring and connection of all temporary cable within the pull boxes and terminal compartments. The Traffic Signals Supervisor will provide a City Traffic Signal Technician to assist the CMAR with connecting field wiring within the traffic signal control cabinet. The CMAR will provide, at his expense, 2 off-duty uniformed Police Officers to direct traffic while the traffic signal is turned off and the wiring is transferred. The CMAR will be responsible as specified by the Streets Department for the repair and restoration of all traffic signal overhead and underground items that have been damaged or modified. Intersections with communications or CCTV cameras will be restored to full functionality within 24 hours, if they are disturbed during construction. The CPM Inspector will contact the Traffic Management Center (TMC) (480) 312-7777, 24 hours in advance, to coordinate the outage. The City does not allow the splicing of Magnetic Detector Loops.

11.41 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNALS

The CMAR will provide and install temporary traffic signals if at any time during construction the alignment of the traffic lanes is such that two traffic signal indications for any movement are not within a 20 degree cone of vision from the driver's eye located ten feet behind the stop bar position as specified in Section 4D.15 of the MUTCD. The CMAR will submit a temporary traffic signal plan to the Construction Coordinator for approval at least 14 days in advance of installation of the temporary traffic signal equipment. For short durations, the CMAR may obtain approval from the Construction Coordinator to utilize a uniformed Police Officer to direct traffic through the intersection when the above criteria are not met. The Construction Coordinator shall be responsible for notifying the City of Scottsdale Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) division of any and all changes that will have an effect on the normal flow of traffic operation. (See TMC note above)

11.42 TEMPORARY VEHICLE DETECTION

For all construction projects in the City of Scottsdale within duration of 15 days or more, temporary vehicle detection will be required for all approaches at signalized intersections that currently have loop detection which will be disturbed by the construction. In addition, traffic signal communications (telephone or other) to the central signal computer and CCTV (if present) will be maintained continuously during the course of the project. Work under this item will consist of furnishing all labor, equipment and materials necessary to install temporary traffic signal detection, and maintain signal communications. The CMAR or subcontractor through the life of the project will maintain the detection zones and communications by ensuring full functionality 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. The CMAR will be responsible for the ongoing operation of the detection equipment, which may require redeployment of detection zones as traffic barricading and lane use changes require.

The work will be performed as specified in Sections 11.38 – 11.40, herein and as directed by the Construction Coordinator, Traffic Engineering and Signal Maintenance Departments.

PROJECT NO: AB59

PROJECT No: AB59

11.43 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES

The CMAR and City waive claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver includes:

- damages incurred by the City for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such persons; and
- .2 damages incurred by the CMAR for principal office expenses including the compensation of personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party's termination.

ARTICLE 12 – DEFINITIONS

"Addenda" — Written or graphic instruments issued before the submittal of the GMP Proposal(s), which clarify, correct, or change the GMP Proposal(s) requirements.

"Allowance" means an agreed amount by the City and the CMAR for items which may be required to complete the scope of work.

"Alternate Systems Evaluations" - Alternatives for design, means, and methods or other scope of work considerations that are evaluated using value engineering principles and have the potential to reduce construction costs while still delivering a quality and functional Project that meets City requirements.

"As-built Document" – "As-built in construction is equivalent to "as-is." Drawings deemed "as-built" are final drawings that include all changes made during the actual construction process. These drawings represent the actual existing constructed conditions as opposed to designs or a proposed condition. The As-built Documents should be per Arizona Revised Statute 32-152.

"Blueline or Blackline Prints" – Prints that allows comparison of document versions to show what has been revised.

"Change Order" – means a written order to the CMAR executed by the City after execution of this Contract, directing a change in the Work.

"City" ("Owner") means the City of Scottsdale, Arizona, an Arizona municipal corporation. Regulatory activities handled by the City of Scottsdale Development Services, Planning and Fire Departments or any other City department are not subject to the responsibilities of the City under this Contract.

"City's Project Contingency" is an allowance established solely by the City to be used at the sole discretion of the City to cover any increases in Project costs that result from City directed changes or unforeseen site conditions. The City's Project Contingency will be added to the GMP amount provided by the CMAR, the sum of which will be the full contract

price for construction. Taxes will be applied by the CMAR at the time that the Citv's Proiect Contingency is used. Any CMAR Construction Fee on changes using the City's Project Contingency will be determined under Article 5.

"City's Senior Representative" means the person designated in Article 7.3.

"CMAR Construction Fee" is a negotiated fixed fee that is proposed by the CMAR for the project as defined in Article 4.3.

"Claim" means a written request for either payment of additional monies or extension of contract time, submitted in accordance with the terms of this Contract or applicable law.

"Clarifications and Assumptions List means a list prepared by the CMAR and accepted by the Contract Administrator. Generally the List identifies the CMAR's means and methods used in developing the GMP and identifies unresolved construction or site issues that may impact construction progress. The List of Clarifications and Assumptions may need additional confirmation or study by the project design team to avoid cost impact to the GMP.

"Construction Change Directive" means an alternate mechanism for directing the CMAR to perform additional work under the Contract when time and/or cost of the changed work is not in agreement between the City and the CMAR. Construction Change Directives must comply with the provisions of Rule 2-200.1 of the City's Procurement Code.

"Construction Coordinator" means a City employee who coordinates the daily construction activities with the contractor, and with their inspection staff that performs quality control inspections, enforces project plans and specifications and adopted City codes and ordinances.

"Construction Documents" means the plans; specifications and drawings prepared by the Design Professional after correcting for permit review requirements and incorporating addenda and approved change orders.

"Contract Administrator" means the person designated in Article 7.3.

"CMAR's Representative" means the person designated in Article 7.3.2.

"CMAR's Senior Representative" means the person designated in Article 7.3.2.

"Contract Documents" means the following items and documents in descending order of precedence executed by the City and the CMAR: (i) all written modifications, addenda and Change Orders; (ii) this Contract, including all exhibits and attachments; (iii) written Supplementary Conditions; (iv) Construction Documents; (v) GMP Plans and Specifications; and (vi) the Preconstruction Agreement.

"Contract Time(s)" means the Day(s) set forth in Article 3 subject to adjustment in accordance with this Contract.

"Cost of the Work" means the direct costs necessarily incurred by the CMAR in the proper performance of the Work as defined in Article 4.3.

"Day(s)" mean calendar days unless otherwise specifically noted in the Contract Documents.

PROJECT No: AB59

"Delay" means an unanticipated event or interference with the progress of a critical path work activity being performed at the time that causes the completion date of the Project to be extended. Delays may be caused by the City, the CMAR, third parties or Force Majeure events. Delays may be excusable, compensable, non-compensable or concurrent.

"Delay, Compensable" means delay that results from the City's actions or inactions, or the actions or inactions of a party for which the City is responsible, that entitle the CMAR to both a time extension and delay damages.

"Delay, Concurrent" means two or more delays, within the same timeframe, both of which would independently impact the Project's critical path. If one delay is caused by the City and the other by the CMAR, the CMAR will generally be entitled to an excusable, non-compensable time extension, to the degree the delays may "overlap."

"Delay, Excusable" means an unforeseeable delay caused by an event beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the CMAR (including its suppliers and subcontractors). Excusable delays may be compensable or non-compensable, depending upon whether the terms of the Contract or the law allows recovery of delay costs. Unless otherwise shown, it will generally be presumed that these delays are non-compensable.

"Delay, Non-Excusable" means a delay within the control of the CMAR, its suppliers and subcontractors, or a delay resulting from a risk taken by the CMAR under the terms of the Contract. The CMAR will not be due any time extension or delay damages, and may be responsible for paying to the City, actual or liquidated damages for the delay.

"Deliverables" means the work products prepared by the CMAR in performing the scope of work described in this Contract or required by the Project Team.

"Design Team" refers to licensed design professionals that have been selected to work on the Project by the City.

"Design Phase Services Agreement" means the Preconstruction Agreement entered into between the CMAR and the City as referenced in this Contract. This Agreement will contain the provisions associated with the development of the GMP Proposal by the CMAR. Wherever a conflict exists between this Contract and the Preconstruction Agreement, the terms of this Contract will control.

"Differing Site Conditions" - Comply with M.A.G Standard Specifications Subsection 102.4.

"Drawings" ("Plans") - Documents which visually represent the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be furnished and performed by the CMAR during the construction phase and which have been prepared or approved by the Design Professional and the City. Drawings include documents that have reached a sufficient stage of completion and released by the Design Professional solely for the purposes of review or use in performing constructability or biddability reviews and in preparing cost estimates (e.g. conceptual design Drawings, preliminary design Drawings, detailed design Drawings at 30%, 60%, 90% or 100%), but "not for construction". Drawings do not include shop drawings.

"Effective Date of this Contract" - The date specified in this Contract on which the Contract becomes effective, but if no date is specified, the date on which the City executes this Contract.

"Field Order" means a written field directive prepared and signed by the City, directing a change in work that may or may not include an adjustment in contract price or contract time.

"Final Acceptance" means the completion of all the Work as prescribed in Articles 6.4 and 6.5.

"General Conditions" are negotiated indirect costs of the Work necessarily incurred by the CMAR as defined in Article 4.3.

"Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Plans and Specifications" means the documents used to establish the GMP and made part of this Contract by reference.

"Guaranteed Maximum Price" or "GMP" means the sum of the maximum cost of the Work as defined in Article 4.3. CMAR shall also include its Construction Contingency in the GMP.

"Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Proposal" - The offer or proposal of the CMAR submitted on the prescribed form stating the GMP prices for the entire Work or portions of the Work to be performed during the construction phase.

"Hazardous Substance" - means:

- (a) Any substance designated pursuant to sections 311(b) (2) (A) and 307(a) of the clean water act.
- (b) Any element, compound, mixture, solution or substance designated pursuant to section 102 of CERCLA.
- (c) Any hazardous waste having the characteristics identified under or listed pursuant to section 49-922.
- (d) Any hazardous air pollutant listed under section 112 of the federal clean air act (42 United States Code section 7412).
- (e) Any imminently hazardous chemical substance or mixture with respect to which the administrator has taken action pursuant to section 7 of the federal toxic substances control act (15 United States Code section 2606).
- (f) Any substance which the director, by rule, either designates as a hazardous substance following the designation of the substance by the administrator under the authority described in subdivisions (a) through (e) of this paragraph or designates as a hazardous substance on the basis of a determination that such substance represents an imminent and substantial endangerment to public health.

"Indirect Costs" are the General Conditions, Payment and Performance Bonds, Insurance, Taxes, CMAR Construction Fee and Permitting and Licensing Fees as defined in Article 4.3.

"Informational Submittals" - Submittals are required (common with construction projects) for the architect and engineer to verify that the correct products and quantities will be installed on a project.

"Legal Requirements" means all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders and decrees of any government or quasi-governmental entity having jurisdiction over the Project or Site, the practices involved in the Project, Site, or any Work.

"Liquidated Damages" means an amount the CMAR will pay as required in Article 3.4.

PROJECT NO: AB59

PROJECT No: AB59

"Must" as used in this Contract is mandatory.

"Notice to Proceed" means a written notice given by the City to the CMAR fixing the date on which the CMAR will commence performance of the CMAR's obligations under this Contract.

"Owner Agent," "City's Agent" or "Owner Representative" see "City's Senior Representative."

"Payment Request" means a monthly progress payment request that is based on a monthly estimate of the dollar value of the Work completed.

"Preconstruction Services" means pricing, constructability, and schedule advice given during the design phase. Preconstruction Services will be contracted for between the City and the CMAR in accordance with the provisions of Article 1.3.1, as required by A.R.S. §34-603(C) (1) (c). Services may include the following: project scheduling, constructability reviews, alternate systems evaluation, cost estimates, GMP preparation, and subcontractor bid phase services.

"Preconstruction Agreement" means the Contract between the City and the CMAR for the services provided by the CMAR during the design phase which may include the following: project scheduling, constructability reviews, alternate systems evaluation, cost estimate, GMP preparation, and subcontractor bid phase services.

"Product Data" means illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and other information furnished by the CMAR to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

"Professional Certification" – Professional certification is a designation which indicates that a person is qualified to perform a job or task. Professional certification can be trade certification or professional designation.

"Project" means the Work to be completed in the execution of this Contract as described in the Recitals and in Exhibit A attached.

"Project Record Documents" means the documents created pursuant to Article 1.6.

"Project Record Drawing Prints" – Set of current design drawings used by construction contractor for reference during construction. These drawings are typically marked up during the construction process, and are used to develop the subsequent "as-built" drawings.

"Project Team" – Consists of the Design Professional, the CMAR, the Contract Administrator, the City's representatives and other stakeholders who are responsible for making decisions regarding the Project.

"Punch List" means those minor items of Work to be completed before Final Acceptance which do not prevent the Project from being used for the purpose for which it is intended and which will not prevent the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

"Samples" means physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the Work will be judged.

"Savings" means the difference between the Guaranteed Maximum Price and the Final Cost of the Work (including Total Cost of the Work and Indirect Costs). One Hundred Percent (100%) of Savings will accrue to the City, unless otherwise agreed in the itemization of the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

"Schedule of Values (SOV)" means the Document specified in the construction phase, which divides the Contract Price into pay items so that the sum of all pay items equals the Contract Price for the construction phase Work, or for any portion of the Work having a separate specified Contract Price. The SOV may or may not be output from the Progress Schedule depending on whether the Progress Schedule is cost-loaded or not.

"Shop Drawings" mean drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the CMAR or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of the Work.

"Site" means the land or premises on which the Project is located generally described as the following location: in the terminal area redevelopment project at Scottsdale Airport,, The CMAR will require all subcontractors to include the street address of the Project Site in their contracts.

"Specifications" means those sections of the Contract Documents for the construction phase consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain applicable administrative details.

"Subcontractor" means any person or entity retained by the CMAR as an independent contractor to perform a portion of the Work and must include material men and suppliers. All subcontractors must be selected in accordance with the selection plan stated in Article 1.13.

"Substantial Completion" means when the Work, or when an agreed upon portion of the Work is sufficiently complete so that the City can occupy and use the Project or a portion of it for its intended purposes.

"Supplier" means a manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, material man or vendor having a direct contract with the CMAR or any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the construction phase work by the CMAR or any Subcontractor.

"Work" means the entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts of the construction, required to be furnished during the construction phase. Work includes and is the result of performing or furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials, resources and equipment into the construction, and performing or furnishing services and documents as required by the Contract Documents for the construction phase.

END OF CONTRACT - SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE.

THE CITY OF SCOTTSDALE

PROJECT NO. AB59, CONTRACT NO. 2017-060-COS

This Contract has been executed by the parties above named on the date and year written above, to be retained by the City Clerk.

The CMAR agrees that this Contract, as awarded, is for the stated work and understands that payment for the total work will be made on the basis of the indicated amount(s), under the terms and conditions of the Contract.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK: JE DUNN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY	
Name Brad Schenck, Senior Vice President	
THE CITY OF SCOTTSDALE, an Arizona municipal corporation	ATTEST:
W. J. "Jim" Lane, Mayor	Carolyn Jagger, City Clerk
RECOMMENDED:	
Gary Mascaro, Aviation Director	
Chris Read, Contract Administrator	
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	
Dave Lipinski, PE, City Engineer	
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY	
Bruce Washburn, City-Attorney	
By: Eric C. Anderson, Senior Assistant City Attorne	ә у

EXHIBIT A

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SCOPE OF WORK

The following is a brief and general description of the Project for which the construction phase services are to be performed:

The Scottsdale Airport Terminal Area Redevelopment GMP Package 1 will involve demolishing two existing buildings and the associated structures at the site. It will also include the construction of two aircraft hangars and associated support space, a fuel farm, and renovation of the existing parking area.

This Project will be constructed on 6.1. Acre parcel located at the intersection of Butherus Road and Airport Drive.

EXHIBIT B PRECONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES CONTRACT

2016-172-COS

IS ON FILE AT THE SCOTTSDALE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE AND CAN BE FOUND AT THE BELOW LINK:

https://eservices.scottsdaleaz.gov/eservices/edm/viewer.aspx?n=15134230&e=.pdf

EXHIBIT C SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE GMP

GMP submittal, one copy for review.

Two (2) copies will be requested by the Capital Project Management prior to contract execution.

GMP Cost Model Exhibit Contents:

- 1. Scope of Work
- 2. Summary of the GMP
- 3. Schedule of Values Direct and Indirect Cost summary; a trade summary schedule that demonstrates a break down and allocation of the general components of the Guaranteed Maximum Price; Bonds, taxes, insurance; The CMAR Contractor's fee (include fee allocated to self-performed work and subcontractor work).
- 4. List of Plans and Specifications used for GMP Proposal
- 5. List of clarification and assumptions
- 6. List of Subcontractor Bids
- 7. Project Schedule showing critical path construction items
- A. Scope of Work will consist of a brief description of the work to be performed by CMAR and major points that the CMAR and the City must be aware of pertaining to the scope. (normally one paragraph is sufficient.)
- B. A summary of the GMP with a total for each of the components of the GMP as listed in its definition in Article 1 as shown in the table below:
- C. Schedule of Values - spread sheet with the estimated bid or cost organized by subcontract categories, allowances, bid contingency, general conditions costs, taxes, bonds, insurances, and the CMAR's construction phase fee. The supporting document for the spreadsheet must be provided in an organized manner that correlates with the schedule of values. The backup information shall consist of the request for bids, bids received, and clarification assumptions used for the particular bid item listed on the schedule of values, if applicable: Material costs, equipment costs, labor costs, hourly labor rates, and total cost. Labor costs shall include the employee classification, benefits, payroll taxes and other payroll burdens; The total cost for any portion of the work to be performed by subcontractors. Production rates, transportation and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution of the work, whether temporary or permanent, and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated into the work. Copies of quotations from subcontractors and suppliers; Memoranda, narratives, consultant's reports and all other information used by the CMAR Contractor to arrive at the GMP. The GMP must include all assumptions, descriptions and a breakdown of all allowances.

PROJECT No: (Project Number)

EXHIBIT C

<u> </u>	GMP SUMMARY		AMOUNT			
	TOTAL COST OF THE WORK - DIRECT COSTS	AMOUNT				
Α	Sub-Contractors' Cost of the Work (Labor, Materials, Equipment, Warranty, Insurance, Profit)	\$10,129,776				
В	CMAR Self-Performed Cost of the Work (Labor, Materials, Equipment, Warranty)	\$30,372				
С	Total Cost of the Work (A+B)		\$10,160,148			
	INDIRECT COSTS	AMOUNT	·			
D	General Conditions	\$1,785,497				
E	Payment and Performance Bonds (On GMP)	\$276,767				
F	Insurance (Additional CMAR's Insurance not provided in the Total Cost of the Work)	\$241,284				
G	CMAR Construction Fee (negotiated lump sum)	\$703,571				
Н	Taxes	\$697,394				
_	Subtotal Indirect Costs (D+E+F+G+H)		\$3,704,518			
J	Total Cost of the Work + Indirect Costs (C+I)		\$13,864,661			
K	Construction Contingency	\$328,505				
L	CMAR's GMP (Not to Exceed) (J+K)	\$14,193,166				
М	CITY'S PROJECT CONTINGENCY (As determined by the City)					
Ν	CONTRACT PRICE (Not to Exceed) (L+M)	·	\$14,634,093			

D. A list of the Plans and Specifications with latest issuance date including all addenda used in preparation of the GMP proposal. The plans used for the GMP must be date stamped and signed by CMAR, Design Consultant, and Project Manager using the format below.

Plans Used for Preparation of GMP No. CMAR Date Design Consultant Date					
CMAR	Date				
Design Consultant	Date				
Project Manager	Date				

EXHIBIT C

- E. A list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the CMAR in the preparation of the GMP proposal, to supplement the information contained in the documents.
- F. All Subcontractor Bids for the project on the Subcontractor's Letterhead
- G. A Critical Path Method diagram construction schedule.

NOTE: The submittal package must be kept as simple as possible all on $8\frac{1}{2}$ x 11 sheets. Color or shading must be kept to a minimum. If used, make sure the color or shading will not affect the reproduction of the submittal in black and white.

Final GMP submittal will consist of the following:

- 1. Two (2) Copies of the GMP (perforated as requested by Bids & Specifications) Velo or 3-hole punched.
- 2. One copy of the plans and technical specifications used to arrive at the GMP (signed by Design Consultant, CMAR and Project Manager).

SDL - Terminal Area Redevelopment Scottsdale, Arizona June 12, 2017 Bid Package 1 GMP



66,394 SF

Scope Description GMP Cost/SF Comments
1,785,497 26,89
00B Progress Clean 50,448 0.76 00C Final Clean 9,295 0.14 00D Temp Fencing, Dumpsters 79,308 1.19 01A Surveying 31,600 0.48 02B Structure Demolition 96,320 1.45 02C Site Demolition 102,495 1.54 03A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24,46 04A Masonry 166,250 2.50 05A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21,68 05A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,332 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 33,330 0.50 07F Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 221,700 3.34 07G Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07B Oxerate
OOC Final Clean 9,295 0.14 OOD Temp Fencing, Dumpsters 79,308 1.19 01A Surveying 31,600 0.48 02B Structure Demolition 96,320 1.45 02C Site Demolition 102,495 1.54 03A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24,46 04A Masonry 166,250 2.50 05A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 2.168 06A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06B Milkwork and Finish Carpentry 30,333 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08E Daverhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Dors 401,500 6.05 08B Glass and Glazing 164,385
OOD Temp Fencing, Dumpsters 79,308 1.19 O1A Surveying 31,000 0.48 O2B Structure Demolition 96,320 1.45 O2C Site Demolition 102,495 1.54 O3A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24.46 O4A Masonry 166,250 2.50 O5A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21.68 O6A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 O6E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 33,038 0.50 O7B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 O7F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 O7G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 O8A Door Frames and Hardware 83,885 1.26 O8E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 O8F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 O8G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 O9A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 O9B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 O9C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 O9H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 O9H Resilient Flooring and Polishing 12,000 0.18 O9H Resilient Flooring and Polishing 12,000 0.18 O9H Pairking Canopies 10,0650 1.52 O1O Parking Canopies 10,0650 1.52 O1O Parking Canopies 10,0650 1.52 O1O Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O1O O1O O10 O1O Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O1O O10 O10 O10 Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O10 O10 O10 O10 O10 Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O10 O10 O10 O10 O10 Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O10 O10 O10 O10 O10 Parking Canopies 198,950 13.55 O10 O1
01A Surveying 31,600 0.48 02B Situcture Demolition 96,320 1.45 03A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24.46 04A Masonry 166,250 2.50 05A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21,68 06A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 33,038 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,855 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 03A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 03B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work </td
O2B Structure Demolition 96,320 1.45 O2C Site Demolition 102,495 1.54 O3A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24.46 O4A Masonry 166,250 2.50 O5A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21.68 O6A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 O6E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,372 0.46 O6E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,372 0.46 O7B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 O7F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 O7G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 O8A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 O8E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 O8F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 O8G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 O8A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 O9B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 295 O9C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 O9F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 O9H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 O9H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 O9J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 129,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 O9J Cancrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 O1O Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 O1O Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 O1A Suliding Specialities 6,603 0.10 O1A Suliding Specialities 15,000 0.23 O2A Suliding Specialities 15,000 0.24 O2A O2A Suliding Specialities 15,000 0.25 O2A Suliding Specialities 15,000 0.26 O2A Suliding Specialities 15,000 0.26 O2
O2C Site Demolition
03A Cast-In-Place Concrete 1,624,148 24.46 04A Masonry 166,250 2.50 05A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21.68 06A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,332 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 88,3585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10B Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 12A Fire Protection 805,600 12,13 Includes Alternate #05 13C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 51 Subtatal 11,495,645 179,92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
OAA Masonry
05A Structural and Misc Steel 1,439,742 21.68 06A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 30,332 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 1196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Polishing 12,000 0.18 09I Filled Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes A
06A Rough Carpentry 30,372 0.46 06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 33,038 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5,01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1,26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2,48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2,34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2,95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09F Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000
06E Millwork and Finish Carpentry 33,038 0.50 07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resillent Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10 10G Signage Supply and Install
07B Water Repellents and Joint Sealants 36,350 0.55 07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,935 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10 10A Building Specialties </td
07F Metal Panels 221,700 3.34 07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Speciatiles 6,603 0.10 10A Building Speciatiles 6,603 0.10 10A Building Speciatiles 10,600 1.52 </td
07G Membrane Roofing 332,936 5.01 08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 0.10 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10A Building Specialties 10,0650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 12A Window Treatments 15,000
08A Door Frames and Hardware 83,585 1.26 08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywali 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Celling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13
08E Overhead Doors 7,917 0.12 08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1,52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12,13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,
08F Hangar Doors 401,500 6.05 08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10A Parking Canopies 100,650 1,52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12,13 Includes Alternate #05
08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resillent Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10A Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 80,600 1.12,13
08G Glass and Glazing 164,385 2.48 09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resillent Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10A Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 80,600 1.12,13
09A Framing and Drywall 155,500 2.34 09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternate #05 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 3.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60
09B Painting and Wall Coverings 196,020 2.95 09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09J Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 19,424 3.36 3.36 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 3.26 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96<
09C Tile and Stone Work 11,976 0.18 09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32H <
09F Acoustical Ceiling and Wall Treatments 15,870 0.24 09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 3.00 32C Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 <
09H Resilient Flooring and Carpet 12,000 0.18 09I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utiliti
O9I Fluid Applied Flooring 219,278 3.30 Includes Alternate #04 09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternate #05 26A Electrical 699,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 St Construction Contingency 328,5
09J Concrete Grinding and Polishing 12,000 0.18 10A Building Specialties 6,603 0.10 10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 699,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1,94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5,78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
10A Building Specialties 6,603 0,10
10G Signage Supply and Install 69,022 1.04 10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 699,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179,92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4,95
10J Parking Canopies 100,650 1.52 12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4,95
12A Window Treatments 15,000 0.23 21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 699,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 St Subtotal 11,945,645 179,92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4,95
21A Fire Protection 805,600 12.13 Includes Alternate #05 23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 St Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
23A Mechanical & Plumbing 1,122,465 16.91 Includes Alternates #05, 06, 07, 08 26A Electrical 899,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4,95
26A Electrical 699,950 13.55 31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
31C Earthwork 238,943 3.60 32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
32A Asphalt Paving 196,472 2.96 32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
32B Site Concrete 198,952 3.00 32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
32G Landscape and Irrigation 155,264 2.34 32H Fences and Gates 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
32H Fences and Gales 128,600 1.94 33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
33A Site Utilities 383,594 5.78 33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
33B Fuel Tank 305,000 4.59 S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
S1 Subtotal 11,945,645 179.92 CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
CCt Construction Contingency 328,505 4.95
1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -
PBI Insurance 241,284 3.63
Fee Fee 703,571 10.60
Tax Arizona Privilege Tax 697,394 10.50
S2 Subtotal 14 193 166 213 77
S2 Subtotal 14,193,166 213.77 DCt City's Project Contingency 440,927 6.64

Total \$14,634,093 \$220,41

Scottsdale Airport - Terminal Redevelopment Drawing Log May 25, 2017



List of Drawings Bid Package #1

Sheet Number	Description	Date
	Project Specifications	4/18/2017
	Report on Geotechnical Investigation	11/11/2016
1G000	COVER SHEET - BID PACKAGE #1	4/18/2017
1G000a	SHEET INDEX - BID PACKAGE #1	4/18/2017
1G000b	BID PACKAGE DELINEATION	4/18/2017
1G001	PROJECT INFORMATION	4/18/2017
1G003	SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS	4/18/2017
1G004	CODE SITE DATA	4/18/2017
1G005	OPEN SPACE PLAN	4/18/2017
1G006	PARKING OPEN SPACE	4/18/2017
1G008	OVERALL CODE SITE PLAN	4/18/2017
1G009	HANGAR CODE SUMMARY	4/18/2017
1G010	HANGAR CODE SUMMARY	4/18/2017
1G011	NORTH HANGAR - CODE PLAN	4/18/2017
1G012	SOUTH HANGAR - CODÉ PLÁN	4/18/2017
1G013	HANGAR PLUMBING PLANS	4/18/2017
1G020	FIRE/SOUND RESISTIVE ASSEMBLIES	4/18/2017
1G021	FIRE PENETRATION DETAILS	4/18/2017
1C001	NOTES, LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS	4/18/2017
1C101	TOPOGRÄPHIC SURVEY	4/18/2017
1C102	CIVIL DETAILS	4/18/2017
1CD101	DEMOLITION PLAN	4/18/2017
1CD102	PAVEMENT SAWCUT LIMITS	4/18/2017
1C201	CURB GEOMETRICAL CONTROL PLAN	4/1 8/2017
1 C202	CURB GEOMETRICAL CONTROL PLAN	4/18/2017
1C301	GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN	4/18/2017
1C302	GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN	4/18/2017
1C303	GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN	4/18/2017
1C401	PAVING PLAN & PROFILE	4/18/2017
1C402	PAVING PLAN & PROFILE	4/18/2017
1C403	STORM DRAIN PIPE PROFILES	4/18/2017
1C501	ROADWAY & PARKING LOT STRIPING PLAN	4/18/2017
1C-UT1	UTILITY COVER SHEET & SHEET INDEX	4/14/2017

1C-UT2	OVERALL UTILITY & DEMOLITION PLAN	4/14/2017
1C-UT3	PUBLIC & PRIVATE PROPOSED WATER & SEWER PLAN	4/14/2017
1C-UT4	PUBLIC & PRIVATE PROPOSED WATER & SEWER PLAN	4/14/2017
LS1.0	LANDSCAPING COVER SHEET	4/18/2017
NP1.1	NATIVE PLANT INVENTORY	4/18/2017
LP1.1	LANDSCAPE PLAN - AREA 1	4/18/2017
LP1.2	LANDSCAPE PLAN - AREA 2	4/18/2017
LP1.3	LANDSCAPE PLAN - AREA 3	4/18/2017
LD1.1	LANDSCAPE DETAILS	4/18/2017
LD1.2	LANDSCAPE DETAILS	4/18/2017
IP1.1	IRRIGATION PLAN - AREA 1	4/18/2017
IP1.2	IRRIGATION PLAN - AREA 2	4/18/2017
IP1.3	IRRIGATION PLAN - AREA 3	4/18/2017
ID1.1	IRRIGATION DETAILS	4/18/2017
ID1.2	IRRIGATION DETAILS	4/18/2017
ID1.3	IRRIGATION DETAILS	4/18/2017
15001	STRUCTURAL NOTES	4/18/2017
15002	STRUCTURAL NOTES	4/18/2017
15003	STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS TABLE AND NOTES	4/18/2017
15004	STRUCTURAL STEEL SPECIAL INSPECTIONS TABLE AND NOTES	4/18/2017
15005	SOUTH HANGAR - STRUCTURAL LOADING PLAN	4/18/2017
18006	NORTH HANGAR - STRUCTURAL LOADING PLAN	4/18/2017
1 S120	SOUTH HANGAR - FOUNDATION PLAN	4/18/2017
15121	SOUTH HANGAR - FLATWORK PLAN	4/18/2017
1S122	SOUTH HANGAR - STRUCTURAL WALL PLAN	4/18/2017
15123	SOUTH HANGAR - ROOF FRAMING PLAN	4/18/2017
15130	NORTH HANGAR - FOUNDATION PLAN	4/18/2017
15131	NORTH HANGAR - FLATWORK PLAN	4/18/2017
1S132	NORTH HANGAR - STRUCTURAL WALL PLAN	4/18/2017
15133	NORTH HANGAR - ROOF FRAMING PLAN	4/18/2017
1S140	CANOPY - FOUNDATION PLANS	4/18/2017
15141	SOUTH HANGER & NORTH HANGAR - OVERALL SCREEN WALL FRAMING	PL 4/18/2017
15142	ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017
1S143	ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017
1\$501	FOUNDATION DETAILS	4/18/2017
15511	FLATWORK DETAILS	4/18/2017
1S521	STRUCTURAL WALL DETAILS	4/18/2017
1\$522	STRUCTURAL WALL DETAILS	4/18/2017
15541	FRAMING DETAILS	4/18/2017
15542	FRAMING DETAILS	4/18/2017
15543	FRAMING DETAILS	4/18/2017
15544	FRAMING DETAILS	4/18/2017
15601	STRUCTURAL SCHEDULES	4/18/2017

1A001	OVERALL SITE PLAN	4/18/2017
1A002	PARTIAL SITE PLAN - SECTOR A	4/18/2017
1A003	PARTIAL SITE PLAN - SECTOR B	4/18/2017
1A004	PARTIAL SITE PLAN - SECTOR C	4/18/2017
1A050	ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017
1A051	SITE DETAILS - TRASH ENCLOSURES	4/18/2017
1A052	SITE DETAILS- SITE WALLS	4/18/2017
1A053	VEHICULAR / PEDESTRIAN GATES - NORTH	4/18/2017
1A054	VEHICULAR / PEDESTRIAN GATES - SOUTH	4/18/2017
1A055	SECURITY GATES DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A056	SECURITY GATES DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A057	SITE DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A058	SITE DETAILS - PARKING CANOPIES	4/18/2017
1A070	WALL/FLOOR ASSEMBLIES	4/18/2017
1A071	WALL ASSEMBLIES	4/18/2017
1A075	WALL ASSEMBLY DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A201	SOUTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN	4/18/2017
1A202	NORTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN	4/18/2017
1A203	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT - FLOOR PLAN	4/18/2017
1A204	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - FLOOR PLAN	4/18/2017
1A220	SOUTH HANGAR - ROOF PLAN	4/18/2017
1A221	NORTH HANGAR - ROOF PLAN	4/18/2017
1A222	HANGAR SUPPORT - ROOF PLANS	4/18/2017
1A230	ROOF DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A250	PLAN DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A252	PLAN DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A253	PLAN DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A300	CEILING ASSEMBLIES/DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A301	SOUTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR RCP	4/18/2017
1A302	NORTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR RCP	4/18/2017
1A303	HANGAR SUPPORT - RCPS	4/18/2017
1A350	CEILING DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A401	SOUTH HANGAR - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A402	SOUTH HANGAR - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A403	NORTH HANGAR - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A404	NORTH HANGAR - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A500	HANGAR - BUILDING SECTIONS	4/18/2017
1 A 501	HANGAR - BUILDING SECTIONS	4/18/2017
1A520	HANGAR WALL SECTIONS	4/18/2017
1A521	HANGAR WALL SECTIONS	4/18/2017
1A522	HANGAR WALL SECTIONS	4/18/2017
1A550	SECTION DETAILS	4/18/2017

1A551	SECTION DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A552	SECTION DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A553	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT SCREEN	4/18/2017
1A554	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT SCREEN - SOUTH	4/18/2017
1A555	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT SCREEN - NORTH	4/18/2017
1A600	ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017
1A650	RESTROOM PLANS/ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A651	RESTROOM PLANS/ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A701	DOOR SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A750	DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A751	DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A752	DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A753	HANGAR DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A754	HANGAR DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A760	WINDOW WALL TYPES	4/18/2017
1A761	WINDOW SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A762	WINDOW DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A800	FINISH LEGEND	4/18/2017
1A801	SOUTH HANGAR - FINISH PLAN	4/18/2017
1A802	NORTH HANGAR - FINISH PLAN	4/18/2017
1A803	HANGAR SUPPORT - FINISH PLANS	4/18/2017
1A820	HANGAR SUPPORT - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A821	HANGAR SUPPORT - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A822	HANGAR SUPPORT - INTERIOR DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A850	CONCRETE PANEL SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A851	CONCRETE PANEL SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A852	CONCRETE PANEL SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A853	CONCRETE PANEL SCHEDULE	4/18/2017
1A930	SITE SIGNAGE KEY PLAN	4/18/2017
1A931	EXISTING SIGNAGE	4/18/2017
1A932	SITE SIGN ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A933	SITE SIGNS DETAILS	4/18/2017
1A934	BUILDING SIGNS	4/18/2017
1A935	BUILDING SIGNS	4/18/2017
1A936	BUILDING SIGNS ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A937	BUILDING SIGN ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017
1A938	INTERIOR SIGNAGE	4/18/2017
FA001	FIRE ALARM NOTES, LEGEND, & DETAILS	4/18/2017
FA100	FIRE ALARM FLOOR PLAN - SOUTH HANGAR	4/18/2017
FA101	FIRE ALARM FLOOR PLAN - NORTH HANGAR	4/18/2017
FX001	FIRE SPRINKLER NOTES, LEGEND, & DETAILS	4/18/2017
FX002	FIRE SUPPRESSION DETAILS	4/18/2017
FX100	Fire Sprinkler floor Plan -South Hangar	4/18/2017

FX101	FIRE SPRINKLER FLOOR PLAN - NORTH HANGAR	4/18/2017
FX200	FIRE SUPPRESSION FLOOR PLAN - SOUTH HANGAR	4/18/2017
FX201	FIRE SUPPRESSION FLOOR PLAN - NORTH HANGAR	4/18/2017
1P001	SOUTH & NORTH HANGAR - PLUMBING ABBREVIATIONS, NOTES, SCHEDULES, AND SYMBOLS	4/18/2017
1P120	SOUTH HANGAR - UNDERGROUND DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P121	SOUTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P122	SOUTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR SUPPLY PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P130	NORTH HANGAR - UNDERGROUND DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P131	NORTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P132	NORTH HANGAR - FIRST FLOOR SUPPLY PLUMBING PLAN	4/18/2017
1P140	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT - ENLARGED DRAIN AND VENT, SUPPLY PLUMBING PLANS	4/18/2017
1P141	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - ENLARGED DRAIN AND VENT, SUPPLY PLUMBING PLANS	4/18/2017
1P501	PLUMBING DETAILS	4/18/2017
1P502	PLUMBING DETAILS	4/18/2017
1P601	PLUMBING SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
 1P602	PLUMBING SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
1P920	SOUTH HANGAR DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING ISOMETRIC PLAN	4/18/20 1 7
1P922	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPLY PLUMBING ISOMETRIC PLAN	4/18/2017
1P930	NORTH HANGAR DRAIN AND VENT PLUMBING ISOMETRIC PLAN	4/18/2017
1P932	NORTH HANGAR SUPPLY PLUMBING ISOMETRIC PLAN	4/18/2017
1M001	MECHANICAL NOTES & SYMBOLS	4/18/2017
1M120	SOUTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN - HVAC	4/18/2017
1M121	SOUTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN - MECHANICAL	4/18/2017
1M130	NORTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN - HVAC	4/18/2017
1M131	NORTH HANGAR - FLOOR PLAN - MECHANICAL	4/18/2017
1M140	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT - PLAN/ROOF - HVAC	4/18/2017
1M141	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT - PLAN/ROOF - MECHANICAL	4/18/2017
1M142	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - PLAN/ROOF - HVAC	4/18/2017
1M143	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - PLAN/ROOF - MECHANICAL	4/18/2017
1M501	MECHANICAL DETAILS	4/18/2017
1M502	MECHANICAL DETAILS	4/18/2017
1M601	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
1M602	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
1M603	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
1M604	MECHANICAL SCHEDULES	4/18/2017
1M701	MECHANICAL SCHEMATICS	4/18/2017
1E 001	NOTES, SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS	4/18/2017
1ED010	OVERALL - ELECTRICAL SITE DEMOLITION PLAN	4/18/2017
1E 010	OVERALL - ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN	4/18/2017
1E 011	SECTOR A - ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN	4/18/2017

1E 012	SECTOR B - ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 013	SECTOR C - ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN	4/18/2017	•
1E 120	SOUTH HANGAR - LIGHTING PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 121	SOUTH HANGAR - POWER PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 130	NORTH HANGAR - LIGHTING PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 131	NORTH HANGAR - POWER PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 141	SOUTH HANGAR - ROOF PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 151	NORTH HANGAR - ROOF PLAN	4/18/2017	
1E 521	HANGARS - DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1E 522	HANGARS - DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1E 523	HANGARS - DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1E 621	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 622	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 623	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 624	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 625	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 626	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/18/2017	
1E 701	HANGARS - ONE-LINE DIAGRAM	4/18/2017	
1T001	NOTES, SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS	4/18/2017	
1TD010	TECHNOLOGY SITE OVERALL DEMOLITION PLAN	4/18/2017	
1TD011	TECHNOLOGY SITE ENLARGED DEMOLITION PLANS	4/18/2017	
1TD410	TERMINAL - DEMOLITION PHOTOS	4/18/2017	
1TD411	TERMINAL - DEMOLITION PHOTOS	4/18/2017	
1TD412	ABC & VAULT BUILDINGS - DEMOLITION PHOTOS	4/18/2017	
1T010	OVERALL - TECHNOLOGY SITE PLAN	4/18/2017	
1T011	TECHNOLOGY SITE ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017	
1T012	TECHNOLOGY SITE ENLARGED PLANS	4/18/2017	
1T120	SOUTH HANGAR - TECHNOLOGY PLAN	4/18/2017	
1T130	NORTH HANGAR - TECHNOLOGY PLAN	4/1 8/2017	
1T420	SOUTH HANGAR - SUPPORT TECHNOLOGY PLANS	4/18/2017	
1T430	NORTH HANGAR - SUPPORT TECHNOLOGY PLANS	4/18/2017	
1T501	DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1T502	DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1T503	DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1T504	DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1T701	ONE -LINE DIAGRAMS	4/18/2017	
	Addendum #1 issued 05/05/201'	<u>7</u>	
1C102	CIVIL DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1C201	CURB GEOMETRICAL CONTROL PLAN	4/18/2017	
1C301	GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN	4/18/2017	
1C302	GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN	4/18/2017	
1S132	NORTH HANGAR STRUCTURAL WALL PLAN	4/18/2017	
1S133	NORTH HANGAR ROOF FRAMING PLAN	4/18/2017	

1\$141	SOUTH HANGAR & NORTH HANGAR - OVERALL SCREEN WALL FRAMIN	G PL 4/18/2017	
1\$501	FOUNDATION DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1\$543	FRAMING DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1A204	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - FLOOR PLAN	4/18/2017	
1A303	HANGAR SUPPORT RCPS	4/18/2017	
1A752	DOOR DETAILS	4/18/2017	
1 A 821	HANGAR SUPPORT - INTERIOR ELEVATIONS	4/18/2017	
1P140	SOUTH HANGAR SUPPORT - ENLARGED DRAIN AND VENT, SUPPLY	4/28/2017	
	PLUMBING PLANS		
1P141	NORTH HANGAR SUPPORT - ENLARGED DRAIN AND VENT, SUPPLY	4/28/2017	
	PLUMBING PLANS		
1P502	PLUMBING DETAILS	4/28/2017	
1M502	MECHANICAL DETAILS	4/28/2017	
1E 121	SOUTH HANGAR - POWER PLAN	4/28/2017	
1E 131	NORTH HANGAR - POWER PLAN	4/28/2017	
1E 624	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/28/2017	
1E 625	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/28/2017	
1E 626	HANGARS - SCHEDULES	4/28/2017	
1E 701	HANGARS - ONE-LINE DIAGRAM	4/28/2017	
1T120	SOUTH HANGAR - TECHNOLOGY PLAN	4/28/2017	
1T130	NORTH HANGAR - TECHNOLOGY PLAN	4/28/2017	
1T430	NORTH HANGAR - SUPPORT TECHNOLOGY PLANS	4/28/2017	

GENERAL CLARIFICATIONS

- 1. Proposal is contingent on Contractor and Owner executing a mutually acceptable form of contract agreement.
- Proposal is based on Bid Package #1 Permit Set, dated April 18, 2017, as prepared by Mead & Hunt as listed in more detail in the attached list of plans and specifications.
- 3. Proposal is based on Q&A Response Log dated 5/4/17 attached hereto for reference.
- 4. Proposal includes:
 - a. Supervision and administration
 - Quality control program, reviews and inspections (Quality Control/Materials testing is not included)
 - c. Contractor's Safety program, reviews and inspections
 - d. Contractor's Temporary facilities (job trailers, temp fence, temp stairs, guardrails)
 - e. Project construction layout and surveys
 - Equipment rental and warehouse deliveries f.
 - g. Construction and final cleanup
 - h. Temporary utilities (telephone, electricity)
 - Insurance (builders risk, general liability)
 - Asbuilts documents prepared/marked-up in an electronic/PDF format
 - Performance and payment bond
 - Subcontractor default insurance
 - m. Privilege Tax
 - Existing Salvage Items are limited to: Light Poles, Landscape, Signage, as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- Proposal excludes:
 - a. Design and/or engineering services including any associated architect, engineer or other consultant's fees
 - b. Artwork, furnishings or business equipment
 - c. Voice/data cabling or hookup
 - d. Special inspection service
 - e. Financing costs
 - Quality control/Materials testing (soil, asphalt, concrete, steel, windows, etc.)
 - g. Environmental inspection/surveys/reporting and/or Abatement of hazardous materials, if
 - h. Removal of hidden structures or obstructions
 - Development fees or special assessments
 - Utility company charges for distribution system extension or relocations Utility company charges for all the fees
 Municipal or Utility equipment or tap fees

 - Off-site improvements, except as noted in the documents.
 - m. Soil borings and any geotechnical investigation expense
 - Soil stabilization or dewatering due to flooding or ground water inundation.
 - o. Rock excavation
 - p. Window washing equipment
 - q. CCTV/security system/card access system
 - r. Telecommunications system
 - s. Labor to unload or install Owner furnished equipment such as food service equipment and furniture, etc.
 - Development and Impact fees
 - u. All Plan Review and permit fees



- v. Utility Company Design, Design Fees, Removal, and New Installation Fees, account setup fees, connection fees.
- w. Design Package 2 Construction Costs which will be provided in a separate proposal.
- x. Specialty Testing and Inspections (by Owner) (Steel, Concrete, Compaction, Water Spray/Infiltration, Geotech, Density, et.al)
- y. City of Scottsdale or other Authority Having Jurisdiction's Plan Review/Permit Comments
- z. Any required Prevailing Wages, Davis Bacon Wages and/or Union Wages, associated benefits or other wage requirement.

6. Schedule:

- a. Included Schedule contemplates Design Package 1 and assumed interrelationships to Design Package 2 (ABC Building and Footprint – NIC). Further Detailed updates and refinement will be included in the Design Package 2 GMP.
- b. As relates to Design Package 2 (ABC Building) Funding is included to release the following design/submittals/shop drawings: Metal Panels, Glass/Glazing, Structural Steel, Concrete. These submittals must proceed in advance of the full construction funding for the ABC building to maintain schedule.
- Pricing as included assumes an executed contract with approval of funding and a Notice to Proceed with the work on 7/6/17.

DIVISION 2 EXISTING CONDITIONS

02 41 16 Structure Demolition

- Proposal assumes that the Previous Beacon/Generator Building/Structure has been removed.
- 2. Proposal excludes additional Hazardous Material Removals/Abatement.

02 41 19 Selective Demolition

1. Assumes Existing Site Conduits being Abandoned, Remain in Place (i.e. not removing from under asphalt that remains in place).

DIVISION 3 CONCRETE

03 30 00 Cast-in-Place Concrete

- 1. Proposal includes waste slab and waste slab removal for concrete tilt panels.
- 2. Proposal includes fly ash in concrete mix design.
- Proposal excludes hard dig. Hard dig is defined as a soil/subsurface that cannot be excavated/ripped by a D9 Buldozer.

DIVISION 4 MASONRY

04 22 00 Concrete Unit Masonry

DIVISION 5 METALS

05 12 00 Structural Steel

1. Proposal excludes decorative site bollards 5/1A057. None are shown in bid package 1.

DIVISION 6 WOOD, PLASTICS AND COMPOSITES

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS
Page 13 of 61

Page 2 of 7



06 20 00 Finish Carpentry and Millwork

Proposal includes restroom vanities as SSUR-1, since no material is called out.

DIVISION 7 THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION

07 20 00 Thermal Protection

1. Proposal includes rigid insulation the thickness of the stud at type F1-F4 walls.

DIVISION 8 OPENINGS

08 11 00 Metal Doors and Frames

1. Proposal excludes L series Graintech doors manufactured by Allegion, as called for in spec section 08 11 13 2.2.C. None are shown on the drawings.

08 34 16 Hangar Doors

 Proposal includes Norco hangar door field painted galvanized metal panel with PT3 (Spec 08 34 16.2.2 D) in lieu of pre-finished composite metal panels (7/1A402). See trend log for prefinished metal panel cost option.

DIVISION 9 FINISHES

09 30 00 Tiling

1. Proposal includes Schluter System metal transitions, due to no finish being specified.

09 67 23 Resinous Flooring

- Proposal includes Key Resin moisture mitigation system for hangar floor before epoxy is applied.
- 2. Proposal includes control joint infill after epoxy is applied.
- 3. Proposal includes accepted alternate A04 to use Diamondstone Thin-Film w/ Eco-Top epoxy floor system.

09 68 13 Tile Carpeting

1. Proposal includes an allowance for custom carpet. The minimum order quantity was not met in Bid Package 1 and will be procured with Bid Package 2.

09 96 53 Electrostatic Spray Coatings

 Proposal excludes this spec section as the coating for the exterior steel will not work with the Electrostatic equipment.

09 97 13 Special Coatings

1. Proposal includes epoxy and urethane coatings on all field painted exterior items.

DIVISION 10 SPECIALTIES

10 28 00 Toilet Bath and Laundry Accessories

Proposal includes 30x48 and 30x72 mirrors in north and south hangar bathrooms.

10 44 00 Fire Protection Specialties

1. Proposal includes 2 cabinets and 14 fire extinguishers.

-PER-CPS...

DIVISION 11 EQUIPMENT

- 11 24 00 Fall Protection
- 1. Proposal includes permanent fall protection systems.

DIVISION 12 FURNISHINGS

- 12 20 00 Window Treatments
- 1. Proposal includes an allowance for window shades.
- 12 93 00 Site Furnishings
- 1. Proposal excludes typical refuse enclosure per COS detail SD2156-1 (Note 6/1A050). This is not compatible with current design.

DIVISION 13 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION

DIVISION 14 CONVEYING SYSTEMS

DIVISION 21 FIRE SUPPRESSION

- 21 10 00 Water-Based Fire-Suppression Systems
- Proposal includes two (2) 2000 GPM Primary and Secondary Fire Pumps with controllers, jockey pump and controller.
- Proposal includes accepted alternate A05 Eliminate Seismic Requirements for Piping Systems.
- 21 20 00 Fire-Extinguishing Systems
- 1. Proposal includes one (1) 500-gallon Foam Concentrate Tank, 500 gallons of foam concentrate. Additional foam concentrate to be furnished for all testing with AHJ.
- 2. Proposal includes four (4) foam water fire hoses, two (2) each hangar.
- 3. Proposal includes testing of foam system with AHJ. All foam discharged during acceptance testing will be washed to trench drains.
- Proposal excludes Foam disposal fees, trucking fees, or disposal of foam from site. Unclear if required.
- 5. Proposal excludes Reserve supply of foam concentrate. Unclear if required.

DIVISION 22 PLUMBING

- 22 10 00 Plumbing Piping
- 1. Proposal includes pump SP-2 however, we exclude any additional pumps that may be required at the storage tank ST-1.
- Proposal includes accepted alternate A06 to delete the storm drain pipe insulation at the hangars.
- 3. Proposal includes accepted alternate A08 to delete the domestic cold water pipe insulation.
- 4. Proposal excludes Engineered Shoring Systems for below grade excavations.
- 5. Proposal excludes Fuel oil piping or fuel storage tanks.

JEDUNN



- 6. Proposal excludes any pumps required for sanitary overflow at the underground storage tank. (Pump SP-2 is included. We do not have any pumps associated with the storage tank (ST-1) sanitary overflow, not shown).
- 3. Proposal includes accepted alternate A05 Eliminate Seismic Requirements for Piping Systems.
- 4. Proposal includes accepted alternate A07 Substitute PVC Piping for UG Storm and Sanitary.

22 30 00 Plumbing Equipment

- 1. Proposal includes one (1) 60,000 gallon corrugated metal fire event underground storage tank that is 10 feet diameter by 103 feet in length with welded end caps. Tank to come with corrugated metal risers with frames, duty rated water-tite covers, and access ladders.
- 2. Proposal includes trap guards in lieu of trap primers.
- 3. Proposal excludes water or gas meters.

DIVISION 23 HEATING, VENTILATING, AND AIR CONDITIONING

23 08 00 Commissioning of HVAC

- 1. Proposal includes commissioning support.
- 2. Proposal excludes 3rd party commissioning agent.

DIVISION 25 INTEGRATED AUTOMATION

25 00 00 Integrated Automation

1. Automated Building Controls for HVAC Systems: No front end or software is being provided. The City of Scottsdale (COS) has an existing city-wide Tridium system the hangars will connect to. COS also has an ALC WebCTRL system for editing the software and programming provided. It is assumed the COS Tridium system has enough capacity to add the hangars to the network. All I/P addresses are the responsibility of the owner. Local DDC displays will be provided where noted (hangar exhaust/supply fans, zone co2 (includes temp for monitoring). Please note where local DDC displays are noted for equipment being provided with OEM controllers (ceiling fans, VRF's, etc.) these displays must be provided with equipment.

DIVISION 26 ELECTRICAL

26 00 00 Electrical

- 1. Proposal includes:
 - 1. AV systems conduit raceway to accessible ceiling

 - Telecom systems conduit raceway to accessible ceiling
 Access control, CCTV systems conduit raceway to accessible ceiling
 - 4. Telecom service conduit 100' from hand hole to "dmark" location.
 - 5. Cable tray as shown on contract documents.
 - 6. Guard shack temp power.
 - 7. Plug load control for office space.
- 2. Proposal excludes
 - 1. Pad mounted utility transformer for building service.
 - 2. Lightning Protection
 - 3. Specialty AV and Telecom floor box or back boxes.
 - 4 TC Controls

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS

Page 5 of 7

JEDUI



- Cable tray and rack inside MDF/IDF room.
- 6. Cabling, programs, parts and smarts for all telecom, access control, and security.
- Overhead door limit switches and associated hardware.
- 8. Proposal excludes solar panels.

DIVISION 27 COMMUNICATIONS

27 00 00 Communications

- 1. Proposal includes
 - 1. Independent telecom grounding system.
 - 2. (2) 4" conduits from site pedestal to MDF room not exceed 200'.
 - 3. Conduit stubs at in wall rough.
 - 4. Use of J-Hooks between in wall rough and cable tray.
 - 5. Use of cable tray system.
 - 6. Raceways and power for audio/visual equipment.
 - 7. Provide EZ path sleeve raceways.
- 2. Proposal excludes
 - Communications equipment.
 - 2. Telecommunications cabling.

 - 4. Commissioning of systems.5. Wireless access Wireless access points, cabling and equipment.
 - 6. Building Communication Backbone.

DIVISION 28 ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY

28 00 00 Electronic Safety and Security

- 1. Proposal includes
 - 1. Conduit raceway for access control system.
 - 2. Conduit raceway for CCTV.
- 2. Proposal excludes
 - 1. Access control cabling and parts and smarts.
 - 2. CCTV cabling and equipment.

DIVISION 31 EARTHWORK

31 20 00 Earthwork

- 1. Proposal includes ABC building pad prep.
- 2. Proposal excludes additional shoring or structural provisions that may be necessary to accommodate the installation of the fueling system. To be determined with receipt of design in Package 2.

DIVISION 32 EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS

32 12 00 Asphalt Paving

1. Proposal includes slurry seal of existing/modified parking lot.

32 31 19 Steel Fences and Gates

1. Proposal excludes security or card reader for gates (Spec 32 31 19 2.5.I).

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS

Page 17 of 61

Page 6 of 7

JEDUI



DIVISION 33 UTILITIES

XX XX XX Natural Gas Utilities

1. Proposal includes an allowance for the Natural Gas System Installation, excluding the meters and regulators. Finalization can occur after engagement and design with Southwest Gas.

XX XX XX Fuel Station

1. Proposal includes an allowance for a 25,000-gallon fiberglass tank fuel station. Fuel station allowance was based on (1) 20 hp pump capable of 200 GMP @ 45 psi, (1) over-wing nozzle and (1) under-wing nozzle. Proximity of proposed tank location may necessitate additional structural or shoring provisions.

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 18 of 61

Page 7 of 7



01A Surveying	ğ	Pro Pro	ect Name: SDL ect Location: 5	- Ter	minal Redevelor dale, AZ	mer	nt Halling Halling	Bld	Date: 5/10/2017 alyst:::::::::: K	at 2: yle C	00 p.m. MST hase		ngg dekti						Bhan Fi
N ≅ Not Included in bid	R.	Sur	ey Innovation G	Engir	neering Alliance	Hub	bard Engineering	Ath	erton Engineerir R	ick E	ngineering	Dev	elopment dba Vi	1					
	Desired						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·												
o cran della como di la compania (como Base Blo I			,a::.::\$29,430°	11111	\$31,120	131	\$26,2 00	Dec	clined/Workload N	lo Re	sponse the co	No F	Response	H		241	0.01.01.01.016.0	1	15101300
neral Scope Items:														Г					
JE Dunn Bid Form	Υ	Υ		_ Y		Υ_		ļ				\perp		┺		1			
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Υ	Y		L	L				<u> </u>			L		1		ـــــ	<u> </u>		
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Υ	Y		Y		Y		_			<u> </u>	\Box		1_		<u> </u>			
Reviewed Front End Documents		Υ						L				L							
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Y												<u> </u>			L		
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Ŷ	ŢΥ							I						_	<u> </u>			
Parking for labor is included		Y				_			1					_					
JED Safety Requirements/Manual		Ŷ		<u> </u>		_			<u> </u>					1_		丄			
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Ÿ		Щ.				_	<u> </u>		<u></u> .			1_	1	ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ			
Per plans and Specs	Y	Y				L		L	·					↓_		1	<u>,</u>		
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	Y		Y		Ÿ		_	ļ			_		ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		↓_			
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Y	Y		Y		Y						ļ		┦		_			
UG Utility Certification / Registered As-Builts		Y		Υ		Υ						_			ļ	١			
Restaking / Relocating Stakes	Y	N	\$5,400	N.	\$5,400	1/2	\$5,400	\vdash	<u> </u>	+				╀	ļ	\vdash		-	
	\Box									1		I		T					
	+-					\vdash				士				1	1				
Bond Required	W.	(N		SNS		١N:			1					T	ļ	Γ,			
ADJUSTED BASE BII			\$34,830		\$36,520		\$31,609		\$0		\$0		\$(1	\$0		\$0		\$0
ernates / Unit Prices				1		I													

Printed: 5/9/2017, 12:47 PM

CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE COPIED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN Page 1 of 1

02B Structure Demolition	uo	Pro	ect Name: SDL	- Teri	minal Redevelo	pment	dia. Jacquery	Bld	Date: 5/10/201	7 at	2:00 p.m. MST				•					
Y = Included in bid	g 🗀	Proj	ect Location: S	cotts	dale, AZ	e ji Çibel P		Ana	llyst:	Kyle	Chase	:: <u> </u>	<u>dalder</u> nalle	efulkide)	12:5:	1410	edite Ge		arrigh.	
N = Not included in bld	8	Dick	ens Quality Dem	BCS	Enterprises	Arizon	a Specially Der	Pen	hall Company	Stea	th Demolition							\neg		
	8							i			ł [
	উ	}	[[
	٦		[1					<u> </u>							1		
Base Bid			\$88,670		\$ 127,060	NI NI	R. Slaviskas (Dray)	100	Declined (ARE)	Non	Responsive	ļ.,	e alse jatopeta	Tall proffue t		10,00	frijaja.	1		\Box
eneral Scope Items:		1				+ +		1		\vdash	 			+		\vdash				
JE Dunn Bid Form	Ŷ	Y		Υ		1		1			 					-		-	_+	
	N.									\vdash	†*					 -				
JE Dunn Scope of Work		Y		Υ		1		1		11	 					1		-+	 	$\overline{}$
Reviewed Front End Documents	\neg	TY		Ÿ		1-1-		╁							-					
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Ϋ́	İΫ		Ÿ		 	<u> </u>	! 			 	_		_		 -		-	 	
Construction Sequence / Logistics		Ÿ		Ÿ		+ +		+			 					 		-		
Parking for labor is included		Ý		- '		1 1		t	 	 		_	 			\vdash		-+-	-	
JED Safety Requirements/Manual		Ý		Ÿ		+		1	 	 	 	-	 	-		┥		\dashv		
Sales Tax - Excluded		V		Ÿ	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-1		+		\vdash	+					┨╼┼		-		
Per plans and Specs	7			Ÿ		╅┷┿┉	~-	ļ.—	 	\vdash			l			┯		-		
Addendum 1 Acknowledged		Ÿ		Ÿ				┿	 	Н	 		ļ							
Addendum 1 Acknowledged Addendum 2 Acknowledged	7			÷				╁				_				} +		-+		
Addenount 2 Acknowledged	┝∸┼	1				1 -		┼─	 	-			 					+		
Water Meter & Water (Handoff at Completion)	Y	ZINE	\$2,500	Υ		+		+	 	 -	 		····			\vdash				
Dust Control	Ÿ		45,000	Ÿ		1		+		H						 		\dashv		
Street Sweeping		╅		Ÿ		1		+						-		 -		-+		
Haul Off / Recycle	Y			Ÿ		1 1		+	-	1	+					 -		+		
Complete Removal of UG Utilities @ Footprint	Ÿ			Ý		1 1		+-	 	\vdash	+	_				╀──┼				
Refrigerant Removal -	Ÿ		\$1,750	Ÿ		+ +		1	 	1	 					 +		-		
NESHAP Notification Filing	Ÿ		91,700	Ÿ		+		┪~~	 	 -		_	····			├┼		-+		
		(N)	\$3,500	Ÿ		+ +		╂		\vdash	 					 -		\rightarrow		'
Permit Support	-	BILLE	\$3,000					╆	 	Н						\vdash	_			
KCLUSIONS	\vdash	 -				+-+-		╂	 	\vdash						\vdash		 -	_ 	—
Transformer Safeoff - APS	Y	 √				 		1	 	-	 	_		+		⊢		+		
Gas Line Safeoff - SWG	Ϋ́					+		1	 	\vdash	 			\rightarrow		 		\dashv		
Water Supply Shutoff - Scottsdale	Ϋ́					+		┼─	 				 			┢		-		
	 					++		┼—		┝─┤	 			\rightarrow		┥				
Compaction @ Removed Footings	\frac{1}{2}							+	 	-	 		+ 	_		╁╼╾┼		-		
Utility Company Costs to safe off / remove	Y	_				+		+-	·	ļ	+		 			\vdash		+		
Street Closure Permit	┝┸┼	+-				+		┼─	 -	-	 		 			╂╾╌┼		+		
ADIEICATIONE	 	\vdash				+		╁	 	├	 		 			╁╌┤		+		
LARIFICATIONS	Y	 √		Y	-	1		╁	 	\vdash	+		ł			╂		\rightarrow		
Compaction under demo'd footings by Earthwork Beacon Structure Has Been Removed by Others		Y		Y		1		+	 	 	 		 	-		₩		-		
Beacon Structure Has Been Removed by Others	├ ┴	 ' -		1		+ +		+	 	 	 		 	 -		⊢┼				
i '	10.74	1			 	+ +		+	 	 	 		 			┢		-		
Bond Required	AV.	1		-		++		┼	 		+	_	 			┢┷				
ADJUSTED BASE BID	⊢⊹	1-	\$96,320	_	\$127,050	. - -	\$(\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0	┥		20		
		1	MINISTER AND IN A U.		\$121,080	4 +	\$(4—	\$0	\vdash	\$0		\$0		φŪ	↓_ ↓		\$0		\$0
ernates / Unit Prices			L!		l			ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>							

Printed: 6/9/2017, 12:48 PM

CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE COPIED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN Page 1 of 1

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS
Page 21 of 61

Printed: 6/9/2017, 12:48 PM

CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE COPIED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN Page 1 of 1

03A Cast-In-Place Concrete Y = Included in bid	50		ect Name: 60L ect Location: 6		minal Redevelor	men	t Laur-drondin	Bid	Date: 5/10/201	7 at	n Rice		:::::	ra dist	1.	:				1
N = Not included in bid	Res				lrock						nes Concrete	· · ·		 			ř		1	
	0	1	- Outro	, ,,,,,,		-		1	an oursele	-	is semanti						\vdash		┢	
	Desired	11						i	4 - F		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					*********************			·	
													************			***************************************	L			
Base Bid			\$2,080,000		\$1,575,500	-	\$1,505,348	1915	Declined	e.;;	Declined	Z.,			·	74 37		1 11		
neral Scope Items:	\dashv	-	L			├	 	├	 	├	 				-	ļ	├	 	-	-
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y			Ÿ		Y				-	 		-				 —-	ļ:	├	
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Ÿ			Ÿ		ŀγ̈́	 			├		_					├		 _	
					ļ	V		⊢		├	+		!		_		-		⊢	ļ. —
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y			Y		₩		├			 		!		_		١			↓
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y	T Y		Ť		 			ļ		+		ļ <u> </u>				-		!	
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule							·	├	·	╌							⊢		₽-	ļ
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Υ,	Y		Y		Y				ļ	·	_	ļ				<u> </u>	<u> </u>	₩.	
Parking for labor is included	Ÿ			Y		Y. Y		1	ļ	 -	ļ	_	<u> </u>		_		⊢		-	
JED Safety Regulrements/Manual		Y						-		ļ			<u> </u>				ـــ		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
Sales Tax - Excluded	Υ			Ÿ	·	Y		! -	ļ	-					L-		1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ļ
Per plans and Spacs		Y	ļļ	Υ		Y			 	1_	<u> </u>		L	ļ	<u> </u>	ļ	ļ	ļ	L_	Ļ
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Ÿ	Ŷ		Y	ļ	Y	ļ <u>.</u>	_	<u> </u>	ـــــ	<u> </u>				ļ		ļ	ļ	_	ļ
	Ш	Щ				L.,		╙		!	1		L	ļ	ļ		L_	ļ	1_	ļ
30 00 Cast-in-Place Concrete	-			Y		LΫ́		1	1	L.	ļ						L.			
Foundations		Υ		Υ		Υ				L					L					
Sleb on Grade 5"	Υ			Y	per phone conv	Y		\Box	l						[T	1	Т	
Slab on Grade 8"	Y	Y		Y		ĪΫ		1									1		1	1
Vapor Barrier	Y	Ÿ		Y		Ÿ											1	1	1	
4" AB		ĺΥ		Y	per phone conv	Y		\vdash	1	1			_				T		✝	·
2" Sand Bed at SOG	Y		\$10,800		per phone conv		\$10,800			t-			t~—		\vdash		1	 	+-	1
Equipment Pads					per phone conv			1	†	1	—		-				t	1	╁	
Sinuctural Excavation	Ÿ		4.13.24	Ÿ	F	Ý		1	1	t	1		-	-		·	1	 	 	†
Reinforcing for Concrete	Ÿ			Ÿ		ΙÝ		✝	 	 	·	_	_				+-	 	╅—	
Dust Control	÷			Ÿ		Ÿ		-	 		····						┼-		{ —	
Trench Drain / Grate Install		ΗŸ		Ÿ		Ϊ́Υ		!	····	⊢					┢	 -	╁—	 	⊢	
		10.73		N.		20.7		 		┢	 		 		\vdash		╀	 	┿	<u> </u>
	Y		 	Y	ļ	洲	\$2,500	╌	 	┝				ļļ	├		├ ─		 	
Grout Hollow Metal Frames	÷		\$9,500	410	\$8,360	m	\$9,200	├				_	-		⊢		⊢	 	├ -	
Composite Cleanup Crew			\$9,500	200	per phone conv			⊢	 	╌	 		 		⊢		├	 	┰	
Termite Control	Υ.,	100	\$11,000	<u> </u>	per phone can	M.	\$10,800	⊢		├ ─	 	_				 	├	1	 	-
1	٠,,	1				٠.	<u> </u>	—		ļ	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						↓	 	↓	ļ
47 13 Tilt Panel Concrete	7			Y		I.Y.		 		⊢			-		-		-	 	Ļ .	ļ
Tit Panels	~			Υ		Y		╙		<u> </u>	J		_				↓ _	<u></u>	.	1
Stern Walls	Υ			Υ	ļ. <u></u>	Y		ـــــ	<u> </u>	Ļ	·		L		ļ		<u>↓</u>	<u> </u>	L.	<u> </u>
Delegated Design	Y	Υ		Y		N.	\$22,000	L.,	·	ļ	J		L		ᆫ		Ĺ.	L		Í
Embeds for Till Panel Construction	Y			Y		LY.	<u> </u>	L		_	11		1		<u>L</u>		L.	J		
Installation of Embeds by Others	1			Y		Y		L		L.	- 		L		L		<u> </u>			
Waste Slabs for Tilt Panels	Y				per phone conv		l	L									Ι			1
Waste 6lab Removal	Y				per phone conv		per phone conv			L							Ι		Ι	
Anohoring of Till Panels	~			Y		Y				L					Ĺ		Γ.	Ī		}
Hoisting for Tift Panels	7	TY		Y		Y		1.							I		Ι	1	П	1
Tit Panel Erection	Y	Y		Y		Y		1	1	Γ					Ι -		Т	1	T	1
Sandblasting of Tilt Panels	Ÿ			Υ	T	Y		T-		Γ	1				Ι	<u> </u>	1	1	1	
Rubbing/Patching of Tilt Panels	Ÿ		\$6,000				\$6,000	\vdash		Ι	1					T	1	1	1	t
Grout Base Plates at Steel to Concrete	Ÿ		11,500	Ŷ		Y	<u> </u>	1		T-	1	_	 		1	1	1-	1	 	1
Additional Mobilization for Crane		1823	\$27,500		\$27,500		\$27,500	\vdash		1	1				-		†	1	1	
COORDINA ACCORDINATION OF STREET	H	100.00	727,000	*******	1	1	1		 	t	1				Η-	 	 	 	+	
Shop Drawing Allowance - Bid Package 2	Y	21/12	\$30,000	EN S	\$30,000	SUL	\$30,000	_	 	 	 				┢		┼	 	 	
10100 Utawing Allowance - Did Fackage 2		- Barre	930,000	SILVER	\$30,000	1	930,000	+-	 	+-			 		 	 	1	 	 	
	a re	श्चरम		MAR	·	1178	 	┼	 	+	· 					-		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	+	
Bond Required	N)	1/2		41.0		وينها		 	 	₩-	~ 						⊢	 	+	
<u> </u>	Щ.	Щ		_				╄	 	-	 						!		↓	ļ
ADJUSTED BASE BID	L. I		\$2,175,800		\$1,648,360	L	\$1,624,148		\$0	L	\$0		L	\$0	L	\$0	L	\$0	4	
ernates / Unit Prices		1																		

04A Masonry Y = Included In bid	ίο ds	Pro Pro	ject Name: SOL ject Location: §	- Te	minal Redevelo	emo	nt 1914 - Handis Johann	Bld	Date: 5/10/201	7 at Tom	2:00 Rice	p.m. MST	-1,7			desima.		ejg Dillery	Organ		-
N = Not Included in bid	12	Stor	ne Cold Masonry	Re-C	reate Companie	Ŝto	Masonry	Ĝ8	G Enterprises	Sun	Valle	y Masonry					·	·············	<u> </u>		7
	1 8	1															1		t –		\mathbf{t}
	Sign	_		1	-										_				t		+
	181	+		1-				1		_							1		I		╁
militaria de la compania del compania de la compania del compania de la compania del compania de la compania del compania de la compania del compania de			\$158,750	30000	No Bid	5.53	Declined	Ness	Declined state	12.55	Decli	ned			100		\vdash			Harania da	+
The state of the s		<u> </u>	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					~	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	-							 				+
General Scope Items:	\vdash	1		_	\	_		\vdash							_	· · ·	 		1-		+
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	1		1			İ	_			_				_		 		1		+-
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Ŷ	1		1-	1			1			T i				\vdash	 	 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 		+
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	1		1	1		1	<u> </u>		П	T		\neg				1-		 	 	1
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y	TY		1	1			\vdash			_		-		_	 	t^-	 			+
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule		Y	<u> </u>	1	 	_	 	T			一				\vdash		┢┈	1	 	 	+
Construction Sequence / Logistics	ÍΥ	Y		1	<u> </u>	\vdash		t										 	•		1
Parking for labor is included	ŤΫ	Y		1	1	Ι-		1									一	 	ı		+
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	TY	TY		1					1							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	 	ऻ──		1-
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y						1									1	1	1		+
Per plans and Specs	TY	Y		1		Г		1								1	1	1	-		1
Addendum 1,2 Acknowledged	TY	Y		1		\vdash								-					t	·	+
	TT	1	1			Ī											t	T	1		1
04 22 00 Concrete Unit Masonry	Y	Y		1 .															1		1
CMU at Support Building	Y	Y		Γ		Г															1
CMU at Site Walls	Y	Y		1		П		П									Г				1
Integral Colored CMU	Y	Y		1		T											1		1		1
Set HM Frames	Y	Y		Τ		П		П					-			1					1
Reinforcing for CMU		TY		T			[1		1		1
Integral Water Repellent (by Waterproofing)	N.	IN		T		T-		T					_				Ì		1		1
Install lintels, embeds	Y	TΥ		1													1		T	1	1
Insulation	Y	N.	\$7,500				· · · · · ·											1	1	1	†
																		1	\Box		
Bond Required	HVI.							<u> </u>									\Box				I
	+	4	ministracija atele atel	_	1	├		! —			1				<u> </u>		┡-	ļ	L	ļ	┸
ADJUSTED BASE BIL	4	 	\$166,260	4	\$0	!	\$0	╙	\$0	Ш	\sqcup	\$0		\$0		\$0	1_	\$0	L	\$0	<u> </u>
Aiternates / Unit Prices	$oldsymbol{ol}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}$		L		<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>						l				<u> </u>	L	

> Included in bild - Not included in bild	± 1	P.	ect Name: SDL ect Location: B	- Tetr	ninal Redevelopr	neni			Date: 6/10/2017			-	and the second of	: ::	ir filo	ļ. · .	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	. : :	.a. (11)	. ; ;	ya		
	æ 🗀	Able	Steel	Bell S		Sch	uff Stael	JB 8	lyst: Stoel		Rice Cedar Steel	<u>. </u>	d Slee		Steel	Amb	er Sleet	Enc	ore Steel	Αŭ	ed Metal Produ	Aga	ste St
januaring alamaga kergili jawa garapi eta 2001.	Denined	1				_						_											
	景上	·								 										 .	·		
Been Bid			\$1,395,859		. \$1,223,139		\$1,315,000		\$1,401,845		Teamed val Bell S	toe.	No Bid, Too Busy		Declined	Ξ	Decined		Declined		Declined		Dac
Scope Items:	-	\vdash				-	 	-	Late Proposal	\vdash	ļ 	_		H		H		⊢	 	-		\vdash	+-
)una Bloi Form	Ÿ	Y		Y		Y		10				_							·	1	1	-	-
CIP - GL Only Credit	Ŷ	Y		Y		Ÿ		2179 2179		-						-		I		_		\sqsubseteq	\Box
ounn Scape of Work a Survey	Ŧ	17		2	\$8.000	Y				-	·	_		Н		Н		╁			 	⊢	┿
uch-up of Shop finished primer	Ÿ	Ÿ		N.	\$8,000 \$5,500	Ÿ														匚			
e protection for welding operations	¥.	PRATE	# 1 # 000	8/4	\$16,800	Y	915.000	├		-	 					H		1			 		\perp
			3 18,000		313,000	Y	\$10,000	┰		-		_		\vdash			-	\vdash	 	┨		┢	+
r JE Dunn Project Schedule	Ÿ	Y		Ŷ		Ý								П				L					
natruction Sequence / Logistics	XI.	13			·			 —	ļ	├	<u> </u>			_		Н		-		 		Ľ	╁
D Safety Requirements/Menuel	ψt	† † †						1		 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_						H	 	Н		\vdash	+-
s Tax - Excluded	ŸĪ	Y		LY		Y		Y											İ				\perp
plans and Specs	∜	₩.						₽÷	·	╁		_	ļ			H		┝	ì	⊢		⊢	-
				<u>'</u>				-		 		_	t			-		\vdash	 	-		╌	╁╌
Structural Steel Framing	Y	ĮΫ́		Ÿ		Ÿ		Y				_		L.,			ļ	Ι.		L			Ι
Reams	₹┼	↓		- *	 	Ť	 	 \	 	 				\vdash		\vdash	 	├	 	+-	 		+-
Beam Untels	Ÿ	Y		Y		Y		Y										L					İ
nnel Framing	Ϋ́Т	Y		¥	ļ			¥	-	\vdash			-	ļ				匚		Г	<u> </u>		F
a Angles and Bent Plates	†	TY		Y		Y		Y		┼		-	 	Н		-	 	┢	 	╁	 		+-
e Angles	Ÿ	Y		Y		Y		Y	· ·	L								\vdash		L			1
l Framing	Υl	Y	1 .	Y	 	Ϋ́	 			\vdash			 	⊢		-		-	· · · · ·	H	 	1	+-
pet Freming	Ÿ	Ϋ́				Y		ĮΥ										\vdash		t		\vdash	$^{\perp}$
Mount Equipment Supports	Y	Y		N:	\$10,000	Y		Y		Ε									1	F			-
Architecturally Exposed Structural Steel	┰┼	Y		Ý	 	Ŧ		Y	 	\vdash		 -	 	├-		\vdash	-	 -	 	╁╌	+	╢	+-
6	Ÿ	Ÿ		Ý										L.						L		亡	
		₩		- v		V	ļ	 		 			1					Γ	ļ	_	<u> </u>	\sqsubseteq	+
i Joints	Ϋ́			ÎΫ		ĮΥ		Ĭ.Y.						-					<u> </u>	H	+	\vdash	+
g Span Joist Girders	Y.	Y		Y		Y		ĬΫ		Ι									<u> </u>	Γ	ļ	\Box	=
t Bridging	\\				er ron	1	\$ \$5.500	ľ		+-	 	-		⊢	 	-	 	+-	 	╁	<u> </u>	 	+
	\neg	1				Г						Ε-						T	1	t.		<u>L</u>	1-
Steel Decking				Ÿ						ļ				_		_	-						T
I Decking I Penetration Supports	÷	Y	 							+	 	\vdash	 	\vdash	-		 	+	 	+-	+	├	+-
		\mathbf{I}						1											<u> </u>			L	L
	.	ĮŸ.	ļ		ļ					1		<u> </u>		-		-		1_		1		Γ	
dens	ΥT	77		ŀΫ				Ť	 	\vdash		-	 	 			 	┼	+	╁	 	-	+
ade	V1	7		Ý			J	İΫ		二		_							1	Γ			#
at Embed Coord Prior to Final Concrete Design	X		\$15,000	棴	\$15,000 \$27,670	₩	\$15,000	44	\$15,000	+	 	-	 	\vdash			 	╁		+-		┢	+
ish Bollards (Install by Concrete)	ΥI	ĮΥ.	300,000	ΙY	301,070	ĪΫ		Y		1				\vdash			<u> </u>	t		t	 	\vdash	1
Mounted Pole 6,9,10/18542	Ý	Ÿ		Y		3/	\$2,000	Y.		F				Г		ļ		\sqsubset		L			\bot
3 Pine and Tube Railings	ᆔ	┰		Y	 	ŧΨ	 	1 v	 	+-	 		 	 -	 	 	 	+-	 	+	 	├~	+-
drails	Y	Ÿ		Ÿ		Ý				1								匚		1			
	Ą	10	ļ	V		l ⊽	+	-	 	-	 	H	 	\vdash	ļ <u>-</u>	-	· · · · · ·	1	ļ	1		1	+
	ψİ		\$25,200		\$23,133					1			t			<u> </u>		1-	1	t	1	\vdash	+
		1	[1			I			_				Г			1
p Drawing Allowance - 8ld Package 2	7	670	\$30,000	en/H	\$30,000		\$30,000		\$30,000	+	 	 	 	+		\vdash		╁	+	-	 	 -	+-
d Required	N	N		<i>M</i> :		ΑN	1			1								L		L		L	上
	Į.	1		1.	53320952E32	L				1		_		ļ. —	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		Ļ	ļ	Γ		匚	I
ADJUSTED BASE BID	j		\$1,571,059	1	\$1,439,742	ı	\$1,487,700	11	\$1,582,045	1	\$ 0		\$0	l l	\$0		\$0	1	\$0	Ц.	\$0	1	_
	protection for welding operations inc Cable Rat at Exterior - Fall Protection weld Front End Documents Je Courn Project Schedule nationation Sequence / Logistics king for labor is included Safaty Requiremental/Menuel 1 fax - Excluded labor is included Safaty Requiremental/Menuel 1 fax - Excluded labor sequence Indum 1,2 Acknowledged Structural Steet Framing Columns Jearn Jear	protection for welding operations Y proceding in Cable Ral at Exertor - Fell Protection Y well of the Cable Ral at Exertor - Fell Protection Y well of the Cable Ral at Exertor - Fell Protection Y well of the Cable Ral at Exertor - Fell Protection Y protection Y protection Y procedure of the Cable Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral Ral	protection for welding operations in Cable Rail at Exterior - Fall Protection in Cable Rail at Exterior - Fall Protection in Cable Rail at Exterior - Fall Protection weed Front End Documents Y Y Y instruction Sequence / Logistice Y Y Y retrieved Sendedie Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	protection for welding aparatons in Cable Rat at Extender - Fall Protection Y I ST State Control of Cable Rat at Extender - Fall Protection Y I ST State Control of Cable Rat at Extender - Fall Protection Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I Star Scholled Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I ST Count Project Schedule Y Y Y I Steel Joek Framing Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Decking Y Y Y Y I Steel Dec	protection for weeking operations	protection for welding page abone Y Y S18,000	protection for welding pages does	protection for welding persidents	protection for welding persidons	protection for welding operations Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	protection for welding operations	protection for welding operations	protection for welding parasitations Y Y Y ST \$18,000 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	protection for welding operandoes Y Y State	protection for weiging generations Y Y 315,000 N	protection for welding operations V V State	protection for welding operations Y Y Y S18,000 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	Profession for welding generation Y Y S \$19,000 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	protection for welding generations V	Profession of welding operations V V S15,000 X	Profession of welding sper shows V		Interest the rest of the property of the pro

09E - Millwork and Finish Carpantry Y = included in bid	8		ect Name: SDL ect Location: S				jan sürək görüli,	Bld Ans	lvst	Jav	Lance.	11.5	104 (400)	4.0		`:`	Sant Sign		医肾髓切迹	:
N = Not Included in bid	A Res		Great Organizat				C, Inc	Тгво	le Partner Name	Tred	e Partner Name	Trac	de Partner Name	Ţ					de Partner N	er
	Dasined	-				1								-				-		
Base Bid			\$33,038	dd:d	DECLINED	Ass	OECLINED : 1.46	H	. 1011				farger skill	F			F 1723, 41 1			_
eneral Scope Items:						1		}						1				t		-1
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	Y												L				П		_
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Ÿ	Y												L						_
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	Y				I								Γ			-	Г	1	_
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y	Y				L								Т				Г	1	
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Y												L				Ι	1	_
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Ÿ	Y				<u> </u>								Г						_
Parking for labor is included	Y	Y		<u> </u>		<u> </u>								L				Ι		Ξ
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Y	Y	L		<u> </u>	<u> </u>								.l_						_
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y				<u> </u>		L						Γ		سا		Ш	L	
Per plans and Specs		Y	ļ	_	L	1		_		L		_	1	1		L	L	<u> </u>		
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Ľ	Y		ļ		╄-		-		Ш		_	L	4		<u> </u>		1	 	
	اجيا	1	ļ		 	↓	ļ	—	 	\vdash			ļ	1		L	ļ	ـــ	 	_
6 41 13 - Wood Veneer Faced Cabinats	I X I	Ÿ			 	₩		-		ļ.,		_	 	4-		\vdash	ļ	ļ	ļ	_
PLC-1		Y	ļ	⊢-	ļ	₩	 			щ		<u> </u>		+		-		⊢		
North Hanger Conference Room	Ÿ	Y				₩-	·	ш		<u> </u>			 	4-			ļ	↓		
North Hanger Break Room	Ÿ	Y			 	₩	 	Н		Ь.		<u> —</u>	ļ	+-		-	ļ <u>.</u>	╄		_
North Hanger Waiting Room	Y			├ —		⊢		ш		-		<u> </u>		╀				┺	<u> </u>	
South Hanger Break Room	Y	Y		Ļ	ļ	₩		<u> </u>				_	ļ	4-		<u> </u>	ļ. <u> </u>	₽-		_
		ļ.,		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ــــ		<u> </u>				ļ		1_		L_		 		
5 41 16 - Plastic Laminate Clad Cabinets	Y	Y		┞—		!		L		L		Ь.	<u></u>	4-		L_		ـــــ		_
PLC-2	Ш	ĮΫ		<u> </u>		ـــــ		L				L		┸				!	1	
North Hanger Conference Room	ĮΥ	Y		╙	<u> </u>	١						_		4-		ــــ		ļ.,	1	
North Hanger Break Room	Y	Ϋ́		Н—	↓	↓		.		ш				4-		┞		↓_	J	_!
North Hanger Walting Room	LY.	Y		ļ				⊢						╀		ــــــا		 		
South Hanger Break Room	M	Y				\vdash		├				<u> </u>	ļ	╀		ــــــ		↓_		_
	ابا	 		├		╄		! —				┞		╀		<u> </u>	·	┺		_
2 36 61 - Quartz Agglomerate Countertops	Y	Y		ļ	ļ	-		_		<u> </u>				4-		! —	<u> </u>	ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	<u> </u>	
SSUR-1	Y	¥.	-	├		⊢						┞		╀		┞		⊢	 	_
North Hanger Conference Room	Ÿ	Y.	ļ	ļ	-	┿	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		_			 	╀		 - -	ļ	 		!
North Hanger Break Room	I.	Ÿ		⊢	ļ	╂		\vdash				⊢		╀		⊢		┡	 	'
i North Hanger Waiting Room				ļ	 	╂			ļ	_		├		4-		├-		1-	ļ	_'
South Hanger Break Room	14	Y		├		⊢		-		-		<u> </u>	ļ	╀	 -	ļ	ļ	1	_	_
		↓		-	ļ	₩	ļ	┡-				⊢-		╀		-	<u> </u>	₽	↓	_
X XX XX - Concrete Countertops		ŢΥ		 	 	\vdash	 	<u> </u>	ļ	\vdash	L	Ь	├	+		-		+		
SSUR-2	LŸ	ŢŸ.	 	 		1	ļ	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		I —	[+		⊢		⊢		_'
North Hanger Break Room		Y	ļ <u>'</u>	₩	_	 	 	┡	ļ	L		!	ļ	+		L	ļ	_	Ļ	
North Hanger Walting Room		Y		-								!		+		<u> </u>	ļ	_	 	_
South Hanger Break Room	Y	Y			 -	╄-	····	-		\vdash			 	╀		Н—	├ ─	┺	 	
	ابرا	997		₩	 	 —	 	 -		⊢		├-	ļ	╁		⊢		↓		_
Backing for Cabinets	ĮΥ	AL.	ļ	ـــــ	 	+	ļ	 		 -	·	├		4		<u> </u>	 	┺	 	
					 	1-	ļ	<u> </u>		\vdash		├—	 	1-	-	١	ļ	! —	↓	_
Bond Required		17		├	ļ	╀	 	├—		-		⊢	 	╀		╄	 	╀	 -	_
ADJUSTED BASE BID		+	\$33,038		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$(1	\$0		\$0	\vdash	\$	\$0
Viternates / Unit Prices	[\vdash	 	<u> </u>		1	 	H		\vdash		<u> </u>		F		-		F		_
Alternate 1 - Additional Parking Canopies Alternate 2 - Storefront at Offices	1	+-	 	┼	 	+	 	 		<u> </u>		\vdash	 	╁		┰	 	+-	 	
PARELLENG Z - STOREHOLL BY OTHERS	1		 	 	 	t		 					 	+		-	 	t	 	-
	Ţ		1							_		T	[†		1		1	<u> </u>	_
Cost for Early Shop Drawings on BP2	i i	1	1	1		1		-	1	١.		1	1	1	1	l	1	1		
(Concrete, Steel, Glass & Glazing, Metal Panels)	1				L	_	L	<u></u>	<u> </u>			l .		L	_1	L	I	L	1	
	T																			~

Exhibit C to Contrac
No. 2017-060-COS
Page 25 o'

CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE COPIED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN Page 1 of 1

Exhibit C to Page 26 Contract No. 2017-060-COS

07F Metal Wall Panels	ĕ	Proj	ect Name: SDL	- Teri	minal Redevelo	oment	Bid	Date: 6/10/201	7 at	2:00 p.m. MST			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		<u> </u>			_
Y = Included in bid	₩.						Ana	lyst:	Davi	d Hanson		alig byllig		e (11)		111111		
N = Not included in bid	8	Gen	3 AZ LLC	Kova	ch	KT Fabrication	Prog	ressive Roofing	Class	sic Roofing								
	8	1					1										I	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	嬉	1																
	a	1		L			l			· .	L						I	-
en en en en alla alla alla alla alla all		-	\$218,340	Lestr	\$221,700	Declined	teggs	Declined	3340	Declined				1.	والمراجعة والمراجعة والمراجعة		ini i	_
General Scope Items:																		
JE Dunn Bld Form														1				
DCIP - GL Only Credit							<u> </u>				<u> </u>							
JE Dunn Scope of Work		Y		Υ			1_											
Reviewed Front End Documents		Y		Υ			<u> </u>		\Box									
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule		Y		Υ			<u> </u>											
Construction Sequence / Logistics		ŢΥ		_					\Box									
Parking for labor is included		Y		Υ			_				L			<u>_</u>				
JED Safety Requirements/Manual		Y		Υ			1		\sqcup		<u> </u>			L				
Sales Tax - Excluded		Y		Υ			<u> </u>				<u> </u>			1_				
Per plans and Specs		TY		Υ			L.,				<u> </u>							
Addendum 1 Acknowledged		Y		Υ			<u> </u>								<u> </u>			
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Y	Y		Υ.		L., I.,	_		\perp		L							
05 75 00 Decorative Formed Metal		MVZ					╄		$\vdash \vdash$		ļ			1				
07 25 00 Weather Barriers	┨╌┤	1-1					╆				╁─			+		+-		—
Weather barrier at metal panels	V	TY		Y		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		1		1			+		-		
Wealther barrier at metal pariers	 	 		_		 	1		┱		1			+	 -	-		-
07 42 13 Insulated Metal Wall Panels	H	1 1		\vdash			1-		\vdash		1-			1	 			_
Interior and Exterior 3' wide continous	程題	TERRE		ALC:		<u> </u>	1		H		†			+	 			_
composite metal panel at Hanger Doors	腳	N		N		<u> </u>	1				i		1	1				
Mockup (work in place)	Ÿ	Ŷ		Υ		- 	1				1			1				_
MT-2		ΤŸ		Y		† † * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	†				t			1		-		_
MT-4		† † †		Y	· ·	 	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		1	l		1	1			_
Sofflits at hanger doors		ŤΫ		Y		1-1	1	<u> </u>			†			1	 			_
Coping Cap		117	\$36,000	Y		 	T	† 		<u> </u>	1	1		1	1			
Coping Cup :		1	755,300	L.		<u> </u>					<u> </u>			1-	1			
Bond Regulred	N	N		N			\Box							\Box				_
		1	*254.240	<u> </u>	anne conturat	 		**	\vdash		 	- 40		. _				
ADJUSTED BASE BID		\vdash	\$254,340	<u> </u>	\$221,700	\$(4	\$0	├	\$0	!	\$0	\$(4	\$0		\$0	-
Alternates / Unit Prices		لسبك	l	Ц	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	┸	i	ш		ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	L			اا			

CONFIDENTIAL, NOT TO BE COPIED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN Page 1 of 1

Exhibit C to Contract No. 20
Page 29 of 61

08E Overhead doors	έl	Proje	ect Name: SDL	- Terr	ninal Redevelor	omer	it i i	Bid	Date: 5/10	0/201	7 al	2:00 p.m. MST		1.00	:						
Y = Included in bid								Anai	lyst:		Davi	id Hanson	31.				30	Warred A		(2) (1913年):	. —
N = Not included in bid	æ [Cook	son Door Sales	DH P	ace	Min	er SW														
	용[1-1
	張し	<u> </u>																			
	۵ſ	I																			\top
Base Bid			\$10,696	(1:::1	\$12,850	,	\$7,419	:":	2 1 F 2 1			5.4 (4.5)		وكوهم وأخفت وأرجو		Geette staas	3.43			Action 1	1
																					+
General Scope Items:		\Box																			+
JE Dunn Bld Form	Υ			Υ																	\neg
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Υ			Υ																	1
	Υ	II		Υ		Y													_†		7
Reviewed Front End Documents		Y		Υ		Υ													_		1-1
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Ÿ			Ŷ		Υ															\dashv
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Ŷ			>		Y								_			_		\neg		1
Parking for labor is included	Υ			~		Υ															1
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Ÿ			Y		Υ															
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y			Υ		Υ															\neg
Per plans and Specs	Ÿ			Y		Y													\Box		
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Υ			Y	-	Υ															
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Y	Ÿ		Y		Y				L											7-
						<u> </u>					L			,							
08 33 23 Overhead Coiling Doors	_					L					1_1							I			7
Automatic OH Coiling Door - Single Phase 115 V.	Υ			Υ		Υ															
Locking device w/ Cylinder and 3 keys	Y	Y		Υ		Y					Ш										T
MFG: Comell, OH Door Corp, Southwest Rollling Steel Door	Y	Y		Υ		Y															
Tatillor and interest of the control	Y			Υ		Υ															T
	Y			Υ		ΙÝ															
	Υ			~		N	\$498	Ш													
	Ŷ			Υ		Υ															
Bond Required	17							Ш													
		Ш				L.,	<u> </u>	$oldsymbol{ol}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}}$													T
ADJUSTED BASE BID			\$10,696		\$12,850		\$7,917			\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0	T	\$	न
Alternates / Unit Prices																			_		1

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-090-COS

08F Hanger Doors	ğ	Pro	ect Name: SDL	- Teri	minal Redevelo	pme	nt 	Bld Date: 5/10/	2017 at	2:00	p.m. MST		tale committee	17.3	Law Serger Series				
Y = Included In bid	好			cotts	Dale, AZ	100		Analyst	: Dav	rid He	anson			210	<u>Proprior all all all all all all all all all al</u>		<u>nja kurina k</u>	12.0	
N = Not included in bld	8 E	Nord	00	DH P	ace	Min	er SW												
	1 2	1												<u> </u>					
	Desired	-	;	1			-		- -					\vdash					
Base Bld		: ===	\$394,500	14.1.	\$278,061	1 1 1/	\$230,840	al designation			t garta alami	;;;;	41-12 (12 - 13-13-1	1, 1, 2		L Byr	أشور تجز الخطور	71.1	Filiplera e .
	1_1					 _	Late bld								1				
neral Scope Items:		1		Ш		<u> </u>								_					
JE Dunn Bld Form	Y	Y				<u> </u>				Ш					ll				
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	_				<u> </u>													
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	Y		Y		<u> </u>													
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y	Y		Y												\Box			
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Y		Y										L		\Box			
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Y	Y		Υ		1		_						\Box					
Parking for labor is included		Υ		Ÿ.		L													
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Y	Ϋ́		Y	l														
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y		Y										П		$\neg \neg$			
Per plans and Specs	Y	Y		Υ		N.	Alamo Door							T					
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	Y							7	T				T				_	-
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Y	Y				П								i –		\neg			
	П	1											1	1					
34 16 Hangar Doors		T												П					
Furnish install and commission hanger doors	Y	Y		Y					\neg					1	1	\neg		\vdash	
Factory authorized service rep for start up and tr	T	Ŷ		Y		Г								1					
Final adjustment and balancing of installed door	Y	Ŷ		Y	1	1				1				i					
Industrial Door Contractors or Norco Mfg	Y	Y		Y		t	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-				_		⇈				-	
5 year warranty from date of acceptance	Y			Y					\neg	1				t	 	\dashv			
Quality assuamce of 10 year minimum		Y		Ÿ	 	1	 		+	-				+	 	-1			
Embossed metal panels 30 exterior and 27 inter					\$228,850	HI TE	\$228,850		- †	 -		_	 	 	† ····			 	
Fiberglass batt Insulation				IN	7-20-1000	_	,,,,,,,			1		\vdash		1	†	- 		_	
Personel man door in one leave		Ϋ́		Ϋ́		\vdash								 	 	-		-	
Weather Seals	7	Ϋ́	 	ΙŻ		1			\dashv	1		_		┪~	 				
Electronic Controls		ΤŸ		 `		 	 		+	! 				\vdash	 			-	
Doors Painted	1	#122	\$7,000	RENIE	pre finished	 	 	-		+			· · · · · ·	╁	 			├	
Anchor Bolts		Y	\$7,000	RIGA DE	pre milaneu	╁	 	 	-	\vdash				┼~	 			<u> </u>	
		1	ļ		 	⊢	 			+			ļ <u>-</u>	⊢	 			├	
Setting of rails Bond Required		MX		9170		├-	I			\vdash			 	╂	 			┡	
Bona Required		PALE		Barya		\vdash	 		+-	1	-			╁╌				⊢	
ADJUSTED BASE BID			\$401,500		\$506,911		\$459,690		\$0		\$0		\$0	1	\$0		\$0		\$0
ernates / Unit Prices	1	1		1	 	1		·					·	1		-		├	

t No. 2017, 12:49 PM **2017**, 10:49 PM

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS
Page 32 of 61

09A - Framing and Drywall Y = Included In bid	Desired Respons	Pro	ject Name: SDL Ject Location: S	- Ter	minal Redevelo	pmer	nt Harris (Harris (Harris	Bld	Date: 5/10/201	7 at	2:00	p.m. MS1				24 jiran dari	: 1 .		_
Y = Included in bid N = Not included in bid	i Se l			F&K	dale, AZ	MK	<u> </u>	Da.	te King	Jay	Lanc	v Thermal						<u>in wasang nagr</u>	
N = Not madded iff bid	151	Deit	y Diywall	COIN		INK	·	rei	ie Kilig	Kite	rvva	y memia	_		⊢				├ ─
	유	 				1-				-		1	<u> </u>		_				 -
Cart 17 Lend 1 despréparées source et Lauben, l'agestionnes	1 ž	 				 		⊢											
minimus and property and the party of Base Bld		-	\$124,800	:	\$159,400	1.:-	-1.11 \$152,354	120	Ma Dia			La trabalitat	37.	(EDF),		Logica SECENSI	_	12.20.00	
All and a declaration of the fair this dealers and the second of the sec	-	1			Ψ100,400	1	₩ (01,004	77.77	THO DIG TO THE TOTAL	_	1	1		1		3 - 15 1 M 22 1 Me 2	- 11 -	rusam jumba	\vdash
General Scope Items:						<u> </u>		_	 	\vdash	<u> </u>			 	·				_
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	Y		Y		Υ				Y									-
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	ĪΥ		Y		·Y		Г	I	Y	1	1		1					Γ-
JE Dunn Scope of Work		TY		Υ		Y				Υ								1	$\overline{}$
Reviewed Front End Documents		Y		Υ		Y				Y		Ī	Γ					1	\vdash
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule		TY		Y		Υ				Y								·	
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Y	Ý	1	Υ		Ŷ				Y									-
Parking for labor is included	Y	Y		Ŷ		Ŷ				Y	T			1	Г				
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Y	Ŷ		Y		Y				Y	1			T					<u> </u>
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y		Y		Y				Ÿ	1	 		1		1			_
Per plans and Specs		İΥ		Y		İΥ		Г	1	Y			_	1	\vdash	 	_		<u> </u>
Addendum 1 Acknowledged		İΫ		Y		ĺΫ		1		Ÿ	1-		-	1	t	1	_	l	\vdash
/ dedicari i / tomorioage	ऻ ─॑ऻ	۲÷				Ė		t		-	†	i 	-	 	 	 			
05 40 00 - Cold Formed Metal Framing	17	┪	Incl. above	Ÿ	Incl. above	İΫ	Incl. above	┢	 	\vdash		 	-	· 	┥			 	
Exterior of hanger buildings			Incl. above		Incl. above	ΤŸ	Incl. above	-		 	+	-		 	 	 			⊢
Extens of hanger buildings	 ` 	tċ	mor above	⊢∸	17.01. 00010	+	moi. above		 	┢	┰		\vdash	 	 —			 	⊢
06 16 00 - Sheathing	l⊽ †	t⊽	Incl. above	v	Incl. above	1 ~	Incl. above	┢		├	\vdash	 	-	 	 			 	ऻ─
Moisture Resistant Sheating Board			Incl. above		incl. above		Incl. above	┥		1	1	 		+	 —		_		
Densglass on back of parapet wall		272					Incl. above	┪	 	-	 	 	-	·	├		_		\vdash
Densyless on back of parapet wan	╁	-	411,000	1000	\$1.7,000	 `	11101. 40070	╁	 	┢	+	 	⊢		┥		_		
07 21 00 - Thermal Insulation	TY		Ind. above	₩	Incl. above	┰	Incl. above	┢	 	ŀΨ	Ind	above	⊢	 	 	 			
Fiberglass Batt and Mineral Wool			Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	╁	 	Ÿ	111111	\$5,100	Ь—		├				
		H VE						⊢	 	Ý	 	\$14,400	├		├	·	_		⊢
Ridgid Board	} ' 	Part S	\$10,200	EST.	\$10,200	HELL	\$10,200	├	· 	 '	┼	\$14,400	├—	 	├	·	_		├
OT 04 42 Panetesting Eigestonning	 √	l ⊽	Incl. above	- √	Incl. above	l ∨	Incl. above	⊢	 	╌	⊢	 			⊢				┢
07 84 13 - Penetration Firestopping			Incl. above		incl. above		Incl. above	⊢	·	 	\vdash	 			 				ऻ
At Perimeter of gyp board assemblies	₽	+-	IIICI. BDOVE		HICH BOUVE	ا ٺ	Inci. above	⊢		-	-	ļ	!- -		⊢				⊢
09 22 16 - Non-Structural Metal Freming	 ↓	┨╌	Incl. above		Incl. above	10	Incl. above	⊢	 	⊢	-	 	-		⊢		<u> </u>	 	! —
			Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	⊢	 	₩	+-	 		+	-		<u> </u>		! -
Metal Strapping @ blocking/backing			incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	-	 	├	 	 		 		 -	-		 —
Walls and Ceilings	╁╌┤	+	IIIG. BDOVE	├	mid. Boove	1 1	mci. above	₩	 	-	-	 	-	 	1—	 	<u> </u>	 	-
	╁╌┼	╁┈	last share		last share	1	In al. abassa	 	 	⊢	┼-	ļ	⊢	-	├	 		 	<u> </u>
09 29 00 - Gypsum Board	Y.		incl. above	Ÿ	Incl. above		Incl. above	₩	 	 	 	 	⊢	 	├	ļ	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ــــ
Tile Backer Board at Wet Wall Locations			incl. above		incl. above			├-	 	├ ─	┼	 	⊢		├	 	<u> </u>	 	⊢
Walls			Incl. above	Y	incl. above		Incl. above	⊢	 	₩	+	ļ	⊢		├	l			ـــ
Hard Ceifings	++	├ Ÿ	Incl. above	 	Incl. above	╀	Incl. above	\vdash	 	\vdash	⊢	 	├-	 	⊢	 		 	⊢
						上			<u> </u>			 					_		
Bond Required	171	!N		∦N∦				匚		Ш			_						
AD HIGTED BAGE BIE	1-	+-	\$755.500		\$190,100	-	\$168,664	⊬	\$0	├	┼	\$19,500	⊢	\$0	\vdash	\$0	\vdash	- 40	├—
ADJUSTED BASE BID	4	-	Total Service	 -	\$130,100	+	\$100,004	╀	\$0	⊢	├	\$15,500	├	1 30	⊢	\$0	<u> </u>	\$0	<u> </u>
Alternates / Unit Prices	11	1	1	L	1	1	<u> </u>	ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		<u>. </u>	1	ļ	L	٠	_	1	_	Щ	Щ

No. 2017-060-COS

Page 33 of 61

Y Included in bid	용	Pro]	ect Location: 8	cotts	dale, AZ	200	FROM TO A SHAPPING F	Ana	alyst:	Jay	Lance	1.59	ripischerikieri	: 15		940	R de Loaniari		epithiainni.
N ≠ Not included in bid	Desired Respon	Berg	Drywall	E&K		МΚ	В	Per	nnIngton Paint	Pete	King	Cha	rles Court	<u> </u>					
	됩니																		
	图目		·											L.					
		_			Y	<u></u>							<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	_					
Base Bld	41	::	\$184,500		\$171,900		\$175,782		\$182,573	ded	No Bid	.: .:	\$3,368		-,:7,23		<u> 41,4-41,0</u>		Charles Constant
General Scope Items:	-+1	\vdash					 	\vdash	† · · · · · · · ·					┢	· 	\dashv			
JE Dunn Bld Form	Ϋ́	Y		Y		Υ		Υ				MI.			†	\Box			
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Υ	Υ		Y		Υ		Ÿ				Υ		-	1				
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Ÿ	Y		Υ		Y		Y				M			† • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				
Reviewed Front End Documents	Ϋ́	Y		Ý		Ÿ		Y			1	Y			-	-			
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Υ	Y		Υ		Υ		Ÿ				Y			·			\Box	
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Υ 1	Ÿ		Y		Υ	1	Y	1			Ÿ	1		· · · · · ·	1		\vdash	
	Υ	Υ		Y		Y	1	Y				Ÿ	<u> </u>	_	1	\vdash			
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Y	Υ		Υ		Y		Ÿ				Ÿ		\vdash	1 -	\vdash			
Sales Tax - Excluded		Y		Y		Υ		Υ	1			Ÿ	1			1			
Per plans and Specs	Y	Y		N.	Not per paint sp	Y		Ŷ				Y		-	1			-	
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	Y		Υ		Ŷ		Y				Y				_			
									1	ŀ	1	_		-		\rightarrow			
9 91 00 - Painting	Y	Y	Incl. above	Ÿ	Incl. above	Ÿ	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above			N						-	
PT1-PT87	ΥT	Ŷ	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above		Incl. above			7		_	 	-			
	Υİ	Y	Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	\vdash	 	11		┢╌	 	\vdash			
	ΥĦ		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above			N		-	+	\rightarrow			
The state of the s	ŸΗ		incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	 	 			_	 			\vdash	
			Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		i	Ň			 	-			
			Incl. above		incl. above		Incl. above		incl. above			M		_	 	\rightarrow			
		27.0	\$1,950		IIIOI, above	Ϋ́		43		 	 	N		H	 	\dashv		-	
Coping at parapet	÷H	****	ψ.,οοο	- -	+	<u> </u>	 	2	40,048	┢	├	HALL P		⊢				-	_
9 96 53 - Electrostatic Spray Coatings	γH	7	incl. above	Y	incl. above	Y	 	V	Incl. above	┢	 	31.5	 	⊢	+	┝╼╌┼		-	
			Incl. above		Incl. above	217				_	 	1		┝┈	+	-			
			Incl. above		Ind. above	Y			Incl. above	_				┝		┝─┼			
			Incl. above		Incl. above	Ÿ			Incl. Above		<u> </u>			⊢	+	\vdash			
		NY.		e i		10		∀	1	 	 	2222			-	\vdash			
o and areand promoting reins in neigera		1			1	تسر	†	 '-	 	 	 	- A		⊢	 	\vdash		 	
9 97 13 - Special Coatings	√ H	∀	Incl. above	Ý	Incl. above	Υ	 	Y	 	 	 	Y	Incl. above	\vdash	 	\vdash		\vdash	
	Ϋ́		\$2,730		Incl. above	41				\vdash	 		Incl. above	├	-	\vdash		\vdash	
			incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		incl. above	├	 		Incl. above	\vdash	 	┝╼╌┼		\vdash	 -
	ÝΗ		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above		Incl. above	 	#	11/1		\vdash	 	├		\vdash	
riange trails	\dot{H}	\vdash		_ <u></u>	1	Ė		⊢	11,21, 90070	\vdash	 	HAA				\vdash		Н	
120 Hours for Trade Damage Touch-up	717	4/2	\$6,840	Y	Incl. above	20	\$5,575	21	\$6,610	 	i					 		⊣	
FRP Wall Paneling	XII	慚	20,010	MV		7 7	+5,57	Ň		t	 	2			+				
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					1		1	***		1	 -i	-	1			 		\vdash	
Bond Regulred		N)		ana		al VI		MI.			 	MV.	 	├		\vdash		\vdash	
Done required					1	-	1	-						-	 			\vdash	
ADJUSTED BASE BID	_	-	\$196,020		\$171,900	┪	\$220,298	┢	\$220,120	\vdash	\$0	_	\$3.368	├	\$0	\vdash	\$0	-	
ADJUSTED BASE DID	1	LL	16(0)(医乳炎医尿管炎)		1 4171,500		W0,200	ı	W44U, 14U	1	1 40		40,000		; ⊅ U		au!		\$0

Page 34 of 61

TL-2 Porcelain Floor Tile	09C - Tile and Stone	ğ	Pro	ect Name: SDI	Ter	minal Redevelo	pme	nt 	Bld	Date: 5/10/201	7 al 7	2:00 p.m. MST	er jal	arati di sa Pesili	e i vise jeles		Antiki dagan	ationalism.	
Base Bid S20,698 S11,976 No Bid No Bid No Bid S20,698 S11,976 No Bid No Bid S20,698 S11,976 No Bid S20,698 S11,976 S20,698 S11,976 S20,698 S11,976 S20,698 S11,976 S20,698	 ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** ** **	8			Scotts	dale, AZ		g to block or by the block	Ana	lyst:	Jay L	ance	: - ; : -	<u>rta i turu talah dajar</u>	<u> </u>	1,11	Halland Africk,		
Base Bid	N = Not included in pig	띭			Crea	tive Design	Spe	ectra	Sun	Country Floors	vvnoi	esale Floors	 -			┿-			
## Scope Items: JE Dunn Bid Form		Ĭ,	1002	2)230-2002	į	- · 	╂						├			╄			
## Scope Items: JE Dunn Bid Form		1 % I	Nati	e Kundert	+		 						⊢			+-		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	$-\!\!\!\!\!+\!\!\!\!\!-$
Separate Separate	Base Bld	_			134.	\$11,976	100	No Bid	aggi	No Bid		Vo Bld		gada sa distri					
JE Dunn Bid Form		Н	╂	ļ	<u> </u>		⊢	·	\vdash	 		- 		 		╂	-{		+
DCIP-GL Only Credit Y		V	╅ᢦ	 	V		1			 	_		-				 		
JE Dunn Scope of Work		ΙÝ			ΤŸ		 	 		1 -1			╁			+-	 		
Reviewed Front End Documents		ΙÝ		 		-	†	 	\vdash		\neg		┢	 		+	 		-+-
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule		Ý	Ý	· ·	İΥ		t		-	 	_		1			+			-+
Construction Sequence / Logistics		Y	Y		Ý	 	t-			1			t			┪			
Parking for labor is included		Y	Y		Y		Т					-	1	1		┪┈	- 		
Sales Tax - Excluded		Y	Y		Y		Т									╅	† 		$\neg \vdash$
Per plans and Specs	JED Safety Requirements/Manual				Ÿ		Ī									7			
Addendum 1 Acknowledged Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	Sales Tax - Excluded															T			\neg
B 30 13 - Tiling	Per plans and Specs																		
TL-2 Porcelain Floor Tile	Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	Y		<u> </u>		╁				_					-			
TL-3 Porcelain Wall Tile Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	09 30 13 - Tiling			 	Y		 	†		 	\dashv		H	 		╁	 		$-\vdash$
TL-4 Mosaic Wall Title	TL-2 Porcelain Floor Tile	Y			Ϋ́		I									\top			
Floor Prep	TL-3 Porcelain Wall Tile	·					Γ									T			
Wall Prep							1_									\perp			
Layout							L_	1	_									_ 1.	
TL-3 added at backsplash per addendum 2. 8/1A821 Bond Required N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	Wall Prep				<u> </u>		<u> </u>		_		\Box		L.,						
Bond Required Y Y Y Y Sol		Y	Y	<u> </u>	Y		1	J		1			L						
Bond Required N		J	,	İ	,	1							l			1			
ADJUSTED BASE BID \$20,689		╀┦	+-	 	 ' -		┼		┝	 			├	 		┰			\rightarrow
	Bond Required	171					上									#			
	ADJUSTED BASE BID	Н	+	\$20,689	-	\$11.976	-	\$0	-	\$0		\$0	┝	\$0		1	\$0	-	\$0
	Alternates / Unit Prices	1	-	 	1	1	1		\vdash	1	\vdash	- 	1	<u> </u>	 	┪┈			∸

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-960-COS

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-

99H - Carpet Y = Included In bid	Respon	Pro Pro	ject Name: SDI ject Location:	L - Terminal Redev Scotisdale, AZ	/elopm	ent	Bld Ana	Date: 5/10/201	7 at :	2:00 anc	p.m. MST e	7.				:		1,5	(Carrier	
N = Not included in bid	ě	Cre	ative Design	Spectra	ĪŠī	in Country	Who	olesale Floors	ReSc	ourc	•	JED	Allowance			Ė	1			٦Ė
		1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1"	ļ				Į.											t
	Desired			1	i				1	I.										t
	8	1		1	Ţ															\vdash
Base Bld		1	\$6,165	-lase No Bid at a	(6)3- 2 <u>-</u>	No Bld	1996	No Bid	:(#1)	No B	ild satilities)	ş.i	\$12,000		<u></u>		20 si2 j (2110)			
General Scope Items:		1_																		1
JE Dunn Bld Form	Y	T														L.		$\Box \Gamma$		1
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Υ																			\mathbf{I}
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Ŷ																			
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y		I	<u> </u>												L_				1_
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Υ									_		Ĺ			<u> </u>	<u> </u>				_
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Υ								Ш				I							1
Parking for labor is included	Y																			1
JED Safety Regulrements/Manual	Y															<u> </u>				Γ
Sales Tax - Excluded	>											<u> </u>	<u> </u>							
Per plans and Specs	Y		L				L.		1		<u> </u>		L			L				
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Ŷ				L				Ш			L_				1_				
		Ш.					L					L_				<u> </u>		\perp		1
09 65 13 - Resilient Wall Base			Incl. Above				L									I				
R8-1			Incl. Above				L									1				1
Roppe Rubber Base	Y	Υ	Ind. Above						1_1							1				Τ.
											-									Γ
]				L					<u> </u>				<u>L</u>				
09 68 13 - Tile Carpeting			Incl. Above						i	l		_				<u></u>	Ĺ			
CPT-1	Υ	Υ	Incl. Above				L					L.								
2'x2' Shew Carpet Tile			Incl. Above						11											1
Floor Prep			Incl. Above				L					1				L				
Transition Strips (Between Stone and Carpet)	Y	N.																		
									\coprod							L				
								I												T
Bond Required	N	MN:	4												L					\Box
															Ì	L				T
ADJUSTED BASE BID			\$6,165	5	\$0	\$0		\$0			\$0		\$12,000		\$0	Ī	\$0	\neg	\$0)
Alternates / Unit Prices			1	1			Π		I							T		_		7
Alternate 1 - Additional Parking Canopies		1	1		1			,				Ι				T		\neg		1
Alternate 2 - Storefront at Offices		1	1	1 1	\dashv		1					T								1
		1		1 1				1				Î		_	1	1				1-
Cost for Early Shop Drawings on BP2 (Concrete, Steel, Glass & Glazing, Metal Panels)																				
	1_	1	<u> </u>		i_		L_		igspace			_	ļ	L_		!	<u> </u>			1_
	1 7	1 [1	1		1		1	1 [F	}		1	1	1	1	1	1		1

Exhibit C to Contest No.
2017-060-COS
Proped: 6/9/2017, 12:50 PM

09I - Fluid Applied Flooring Y = Included in bid	Respons	Pro	Ject Name: SDL	Bid	Date: 5/10/201	7 at	2:00 p.m. MST	11.11		1,12	,	.15 A.2 5.3	<u>,</u> ,,,,	ere ere mil.	::	nergiel aus	
N = Not included in bid	l §	Ariz	ona Concrete Re	Ariz	ona Concrete R	Tec	hniquex	Pen	nington Paint	Cha	nes (ourt Constr	Der	ı-Mark		1 A - 1 A -	_
	Desired			7 112					ningtorr and	Cile		Our Corist		I-I-AGLY			
Base Bid			\$181,710	- 4	\$167,100		\$160,758		\$192,815		111	\$124,644	1	\$17,340			
General Scope Items:												 	H				
JE Dunn Bld Form	Y	Y		Υ		Υ		Ϋ		N			Г				
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	Υ		Y		Υ		Υ		Ÿ			Г				
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	Ŷ		~		Υ		Y		N							
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y	Υ		>		Υ		Υ		Ÿ	L		П	, , , , ,			
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Υ	Υ		>		Υ		ŢΥ		Y			Г				\Box
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Y	Y		Y		Y		Υ		Υ							
Parking for labor is included	Υ	Υ		Υ		Y		Υ		Y	<u> </u>	I					Г
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Y	Υ		Υ		Y		Y		Y		1	1				
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y		Υ		Y		Y		Y							
Per plans and Specs	Ŷ	Υ		N	ALTERNATE	N	ALTERNATE	Υ		Υ							
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	Ϋ́		Y		Υ		Y		Y	<u> </u>	ļ. <u></u>	_				
09 67 23 - Resinous Flooring	Y	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Ÿ	incl.	above	╁	 	_		
Epoxy Flooring	Y	Y	Ind. above	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Υ	incl. above	Υ	Incl.	above	T-				_
Minor floor prep	Y		Ind. above		Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Ÿ	ind.	above	T				
Test Slab Moisture Content	Y	Ý	Ind. above	Ŷ	Incl. above	Ÿ	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above	Ÿ	Incl.	above					
Moisture Mitigation	Y	N	\$164,962	M	\$164,962		\$55,020	27	\$70,020	Z		\$178,017	✝	 			
pH Testing	P		\$3,500	N		10	\$3,500	N	\$3,500			\$3,500					Г
Major Floor Prep	N			N		N.		N		N			I				
Control Joint Infill	Y	ĮΥ		Y		Y		Y		N		\$17,340	Y				
Bond Required	N.	N		1/2		N.		AN.		W		-		<u> </u>			_
ADJUSTED BASE BID		 	\$350,172		\$335,562	_	\$219,278	\vdash	\$266,335			\$323,501	\vdash	\$17,340		\$0	\vdash
Alternates / Unit Prices		\prod		L_{L}					I								

Page 38 of 61

Prio 60 CONTract No. 2017-066 COS

09J - Concrete Grinding and Polishing Y = Included in bid	bods	Pro	ect Name; SDL ect Location; S	cotts	dale, AZ	mei	it Lista in the second	Bld An	Date: 5/10/201	7 at Jay	2:00 p.m. MST Lance								Angli (S)	
N = Not included in bid	- Re	Ārīz	ona Concrete Re	Char	les Court	Inte	rior Concepts	Res	source Arizona	Tec	hnlquex								************	7
	Desired	-																		
Base Bld		-	\$12,000		\$21,047	31(4)	No Bid	viet	No Bld	99	No Bid capatelet	٠.,	77 (774 #) (77 A) 4997			11	. 7: 4 1	;+;)	trajal-upu	1
General Scope Items:	\Box					_				_										1-1
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	Y		N.													·			+-
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	Y		Υ.																1
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	Υ		N:														·		1
Reviewed Front End Documents		Y		Y																
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule		Y		Υ				_												T = 1
Construction Sequence / Logistics		Y		Υ				_	<u> </u>	L_					<u> </u>	<u> </u>	,			$T_{}$
Parking for labor is included		Y		Υ				ļ		_					·	L				
JED Safety Requirements/Manual		Y		Y							ļ					<u> </u>				
Sales Tax - Excluded		Y		Υ			ļ	L		_						ļ	l			
Per plans and Specs		Y		Ÿ		<u> </u>		L_	<u> </u>	L						L	ļ			1
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Ÿ	Y		Υ	ļ	-		-	 	⊢	<u> </u>					<u> </u>				1
03 33 00 - Architecturally Integrally Colored Concrete	Y		inci, abova	N										_						1
All prep work				N				匚		_										1
Mock-ups Required	Y	Y	Incl. above	N.				<u> </u>		L						<u> </u>				\Box
03 35 00 - Polished Concrete Finishing	7	TY	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above					┢	-	_			- -	\vdash	·	-		+
Mock-ups Required	Y	Y		Y					1							1		-		+
Minor Patching and Infili	Υ	Y	Incl. above	Y	Incl. above			Г		T^-						\vdash	· ·			+
	П																			
Bond Regulred	RZB	1/2				⊢		\vdash		\vdash				_	 	├				+-
porta regardo		T					 	!	1	1	1				 	1				+-
ADJUSTED BASE BID			\$12,000		\$21,047		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0	Г	\$0		\$1	5
Alternates / Unit Prices										L						L_		L		

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS
Page 40 of 61

10G - Signage	8	Project Name: SD	L - Ter	minal Redevelo	omen	t	Bld	Date: 5/10/201	7 aț 2	::00 p.m. i	VST		. , :				. :	Marian.	_
Y ≈ Included in bid	Respi	Project Location:					Апа	lyst;	Jay L	ance	marki		1140	<u> Prijirinijir</u>		នៃជាវិទ្ធិសាល់ និងកម្មគ្នា	<u>800.</u>		-
N = Not Induded in bid	[윤 [Falcon Contracting	Kroy	Signs	Alrpi	ark Signs	Yes	co											Ι
	Desired	1	<u> </u>		_														1
	듗		<u> </u>										L.						Ţ
																			1
Base Bld	ľ	No Bld (in eq.		\$1,746		\$60,776	- 22	\$84,733	4			at Healers degrap	-:-			Alphi Clare		لنتشين	Ŧ
General Scope Items:			1-	ļ ————	1				—		\neg		 				-	***************************************	†
JE Dunn Bld Form	Y		Y	1	JN:		Y												1
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Ŷ		Ϋ́		Y		Ŷ												Ι
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y		Ý		M		Ý												Ι
Reviewed Front End Documents	Υ		ŢΥ		Υ		~						L_		Ш			_	L
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Υ		Υ		~		≺						L						I
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Y	1	Υ		Y		Υ				·			ļ		•	$oxed{oxed}$		1
Parking for labor is included	Y		Y	ļ	Υ		Υ						L				\perp		1
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Ŷ		Y		Υ		Y			,			<u> </u>	ļ					1
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y.		ŢΥ	<u> </u>	Υ		Υ						<u> </u>						┸
Per plans and Specs	Υ		Y	L	Y		>							<u> </u>	L				\perp
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y		Υ		Y		Y				_ 1-				ļ				1
						_	ـــــ		\vdash		_		╙	ļ	Ь.		\vdash		1
10 13 00 - Directories	Y	 			Y		>						L		_		-		4-
Relocate S4	Y	 			Υ		7		\vdash				_	ļ			$\vdash \vdash$	<u></u>	1
Salvage to owner	Y				Y		Ţ		\rightarrow				!	 	_				4
S6 Directory	Y			 	Y		4		\vdash				<u> </u>		ļ	ļ	 -		4
S8 Directory	Ÿ	 		Ļ	Y		_						⊢	 				_	+
	l.	 	- - √-	12-1	HEYBA	61.716	अस्य	\$1,746	-+					 	⊢				+
0 14 13 Interior Signage	Y		1 ¥		<u>m7</u>	\$1,746		\$1,740			-				⊢	ļ	⊦⊹		4
Offices and rooms	~		┿╌	Incl. above	Y		Y	-		-	-+		_	 			\vdash		+
7 11 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	\- -	 	ler va	<u></u>	 √	,	Y			+	- -		⊢				\vdash		4-
10 14 19 - Dimensional Letter Signage	7		N	-	Y		Y	ļ	\vdash		-+			+	├		\vdash		+
Address Numbers on Hangers	1	- 	BALL		1								⊢	ļ		 	┝╼╁		╁
10 14 23 - Panel Signage	Ÿ	 	MAN	1	Y		Ÿ	···	\vdash				1	 	┪		-		+
Tenant ID Signage	Ÿ		IN		Ÿ		Ÿ		\vdash				1	1	_				+
Tenant to orginage	+ -	H	-	-	t		۳	· · · · ·	-				1		1		\vdash		+
10 14 26 - Post and Panel Signage	Ŷ	 	3176		Y		Y		\vdash				1	·	t		-	-	1
Speed Limit	Ý		N N N		Ý		Ϋ́	 		\neg			1-	 	<u> </u>		\vdash		+
Restricted Access	Ÿ			4	Ý		Ÿ		\vdash		$\neg \uparrow$		t	1	T	1	+		†
Security Aler	Ý			1	ΤŸ		Y		\vdash				1		1	1			t
Caution	Ÿ		쀖		Τ̈́		Y		1 1				1	-	1		Γ^{+}		†
Automatic Exit	Ŷ				İΫ		Ÿ	-					1	1	1	1	\Box		†
111111111111111111111111111111111111111	1	 		1	 			1						1		1 ""	\vdash		1
Salvage Existing Sign	Y	1	Ŋ		Y		Y							1	Γ.		Γ		1
	т	1		["	1								1		Ī	1.			1
Install of Interior Signs	Y	 	IN	\$1,500	17度	\$1,500	N.	\$1,500						T	Ι		\Box		1
City of Scottsdale Sign Permit Allowance	Y		N		I	\$5,000	N	\$5,000]
	Γ^-												匚				\Box		J
Bond Required	iN		N	4	N		N									/			I
	匚						L						匚				\Box		Ţ
ADJUSTED BASE BIO		\$1	미	\$3,246	1	T 569,022	<u> </u>	\$92,979			\$0	\$0	\perp	\$0	_	\$0	Ш	\$1	긔
Alternates / Unit Prices		1 1 1	1	1	1														- 1

Atternates / Unit Prices

2017-060-COS

Appled: 6/9/2017, 12:50 PM

Page 41 of 61

10J Steel	ğ	Pro	olect Name: SD	- Té Scotts	rminal Redevelo dale: AZ	pmer	nt _{St} erfantjille _{te} r	Bid	Date: 5/10/201		2:00 p.m. MST	2.5	gifatika		greet alot	::	and the state of		alikuvias.	415	gillation	 :	
N = Not included in bid	8		line Steel		Steel		ruff Steel	Abh	a Steel			ĪΤη	ad Steel	JB	Steel						d Metal Produ		
	8	1		.]		-				ľ		1		1							1	•	
Control Control (1986) and Contr	13	+-		-								Н]		ı		l		l			
Base Bld	121	1	\$100,650	0.550	Accepted	199	Accepted	100	Accepted	3(2)	Accepted		Accepted	7 7 127	Accepted		Declined	17.0	Declined	10.50	Declined ::::	Cold	Declined
The second secon	H	-	# N		NO BID	1	NO BID		NO BID		med w/ Bell Steel		No Bld. Too Busy		NO BID	1		1	Decimica	200	Decinion	2.7334	Deanlea
General Scope Items:				1				1						\top		1						\neg	
JE Dunn Bld Form	Y			Τ				1	I]	1		Γ		Γ				\neg	
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y			Ι						L_	I	П				\Box						\neg	
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y			Γ						L		\Box		Γ		Ι		<u> </u>	1				
Reviewed Front End Documents		Ý		1		\mathbf{I}		1		Г	I					Ι	T	Г			1	_	
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Ŷ	1			T		T		Г		П		T	Ţ			П				-	
Construction Sequence / Logistics		Y				\mathbf{T}		_		Ι		1_1				Ι			T			-	
Perking for labor is included		Y					1			Ι.					1			1				\neg	
JED Safety Requirements/Manual		Y		Ĭ	.}					L		П		\mathbf{I}				Π				_	
Sales Tax - Excluded		Y				Ι	1	L	1			Ш				Ι		Γ.]			\neg	
Per plans and Specs	Υ	Y		1		3				I		\perp						Ш					
Addendum 1,2 Acknowledged	7	Ÿ		1		1.				_		П		1		_		ļ				\Box	
10 73 23 Metal Carport Structures	V	+		+		+	 	 		⊢		╂┤	 	╫	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	┼	+	⊢	 	├	 		
Cantilevered Parking Canoples		ΤŸ		1	· · · · · -	+-	-	+	·	1		11	 -	+~		1	1	✝	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\vdash	 	\dashv	
Double-Cantilevered Parking Canopies	Ι ν	Ηż	 	 	 	+		+	h	1	 	1-1		+		+	1	+-	+	⊢	 		
Footings	Ι÷	Y		+-	 	+	 	╅	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	✝	·	1	 	╁┈	+	╁		╆	 	╌	 		
Engineering	₽÷	Η̈́	 	+	+	+-	 	┿	 	1		1	+	╁	+	+	 	┿	·······	⊢	 		
Engrisering	H	Η÷		t^-	 	1-		\top		†		††	 	T	 	╁	+	✝	 	┢	 	_	
										L	1	П									1		
Bond Required	W.	7	B	€ N	4	10			 	╁		₩		╁	 	╄	 	┡	1	_	ļ <u> </u>	_	
ADJUSTED BASE BID	+	+	\$100,650	+	Si	╢	\$0		\$0	-	\$0	1	\$0	1	\$0	, 	\$0	┼-	\$0	├─	\$0		\$0
Alternates / Unit Prices	4	- 	Selection of the Park	4		+-	<u></u>	+	-	+	 	+	+	+-	+	+	 	+	+	⊢	1		
Alternates / Onlt Frices Alternate 1 - Additional Parking Canoples	+	⊩	\$95,200	+		+	 	+	 	╁		11		+	·····	+	+	╁	+	├	 		
Alternate 2 - Storefront at Offices	-	-	400,200	+		+-		+	·	+		╅╌	-	+	-+	+	 	┰	 	┞	+		
Wite Hara Y - Office at Ources	1		 	t-	1	+	 	+	 	t	1	1-1	1	+	1	+-	·	t	 	1	 		
Cost for Early Shop Drawings on BP2	·	-		1	1	1	†"	\top	 	1-	† -	11	1	\top	†	1	1	t	-	1			
(Concrete, Steel, Glass & Glazing, Metal		Ш	1	1		1		1	1	1	1	$ \cdot $		1	1	1		1	1	1		, ,	
Panels)				1	1	1	1	ĺ	1	1				1	1	1		į .	1	İ		, ,	
	1		1	T	1	┰	 	_		1	 	1	+	\top	 	1	 	+-		1			
L-,	<u>. </u>	ч				<u> </u>				-	·	•									·		L

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-p60-COS
Printed 42 of 61

12A Window Treatments	Respons	Pro	Ject Name: SDI	- Ter	minal Redevelor	mei	nt	Bid	Date: 5/10/201	7 at	2:00	p.m. MST	. 1 1:	ng koja) la se grosj			ent in
	18	FIO	Ject Location.	1 ie o	dale, Az		**************************************	MIII	ilyst.	-1011	Nic					11111111	
N = Not Included in bid	12	RIII	ids and Beyond	JED	Allowance			L					_		ļ		
	181	4								<u> </u>					<u>i</u>		
	Desired	_		<u> </u>						L					<u>_</u>		
				<u> </u>						_					<u> </u>		
Base Bld	1	H	\$8,760	⊢	\$15,000			\vdash							-		
General Scope Items:	П	\top												· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	Y		1		_			·					1			
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	Ŷ						Γ''''	1						1		
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	1	N/A	l				\Box					Γ_		1		
Reviewed Front End Documents	Ÿ	Y	 	1			1			-					\top	1	
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Y	<u> </u>	1			1	1		\Box				T	1	 	
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Ϋ́	TY											<u> </u>		1		
Parking for labor is included	Ý	ĺΫ		1	t	_		Г	1					1	1		
JED Safety Requirements/Manual	Ÿ	İΫ	1	1	<u> </u>	_			1		<u> </u>				1	T	
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	Y	 	T		_			·						1		
Per plans and Specs	Y	TY												· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		
Addendum 1,2 Acknowledged	ŤΥ	ĪΥ		T				П							1	T	
		1						П				[T-		
12 24 00 Window Shades	Y	Y		1			1	П							T	T	
WT-1 Manual Roller Shades	Y	Y				_	1			Г					1		
WT-3 Manual double Roller Shades	Y	Y	1					Г			Π				1		
Backing (by Rough Carpentry)		IN.		1										I	Τ		
11	П	1															
	\Box	\top		1				i							1	T -	
	П	1	 	T	1			_			-		_		1		
Bond Required	MAIN.	žΝ;	1			_									T		
				1		_			1					1	1		
ADJUSTED BASE BID	,	\top	\$8,760	1	\$15,000	_	\$0	-	\$0			\$0	\vdash	\$0			\$0
Alternates / Unit Prices	1 1	+-	 	1	pursuantification water [2]	Ι-	 	t		t —		 	t		1	1	
Altemate 1 - Additional Parking Canopies	+	T	<u> </u>	1	1	Ι-		_	<u> </u>	I^-			t	<u> </u>	1	 - - 	
Alternate 2 - Storefront at Offices	+	+	 	1	1	_	 	t	 	\vdash	1		1	· ·	1	1	
THOMAS E STORES OF STORES	1			1		_	†	1	 	t	-		1		\vdash	 	
Cost for Early Shop Drawings on BP2	† †	1	 	 	-	┢		1	 			· · · · ·	\vdash		1	†	
(Concrete, Steel, Glass & Glazing, Metal		1	.1		1	ı		l		ĺ		[1				
Panels)			1			I		l		1		[ł		ŀ		
	1			1	<u> </u>	Ь_					щ.					٠	

21A Fire Protection I. Y.≒included in bid			ect Name: SDL act Location: 8						Date: 5/10/2017 at lyst:				Johnson				dija.	di b	
N = Not Included in bid	1	WSF		Аето			Systems		tHills	Clin	паТес					Ĭ.			
	8									Ι									
	Desired					<u> </u>													
			T 4 707 000 00		4 754 464 66	ļ.,	1 4 600 000 00		\$ 843,838.00		. d. d. 004 202 00		1			L	1		
General Scope Items:	Db()4	i Litteta.	\$ 797,200,00		\$ 750,000.00	l-tal	\$ 866,860.00	uri.	\$ 843,838.00	11.17	\$ 1,061,393.00	1"	Al-HITTERIU	i.a.	g gaine of and the globe.		air mateic		asia li diferen
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y	Y		Υ		Y		Υ		Υ									
Construction Sequence;	Y	Υ		Υ		Y		Y		Y]			•			
JE Dunn Bid Form and Scope of Work Returned	Y	TY		W		N		N		N									
3D Cadd Coordination	Y	Υ			\$ 10,000.00	Υ		Y		Υ									
2000 GPM Fire Pump Included	Y	Υ		Υ		Y		Y		Y						L			
Foam fire Hoses included (4) (2 per hanger)	Y	Υ		Y		Y		Y		Y						<u> </u>			
Reserve Supply of Foam concentrate	Y	Υ		Y		Υ		Ÿ		ĨΥ		Ц.				辶	ļi		
Corrosion resistant sprinklers in Battery Room	Y	Y		Y		Υ		Y]	Y									
MILCOR Smoke Hatches (14 shown structural & roof	1				of resident at the department of the second	1				Г									
plan)] Y	ΙY	1	1	\$ 64,400.00			1/1	\$ 71,000.00	Y			<u> </u>						j ·
Temp Protection during Foam Testing	Ÿ		\$10,000	IV.	\$10,000		\$10,000	311	\$10,000	BYE	\$10,000								
Parking is included	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y		Υ								1	
						\Box										_			
				1_1		.l		<u> </u>		١				;		_		L	
Commissioning support for Fire Protection System with	1	1				I]	١	1	١.,			i i		-	ŀ			ļ.
AHJ -	Y	Y	ļ <u> </u>	Y		Y	 	Y		ĮΥ		<u> </u>				├		\vdash	
	1		 	\vdash	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-			 	1—		┢	 			⊢	ļ ———	 - 	
Accepted Alternate 05 - Selsmic Requirements	1	₩N8	(1,600)	20.00	6,350	11/1	(7,500)	3978	(18,000	1887H	(1,600)		 		·	╁	-	-	
Accepted Alternate 05 - Seleniic Reguliements	+ • •	Dare	(1,000)		0,000	, muc	(,,000)	عديو	(10)000	1	(11950)		-			1		 	
State/City Sales Tax Included	SNS.	N	ŧ	1173		IN	3	11/1					1			1	·		
Otation, Calco Tax Moreov		1																	
								Ľ		!	ļ	L_				<u> </u>		Ш	
ADJUSTED BASE BIL		+	\$805,800		\$840,750	-	\$869,360		\$908,838	 	\$1,069,793	├	\$0	_	\$0	· ·	\$0		\$0
Per Plans & Specifications ?		+	SIE OF SECTIONS	4	3040,130	1	\$505,500	1	\$000,000	1	41,000,100		- 40		4.	4	40	┪	
Addenda Acknowledged ?	'	Τv	<u> </u>	1 1		+	<u> </u>	Y		Ý		\vdash	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_		+	 		
Bondable ?	TŸ	†- <u>-</u> -		1 1		+	 	† ·	 	忙	 	T				1	 		
Bond Rate	\vdash	1	1.00%		1.00%	1	1.00%		1,00%	1	1.00%	1	1.00%		1.00%		1.00%	1	1.00%
Bond Amount			\$8,056		\$8,408	3	\$8,694		\$9,088		\$10,698		\$0		\$(\$0		\$0
Base Bid with Bond Added			813,656		849,156	3	878,054		917,926	3	1,080,491		0)	0		0
Alternates / Unit Prices										1		L.				1		Ш	
Fire Alarm System (Notifier) Included - foam			1			-		ļ				1		l		1			
detection/releasing system for Hangars	1	4_	\$ 133,100.00	\vdash		-	-	₩-	1	₩-		\vdash	1	 -	<u> </u>	1	 	 	
	1-		 	\vdash			 	-	<u> </u>	₩	 -	⊢	-	\vdash		╂	+	╁╌┤	
VE for Fire Sprinkler	1	4	\$ 1,600,00	+-	\$ 6,350,00	╀	\$ 7,500.00	╂─	\$ 16,000,00	╂	·	\vdash	-	\vdash		1-	 	╂─┤	
If Seismic is not required deduct		╙	14 1,000,00		φ .0,000,00		1 1,000,00		1 4 ,0,000,00	۳		_		ч—				_	



Y = Included in bid		Project Location: S						yst:		Reeve		: ' :		1111		<u> </u>	<u> (1871) </u>
N ≠ Not Included in bid		ŤD	Temp	e Mechanical	Dynam	ic Systems	Harr	ls Mechanical	HACI			K Čc)TP	Iror	Tree Construction		
	Sestred				L		ļ										
	富山						ļ									l	<u> </u>
		T2					L		- 1 4							١.,	
ral Scope Items:	ie.	\$ 11. 723,205.0	10.1	\$ 746,339.00	dirida a	807,298	Carrier .	.\$4:::.828,217.00	acie J. ∓	3 821,	300.00	i C	\$ 972,685.00	:44	\$ 1,123,000.00	11.11	
	Y	Ÿ	Y		Y		Υ		Y			Y		Y			1
onstruction Sequence;	Y Y Y	Υ	Y	-tkwa-istolico-co-co-co-	Υ	***************************************	Υ		Y			Y		Υ			
Dunn Bid Form and Scope of Work	Υ	Y	Y	(14 - 4 x x y x 15 4 14 x - 1 p 4 1 x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x	N-		Υ		Y			Y		Ÿ	***************************************		
		Υ	Y				Υ		Y			Y		Υ	<u> </u>	l	
arking for labor is Included	Ÿ	<u> </u>	Y		Y		Y		Υ			<u> </u>		<u>Y</u>			ļ
2-2 - Sump pump package w/base added in	y	.,	,,		1.,		Y		Y								
idendum 1	. 	Y	- Y -		Y .		U		Ÿ			Ÿ		¥	 	⊢	·
I-1 Underground storage tank - 60,000	Y	Y	Y		Υ				7 2000			-1		Y		ļ	
	γ								開繼			- 1		ł		1	
dders	11	V	開機	\$ 307,789,00	🗸		l v i		80 5	100	.000.00	y		Y		i	
I -1 Oll/Water Seperator for Hangers A&B -			HALL TAR	001,708.00			{ ∤	******************************	*		220.02			···	ļ	·	
600 gallon capidity	Y	_Y	Y		[v]		lvi		γ		- 1	Y		Y		l	1
0-1- Plumbing waste connection only. CIP			- - -		t∸⊢		!:-)							<u>-</u>		╂──	
ench Drain and Grating For Hangers A & B	Υ		- [1 1					ļ				l	ì
others (in structural drawings)	. !	Y	l Y		Y		ΙvΙ		ΙvΙ		1	Y		Ιv		l	į.
C-1 - Air Compressor, storage tenk, and Air					1						.,					····	
	ΥÜ		- 1		1 1							- 1				l	
OV's, regulators for Hangers	1	Y	Y		Y		Ιγ		Y			Y		ΙΥ	1	1	
umbing fixtures per schedule - 1P601	Ÿ	Ÿ	Ϋ́		Y		Y		Y			Y		Ÿ		····	
2-1 Trap Primers	Ϋ́Υ		Y		Υ		Y		Y			Y		Υ		-	
umbing UG Piping Inside and outside			_												1"		
mane includes editing structures man	γH	l i	ł		1 1						Ì			l		1	1
ples, fire event storage tank and all related	1	l i		į			ÌΙ				1	.]		l		1	
innections.	- }	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y			Υ.		ĮΥ		1	
pof Drains and associated storm piping.							1							1		T	
cludes DSN-1 and overflow RD-1 to splash	Y				1 1				1					į	-	1	
oove grade.		Y	Y		Υ		Y		Y			Y.		Y			
umbing insulation including storm piping	Y	У	Y		Υ		Y.		Y			Υ		Y		<u>. </u>	
							J							I		ļ	
cavation and back fill for underground		ll	}	-	1					- 1						1	
umbing, inside and outside building.		1			1					- 1				1		1	1
ssumes sloping of all ug excavations and		} .	1	l	1		ا ر. ا			1	1			١.,	ĺ	1	
ot furnishing engineered shoring systems.	Y V	Y	Y		Y		D(V)E		A A			31.7H		Y		ļ	·
tate/City Sales Tax	Щ.	ME					MAN A		M786			SI CIE		37.	<u> </u>	ļ	
ADJUSTED BASE BID	+	\$723,	05	\$1,054,128		\$801,298		\$828,217	\vdash	\$	921,300		\$972,685	-	\$1,123,000	1	<u> </u>
er Plans & Specifications ?	Y				1]							T		T	·
ddenda Acknowledged ?	Ϋ		1		Y											1	
	Υ				I									1		1.	
ond Rate		1.00%		1,00%	I	1.00%		1,00%		1.00			1,00%	_	1.00%	1	1.00%
and Amount		\$7,2		\$10,541	<u> </u>	\$8,013		\$8,282			\$9,213		\$9,727		\$11,230		
Base Bld with Bond Added		730.4	37	1.064.669	1 -1	B09.311	1 7	836,499	1 1		930.513		982.412	1	1,134,230	11	

Exhibit C to Prontract
No. 2017-060-COS
Page 45 of 61

22 A & 25A HVAC & Plumbing Combined Tab	m	Pin	oci Neme: BDL	- Tor	minal Redevelop	meni		818	Date: 8/10/2017	al 2	00 p.m. M91			:· .		-	Jane (11)				1
Y = included m bid		P19	rej Location: 9	œfts	delo.AZ			And	lyst:	Rich	erd Resvs	· '. 1.'	(April 11)			::				44	311 1111
Na Nat Included in this	12	۳.		Har	ia Mecfunical	ויינפ	anke Systems	Ter	pe Mechanical	K.C.	?!P	HACI		Col	rnetcial Air	쁘	- SUN Mechanica	Con	Vori Systems	Mid	States
	5	1		}				1		····				 -		ļ	*, ****************				
	ě	1_						_								_					
HVAD PRimbling		4.	\$ 506,045,00 \$ 723,205.00		1 497,277,00 6 628,217,00		\$ 544,716.00 . 801,288		8 496,150.00 8 : 748,398,00	17	\$ 484,037,00 \$ 172,686,00		\$ 842,800,00 \$ 821,300.00	,	\$.484,000.00. \$1,123,000.00	P	\$ 493,000.00	ř	\$ 549,928 D \$1,123,000 0	0 P	\$.692,950.00 \$1,123,000,00
General Scope Terms: Per JE Dunn Project Behodule	IJ	7		Ţ		J		Ÿ		Ÿ		v		Y		Ÿ				٠.	
Construction Sequence;	Ÿ	1		┵		÷		Ť		1		Ÿ		۲.		Ý	 	÷		- X	
JE Dunn Bid Form Astumed and Scope of Work	V	Y		Ī.,				Ī.,								Ė	1	•		1	
Initiated and Returned IDD Cedd Geershollen - BIN	¥	¥		Y		Y	-	₩		Ÿ		新聞	3 33,500	Y		¥.	\$ 4,300.00	Ϋ́	1 13,17	<u>. }</u>	
Perking for labor is included	Ÿ	Ý		1		Ÿ		İΫ		<u> </u>		Ŷ.	22,000	•		Ÿ	1 4,300.00	Ÿ	, ,,,,,,	°₩	
	\Box	4		Ľ				┖		\Box										-	
NO2 & CO sensors, sortrol penel, intertecked is Supply and Exhaust Pena for Hengers A & B	I٠i	l۲		١,		l٧	ļ	l v	!	ų		,				l٠	ì	l.	!	١v	
Gelling Fans 1 - 8 - Colling Fens Hangare A & B	Ϋ́	Ŷ		Ÿ		Ý		┆┆		Ÿ		4		┢		İŸ		Ÿ	-	ŤŶ.	~~~
Geiling Fens 1 - 8 - Coffing Fens Hangers A & B Supply Fens 1-4	Y	ł¥		Ÿ		¥		¥		Y		1	-			¥		Υ		ΙY	
Ges Piping	\Box	_		1		_		Y		Y		Y.				ļΥ		ΑL		Y	
ERV 181 - wellow Colls and MP's for Cooling	Y	Y		Ÿ		Ÿ		Y		Y		Y				ĪΫ		Y		Y	
ACCU 1 - 16 per achedule EF 1-07 - Exhaust Pana Hangers	ł¥l	13	l	Ÿ-		¥	 	Ϋ́		Y	L	¥		-		Ÿ		Ÿ	I T	¥	
l :	Ÿ	¥		ĮΥ		ΙŸ		ĮΥ	† · · · · ·	Ý		Y		\vdash		ĪΥ		Y		╁	 :
Dualtesa Spik ACU - 1,2,3,4,6, 6 7 (6 in rel used)	Y	Ŷ		Ý		Ÿ.		Ý		Y		Y		L		Ý		Ŷ.		TY.	
SAD -J - 4 Sound Allenuelers	 ⊽	₩.	ļ'	F		₩.	 	łγ		 7	ļ	V	ļ			V	 	ŀ÷	\mapsto	-∤->-	
	Ÿ	Ÿ		Ÿ		Ŷ		Ÿ		Ý		Ŷ		\vdash		ÌŸ	1	Ÿ		14	L
GRD's - Air Outlets and Inlets	1	1 4		¥		Y		Ÿ		Y.		Y		匚		Ÿ		Y.		ΨÝ	
VAP's per schedule (H803	Н	Y	ComPA	۲	Carrie	Υ.	Convol	100	 	Ÿ		Y		┢╾		۲	·	ŀΫ́		- Y	
	H	11	Contractor -	1	Centractor -	ļ	Contractor -	闢		ı	1	1		l		i	i	1	1 1	-	Ì
[]	١ا		Integraled	١	Integrated		Integrated	隬		١		l l		l		١	1	١	1 1	١	
Blectic Unit Heater - Fire Pump Ream	1	Ť	Quetrale	₩.	Controls	ŀ₽	Controls .	r.	3 179.759.00	łŶ		Ý		⊢		ſŸ		¥		17	
				İΥ				Ľ	1	Ė						1.		Ė		Ľ	
	U	· v		¥		۱.		V		Y		-				v		<u>_</u>		1.	
Nechanical dust and pipe insulation Condensate drains and refrigeration piping	7	14		₩.		¥		Ť		1		Ÿ		╁╴	·	łŸ	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ÿ		-†₹	-
				广				L		亡						Ė				1	
Add for 12 Concrete Deadman	∀	H-		ļ		├	ļ	R73		-				⊢		╄		.		-	
	ŧ∸t	₩.		⊢		┢		ж	<u> 61.102</u>			12.20		H		╁	 	-		+-	
Add for &T-1 - 80,000 gallon fire event slorage lank		Ur.		L		_	<u></u>	Ш	1 286,697.00	L		3	\$ 190,000	<u></u>		L	<u></u> .	L		┸	
Plumbing insulation including atom plaing	۲	Y.		-	ļ	ш	\$ 25,530.00	100		₩-		-		├ -		⊢	 -	⊢	 		
Istate/City Sales Tax	22	123	 	122		131	t	22		W		547 E		13		13		┈		22	-
		1						L						Ι		L				_	
Accepted Atternate 05 - Delete Storm Drain insulati	H	ш	(33,590	щ	(35,590)		(35,490)	LITT	(35,860)	Ж	(35,520)	翻	(35.590)		(35,537)	и,	(35,590)	H	(35.56)		(35.560) (8,400)
Accepted Atternate 05 - Delete Storm Drain Inaulati Accepted Atternate 05 - Delete Dogwade Cold Wate Accepted Atternate 05 - Signific Requirements Accepted Atternate 07 - Substitute PVO Piping for 0	Ŷ		/8,400 (17,500	ш	(9,400) (17,500)	M	(17,500) (46,196)	i ii	(35,895) (8,400) (17,500) (45,195)	M	(35,520) (9,400) (17,600) (45,190)	Rid	(17,500)	H	(0,400) (17,500) (45,196)	Ю	(35,590) 19,400; (17,500) (45,196)	TA.	(35.59 (8.20 (17,50 (45,11)	ő III	(17,600)
Accepted Alternate 07 - Substitute PVO Piping for t		. 10	(45,195)	Ш	(45,196)	13	(46,196)	Ш	(45,195)	ш	(45,190)	HTH	(45,198)	D	(45, 196)	12	(45,156)	127	(45,1)	0 117	(45,196)
	Н	ҥ		╆╌	 	٠-	 	+		╁╌		-		+		✝		 	 -	-	
ADJUSTED BASE BID		7	\$1,522,485		\$1,217,908		\$1,273,918		\$1,555,402	Т	\$1,349,036		\$1,389,914	1	\$1,509,314		\$1,512,614	_	\$1,678,17	7	\$1,608,264
Per Plans & Specifications 7	Ÿ	11						7:-		1				1]					
Addends Asknowledged ? Bondable ?	¥	Н	1	-	 		 	┼	ļ	├	 	\vdash		₩				⊢			ļ
Sond Rate			1,00%		1.00%		1.00%	1	1.00%	1	1,00%	L	1.00%		1,00%	1	1.00%	I	1,00%		1.bp%
Bond Amount Base Bid with Bond Adds	H	⊬-	\$51,225 1,133,880	1	\$12,179 1,230,087		\$12,736 1,265,657		\$15,5\$4 1,670,956	1	\$13,490 1,362,526		613,899 1,403,815	1	1,524,407	1	\$18,128 1,527,740	ļ	1,593,5		\$16,083 1,624,347
Alternates / Unit Prices	+-1	Н	1,133,890	+	1,430,087	┰	1,486,657	+-	1,5/0,956	+	1,362,526		1,403,813	+	1,544,407	+-	1,527,740	╌	1,863,9		1,524,347
WE Alternates Relow	ļ	h	t	ļ			†	1		†		1		····		†~~	·	****	ł		
Substitute PVC Piping for Sterm and Senitary	1		·····	†""	ļ	l''''	······	1		Ť		1		t		1	1		ļ		
Systems - UG&AG ILO CI NH (Tempe Mech)	-	H		١	ļ	I —	 	+-	3 68,100.00	ļ	ļ	 		1		I		<u> </u>	₩-		ļ
Alternate Manufacturer for Equipment (Temps Meets) Subalityte standard NH Couplings UG & AG in Neu of	إ إ	ļ		ļ		ļ	ļ	1-	1 40.000.00	ļ	ļ	ļ		ļ	[ļ		ļ			
Husky XH Bands (TD)	1	۱ ا	\$ 4,262.00	1	l	i	Į.	1	1	1	l			1	Į.	1	1	1			ļ
Delete Storm Drain Pipe Insulation (TD)		3	1 35,630.00			Ľ				1_						Г	T	1		I	
Bubstifute PVC Piping to Blorm and Banitary	1	[~~	1	Г		Г		Г		1				1				1			
Systems - UO Only ILO CI NH (TD) Delete Oemastic Cald Water Pipe Insulation (TD)	ļ	₩.	\$ 45,195,00 B 8,400,00	ļ			 	·		}					·	···	÷	ļ	 		
Substitute Trap Guards R.O Trap Primore (TD)	·		B 12,298.00	†···		···	····	·†·	····	ł			ļ	····	[-	· 	····		·	
Delate Selamio Bracing for Piping Systems (TD)	1	rr:	9 17,800.00	Τ.		Τ-	1	1	1	1		t	 	ļ	·····	1	1	l	l	-1-	l
								1		1		1				1	1	1		1	
Add for Manufactured Tranch Drains w/Grating LO	"	1	T	1]			1		[1		Ī.,,,		1"	1	1			[
CIP Tranch Drains and Grotling (TO)	<u> </u>	Ľ.	9 127,182.00	Щ	L	1	<u> </u>	L.	l	乚	L	نـــا		L	l	1	<u> </u>	L.		_1_	L
7 M																					

Exhibit C to Contract
Page 46 of 61

	26 Electrical Y a included in bid	П		ect Name: SDL - I lect Location: Scot			1	788 a., 324	1,,,			Date: 5/10/2017 a alyst		p.m.M ePark	ST		Service of the servic	- :	
	Y = Included in bid			Electric		Diversified			:	haves		nmonwealth	Sturp				andin Elec	. :-	
		8	Ī																
		1	⊢		_		-				⊢				-	├-			
	8lte	H	+-	Personal de la	-	\$ 192,000.00		100000000000000000000000000000000000000	1	film in the	-	Tale of the fields	- 1	1.15.55	20,14	1		╗	1.7.9.123
	Hangars	151	15	istilla in	311	\$ 515,000.00							. ; :	4000		3		7	allenii.
oznitek	Fire Alarm	L		818,000		\$ 111,250.00		907,770	15	977,700	#	1,386,000		Tod,	581 637	7	1,609,322	4	
General Scope It	adiadhada Deminin wasanaadah 1994 waxay waxay akia lema:	1 1	1	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,						377,100		1,000,000			501,007	l			
	Concrete pole bases	Y	N		N				7N		N		11/27					\Box	
	Temporary Power and Lighting Distribution	₩	Į,	20,000 2,500	Y	20,000	120	29,180	_			 	\vdash			-			
	BIM Modeling	Ÿ	ΨŅ.	8,000	Ÿ		Y		Ŷ		Y		Y			Y			
	Site	Ш	ļ.,													ļ.,		_	
	l Removal and storage of existing Site Lighting Poles	I√I	Y	1	γ			s 15,000	Р	1	P		P			1		- 1	
E0010 - nele 8.001	Demo concrete pole base	× × × × × × × × × × × × × × × × × × ×	W		Á.				124.5		W Y		HÇÇ						
EQ11 - note 3	Provide (9) Handholes adjacent to "OA/OK" foctures	Y	Y		Ų.		S(ZE		Υ		Ϋ́		17B						
Prode mate 5 074	Asphalt cutting and patching as required Trenshing and backful	 } 	N/A		90 A		7		N.V	ļ ———	Ϋ́		Ÿ			╂─		\dashv	
	Telecom Ductbank 4' (2)	ΙÝ	Ϋ́		Y		Ÿ		Ÿ		Ý		Ÿ						
	Noth Gate Power and LV / CCTV conduit	IJ		\$ 35,750.00		35,750				<u> </u>	F					μ_		\Box	
	Bore site Lighting Concrete encase telecom and builing primary	¥		8.500		10,950	870	\$ 10,950	34.76		200	<u> </u>				╁			
	Control of the state of the sta	士士		7.77															
	Gear		L																
	Correction cabinats (3)		Ÿ		Ÿ		Ÿ		> >		Y		Ÿ			 		Н	
	(2) Fire Pumps - add (2) encased (100hp) Service Entrance per one-line	╂╬╂	17		ŀŸ·		 } 		₩	 	Ÿ		Ý			╁╾	 	\vdash	
	Are Fault Coordination Study	पि	17		Z	7,500	İΥ		Ÿ		Y		1			t			
	1	\Box	工				П						\Box			L			
	Fixtures	ا ټا	╁┯		Y		23.10		NA KIR		अरा		BATARS			⊢			
	Keep guard chack and Security light functional Furnish CF Fan in Hanger						***					i	翻播			╁			
	Instellation of CF Hanger fan	胐	N.		N M		N		N		Ν		尤值			an.			
			Ļ				Y		V		Ļ		-			Ι			
	Complete Hard Pipe / No MC Cable Provide and install ground buss	1 V	?		₩		Ť		Ť	 	₩	+	 		-	┿			├
	Copper Conductors	ועו	TY		Ÿ		Ÿ		Y		İΥ		Ý			\perp		Ш	
	ASHRE 90.1 Plug load control requirments in office			\$ 7,500		7.500			N	s 7,500		\$ 7,500	翻	3	7,500				
	area	+*+	111	\$ 7,500	100	7,500	+-		BALK	3 7,500	184	3 7,500	100	-	7,800	 			
	Systems	Н	1	 	T		1		_		1	<u> </u>				ţ		_	
	Telecom conduit stub to accessible ceiling	Ÿ	ĮΥ		Y		Y		Υ		ΙÝ		Y						
	Telecom/AV/Security EMT pathway in Hangers	LY.	Y Y Y	ļ	Ÿ		Y		¥		Ÿ		¥			╄-		Щ.	
	AV Conduit stubs to eccessable celling Corridor Ceble Tray	1	Ť	 	Ý		1		Ÿ		Τ÷		Ÿ		_	+-		-	 -
			Ė								Ľ								
		\Box	1	-	├ -		↓		├	 	 	+	1-1		<u> </u>	4-		\vdash	ļ
	PV System - per one-line	-	100		Digital Control		200		1594	d	100	.	222			╁┈		-	
Į.	(2) Hangers - 13 panels 14 stringers (182) 49,140w		N	7	N		in.		N			H			l	1	1		
		ТТ	1				Π									二			
	Fire Alarm - Complete raceway		Y		Ÿ		AZ#	\$ 15,000	Y		Y	·	ĮΥ			CINE.	45.000		
	McCabe Links in hanger	╁┸┤	ΗN	\$ 15,000	┵		100	a 10,000		\$ 15,000	╁	+	+	-		E	\$ 15,000	-	
I	Permit	121	N V		M		N		W		R								
	Stata/City Spies Tax		N	4	μŅ		M		μΩ		3(7)	9				+		ļ	
	ADJUSTED BASE BIT	1	╁	\$915,250	1	1899,950	1	\$977,900		\$1,000,200	1-	\$1,393,500	\vdash	\$1.	589,137	7	\$1,624,322	┢─	\$0
	Per Pians & Specifications ?	7	·	+0.0,200	·	WHEN THE SECURE	1	,	†*****	7.,500,200	† ··	7 -15551500	1			4	7.,52.4,522		
	Addenda Acknowledged ?	TY	1		1		1				1_								
	Bondsbie ?	Ϋ́						1.00%			1				ļ	1			1.00%
	Bond Rate Bond Amount	+	H	\$0		sc	st	1,00% \$9,779		1,00% \$10,002		so			54	öl	\$0		1,00%
,	Base Bid with Bond Added	al !	+	915,250	1	899,950	1	987,679		1,010,202		1,393,600			,589,13		1,624,322	-	· · · · · ·

Exhibit to Contract
No. 2017-060-COS

Page 47 of 61

	N
	C
	_
	Ľ
	Ç
₽	σ
ag	
œ	Ţ
Ō	-67
-	CS
4	77
4	•
_	
읔	
_	
0	

14 - Apr. Accordance 100 2	31C Earthwork Y = Included in old	ğ	Pro	ject Name: SDL lect Location: 8	- Tern	ninal Redevelop ale AZ	Bld Ana	Date: 5/10/201	7 st Kyle	2.00 p.m. MST			SHI	43740	e and		(1:1:	aggallok	[111]	SHELLES	1220	ana jijik	11,11			
Second S			ACE								J. E	anicki Const	Rhine	o Contract	ting	Kear Civil	Rhir	o Contracting	Bue	ing Corp	csv	V	Rumi	nel	Param	ount
144.652		este	<u> </u>					.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					<u> </u>										<u> </u>			
	rangalas erranda anti (1714, eta F			5144,468		\$226,058		\$182,500		\$187,608		\$305,127	Non-	responsi	ve (i.e.):	Declined	Non	-rasponalve:	96	Declined as	178.	Declined !!		eclined	O	ecline
Examination Company	neral Scope Items:		 		\vdash		 		<u> </u>				\vdash				╁		$\left - \right $		┼		╁╌┼			
## Course for County V V V V V V V V V	JE Dunn Bld Form	Y	Y																							
Revisional Food fact Occurrents V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V		Y	TΙΥ										H				╁╴		-		\vdash		\vdash		+-+	
Construction Department of Agentition V V V V V V V V V	Reviewed Front End Documents	Ÿ	Ϋ́				Y				Y					-					1_		\Box			
ADD Serior Recognition Company		Y	TΥ		Ÿ		Y		IN.		Ÿ						_				1					
Siles Tax Eduched		-	H.						N				Н				-				╂		-			
Additional Content of the Content	Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	TY	T .	Ÿ		Y		N.		Y															
Additional Content of the Content		\ `	╂┼													-	-		-		╁		╁		1	
Intelligence V V V V V V V V V	Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Ÿ	ΪÝ				Ŷ		Y		Y		\Box				1						\Box			
Value Marker and F8 Stand	Instell 2 Trackouts	Ŷ	ΙÝ		Y	-	Y		Y		Υ										_				╅	
	Frackout Maintenance / Refresh Water Meter and Fill Stand				TAT VER	\$9,300					Ϋ́	\$3,500	\vdash				+	<u> </u>	\Box		+		\vdash		+	
Display Disp	ocate Existing Utilites & As-Built	Ŷ	I N	\$4,500		\$4,500	Ŷ		Y		Y			\Box			1								11	
Description Description	OverX / Recompact New Hangar Footor	nt Y	İΥ	I	Y		Ÿ				<u> </u>						+-	 	H		╁╌		+-+		+-	
Fig. Cards Pads, Curbs, Stewards, Landscape Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	overX / Recompact New ABC Footprint	Y							Ÿ		Ţ	-	\Box				1		\vdash		\vdash					
March Marc	ine Grade:Pads, Curbs, Sidewalk, Land	scape Y	ĬΫ		Υ		Υ		Y		Υ		\Box													
and Cutro State & Beckfill Cubes Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y		Ÿ	1 ¥						¥				Н			 	+		-		\vdash				\mathbf{H}	
Mobe Patrice of Included Y	ul Curb Grade & Backfill Curbs		İΥ		Y		Y		Ŷ		Ŷ						#		Ι		二					
mare Pad Around Peolphins Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y			HY	-	Y		Y						H	-			+		-		+	-	-			
### ADJUSTED BASE BIO ADJUSTED	rane Pad Around Footprints				Ÿ						Ϋ						1				\perp				1	
CONFIDENTIAL, NOT TO BE CO	emp Road/ Firelans	Y	ΤÝ				Ý		Y												1				+-+	
Itle Footing Spells Offmau		Y	100										╂				+				+-				+	
CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE CONFIDENTIAL.	ite Footing Spoils Offhaul	Y	1.0	\$5,000	NP.	\$5,000	W	\$5,000	HI.	\$5,000	N	\$5,000									1					
Under Free Junit Prices CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE CONFI	anie Control, Plant Permit, Execution, I	Keroules T	Harris.	975,470	SHITTHE	\$15,476	1	\$70,473		\$75,475		370,470														
Under Required	PECATIONS				1		 	 	\vdash		-						+		-	· ·	-		-		-	
ADJUSTED BASE BID	ulverized Asphall to be used in General	FU Y	Ϋ́	Temp Road	Y				Ÿ	Temp Road			П			1	1		_		1		\Box			
ADJUSTED BASE BID	ond Required	- N	╅┼╴				╁	 	├		-	 	1-1				+	 	╁╌		+	 -	╁╌┥			
TO CONFIDENTIAL. NOT TO BE CONFIDENTIAL.			Ш	AUGUSTA SERVICIO				4070 477			Г										1					
DESTRIBUTED WITHOUT DECOME		ASE BID		1 5 COR 1945	1	\$320,333	-	\$272,476	⊢	\$281,083	H	\$398,602	-		\$0	-	<u> </u>	50			<u> </u>	. 50	<u>'</u>	<u> </u>	9	
APPROVAL FROM JE DUNN P	Printed: 6/9/2017, 12:51 PM																			-	OR	DISTRIB	UTE	HTIW C	OUT F	R

2017-060-COS Page 50 of 61

xhibit C

ð

Printed: 6/9/2017, 12:51 PM

Exhibit C to Contract Planted: 6/9/2017, 12:51 PM

32H - Fences and Gates	spon	Proj Proj	ect Name: SDL ect Location: S	- Ter	minal Redevelor dale, AZ	mer	t -priffiche)	Bid Anal	Date: 5/10/201	7 at Kyle	2:00 Cha	p.m. MST							a (170 2 (170		
N = Not included in bid	警上	Ame	rican Fence	Bladi	e & Brown Fenc	Sen	inel Fence Compi	Ďíve	rsified Metal F	Biltri	ahl i	inc	Ster	elock	Pho	enix Fence	<u> </u>				7
		7		D. (4.4.)	<u> </u>	-			, united initiality		9.1.		0.00	SIOOK .	,	CINA I CITOS	┢				+
	[: 등	1					•								i		<u> </u>				+
	Desired	1					ì				- 1				1		⊢				+
Base Bid			\$174,000	: <u>/:</u>	\$122,600	131	\$178,654		\$209,980	ijiste T	₩ij	bld 5/15	ijya		ejilit.	VM + Email	17.			(1-1-1-1-1-1 <u>)</u>	#
General Scope Items;																	Г				1
JE Dunn Bid Form	Y	N.		Y		Υ		N									_		_		\top
DCIP - GL Only Credit	Y	T															T		\neg		1
JE Dunn Scope of Work	Y	N.		N		N		拟									\vdash		_	11.4	\top
Reviewed Front End Documents	Y			Υ														1	$\neg \uparrow$		7
Per JE Dunn Project Schedule	Y			Υ													1				+
Construction Sequence / Logistics	Y	T		Ÿ														1			+
Parking for labor is included	Y	T = T		Y							T							1			╅
JED Safety Regulrements/Manual	Y			Υ							\neg				\vdash		 -	· · · · ·	\neg		1 –
Sales Tax - Excluded	Y	1		Y													1		1		1-
Per plans and Specs	Y			Y								-						† — †			
Addendum 1 Acknowledged	Y	ĪΫ		Y		Y		_			T						1	 			-
Addendum 2 Acknowledged	Y	1 Y 1		Y		Ŷ		\neg		П			_						$\neg +$		┪~~
323100 Fences and Gates	\Box	1								H	_		\Box	†		*	t —		-+		┪—
Hanger Service Yard	Y	171		Υ		Υ		Y	,						-		1		_		\dashv
Entry Gates and fence		Y		Y		Y		Y							1		†	T	\neg		+-
Automation Gates double swing		Y		Υ		Υ		Υ												· · ·	+
Concrete pads		TN	\$5,000	1. N	\$5,000	N	\$5,000	N	\$5,000								1		\neg	***********	7
Tomar	Y	Y		Y		Y		Y		П			Г				1		_		1
Knox Key switch	Y	Υ		Ÿ		Υ		Y					Г					i	-		1
Knox Box (2)	Y	P		Y		Y		Y							T		1		_		1
Spoils hauf off	Ÿ	Ÿ		WN.	\$1,000	Υ		Y					_		I^-		1	1	\neg		1
Paint Sherwin Williams Industrail Enamel		Ŷ		Υ		~		Y			_				\Box						+
Door hardware by others	Y	Ŷ		Ŷ		Υ		Y					<u> </u>						\neg		1
Card access and connected to building security s	W	· N	Exicuded	≅N∄	Exicuded	N	Exicuded	N	Exicuded		i							1	一		1
Detection Loops/ Ground sensors	Y	Y		Y	I	Y		Υ							Γ		Г		\neg		7
																		 	\neg		\top
	П	1						$\neg \neg$									1	1			T
													T	T	Г		Γ		一		+
								1									Ī	T	\neg		\top
Bond Required	M	T															Ι-	 			+
		1											_		1		T				† -
ADJUSTED BASE BID			\$179,000		\$128,600		\$183,654		\$214,980			\$0		\$0		\$0		\$0	\Box	\$	0
Alternates / Unit Prices				L.,	<u> </u>	<u> </u>							L					L	T		1

Exhibit C to Contract 2017-060-COS Page 52 of 61

Printed: 6/9/2017, 12:51 PM

33A - Site Utilities Y = Included in bid	o .	Proje	ect Location: SDL	- Term	ninsi Redevelop ala A7	ment	arijatiji daski		Date: 5/10/201		2:00 p.m. MST	eggie	rior of ender (4:11	. : . : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	1-,		2 1	s, year life of		. Lider Janes
N = Not included in bld	œЦ	Ricor	CI LUCATION, · O	Markh	am Contracting	Red	Point			Bloun	nt .		mount	McC	Bin Construction	Rhir	o Contracting	Auza	Contracting	City 1	Wide Contra
	esired										[!		l		1				Ī	•	
Baso Bid			\$276,394	:.	\$230,400		\$337,800	Dec	ine / Backleg	Rerely	Partorms/Decline	Decili	re / Backlog	16:5	Declined and to	Non	Responsive	Non	Responsive	Non	Responsive
								 _				\sqcup						\Box			
eral Scope Hems:	7	 ,, 				1 22		+-	ļ												
JE Dunn Bid Form	¥	Y .		Y		Y						1-1		ш				_		\sqcup	
	Y	1		Y		10	(\$3,009)	4	-			{ 		-				— ↓			
	Y					Ÿ				-		┦		-		_				\rightarrow	
	Ÿ			Y		1			·	₩		\vdash									
	-			Ÿ		ΙŢ		+	-l		-	 		\vdash							
	Ť			- }-		1		+	 	 +				-	<u> </u>						ļ
	7 †			Ÿ		Ÿ		+	 	⊢					 	-					
Sales Tax - Excluded	\	1:1		Ÿ		1 😯		+	+	-		\vdash		-	·			-			
Per plans and Specs	7	 ⊹ 		+		 }		┰	+	 	 	┥				_	·				
	₹H	╁╌┼				1		+	+	 	 	\vdash		├	 	_	 -				
	Ÿ	1		Ÿ		1		┿	+	+ +	 	1-		\vdash	 		 			$\vdash\vdash$	
	Y	γ		Ÿ		Y		T				П					-	\neg			
New Water Installation	Y	Y	• • •	Y		ÌÝ	-1-		1			11		Γ-				- 1		 	
	Ϋ́			Ÿ		171		1	1			П		_			·				·
	Y	Ϋ́		Y		İΥ		_		1				-	 			-		- 1	h
			\$13,800	11/18	\$13,800	17		\top	T			-1		\vdash						\vdash	
Maintain Existing Utility Protections	Y	W	\$5,600		\$6,600		\$5,600	1						1			1				i
Demolition Plan - All Utility Relocates/Cut/Cap	7	Y		Y		TY		T						1							
Pkg 2 Foolprint - Remove Utilities 1C-UT2	ΥT	Y		Y		TY		_												_	
	Y			Y		TYI								Г							
	Y			Y		Y		Τ.									1				
	Y			Y		Y		Τ.	j												
	Y			Υ		Y		\mathbf{I}_{-}				L									
	Y			N	\$2,383			Ι				Ι.		Ι_"							
	Y				\$2,383			1													
	Ŷ			Υ		Y		ا ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ						1							
	Y	1 1		御	\$1,800			Т.				1_		1		<u> </u>					
Utility Testing / Pressure Tests, Etc	Ÿ	Y		Υ		Y		4_		\sqcup		J				ļ					
	Y	ξN	\$34,150		\$34,150	+		1		-4		_		_		L_					
	Y	Y		孤	\$20,010			↓_		\sqcup		▃		<u> </u>	1			<u></u>]			
	Y	F/VR	\$16,000		\$16,000		\$18,000	4_		1	ļ	ᆈ		\vdash	ļ	_		ot			
	Υ	Y		N	\$2,000			4—	 	├		\vdash		₩		L	ļ	\Box		\Box	
	Y	Y	\$12,650		\$14,548	4		4	ļ <u>. </u>	1		1		 	ļ	_					
	Ÿ	لکا		Y		 		_	 	₩	 	-			ļ	_					
	Y	A A			\$25,000		\$25,000		 	\vdash		\perp		├-		ļ				L	ļ
Bring Sewer/Water/Storm Utilities up/Injo ABC	Y	LY.1	Inc	M	\$27,000	, ALLE	\$27,000	4-		1-1		1		ـــــ	ļ					لسا	
	-	├		$\vdash \vdash$		1		4-		┥		1	ļ	 	 	<u></u>	.		.,	<u> </u>	
LUSIONS	-	 , 		 		+		+	+	 	 	\vdash		├	 	-				\vdash	
Fire Detention Tank / Manholes - (In Plumbing)	-4-	Y		> ,		Y		+	 	\vdash		+		├	·	⊢		\vdash			
Gas Mater / Regulator / Accessories Coord SWG	\rightarrow			γ		Y		+-	 	╂╌┤		╁		\vdash	 	├					
Assume Existing Storm Orain is 18" Sand/Ot Separator		Ÿ		Ÿ		+-		+	 	1 1		┼		 - 	ļ	\vdash	 	Ь.			
Sand/Oli Separator Grease Traps	-+	 } 		 		+		+		1-	 '	+			 	\vdash	 				
G10000 (10y)	+	╁╌┤		┝┷┤		+		+	 	1		+	-	1	 		·	\vdash		\vdash	
Bond Required	178	8878		101		MAN H		1	 	1		1		t	1		 			 	
	_	[" "		-				+	1	1		1		1-	 	Т	 	М			
																	1			1	J
ADJUSTED BASE BID	_	1	\$383,594		\$395,072		\$408,391	1	\$0		\$0)	\$0		\$0	Т	\$0		\$0		

Atternates / Unit Prices

Atternates / Unit Prices

Exhibit Capto Garage 53 of 61

Part Part				Page 1 o	of 8				
Control Cont	ly ICI	: Activity Name	Orig S Dur	tari.					2016
Consider Consider	DIESOS INTE					SV SECT	III THE PARTY OF THE PARTY	as sept. The Control (Nov. 1921) Det (1911) Sunn (1911) Feb.	ga- Marcus - April a May as a Jun - a - a Jul - ga-
Contraction Contraction	ommary	and a state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the s							
Section Contraction Curring (Contraction Curring) Contractio		HIGE LITETONIKUU LOOTAH TII TII TII TERETOODE OYTO TOOTEEN HILII TII TII TII HILII ELEHTII TII TII TII TII TII						1	-
1.5 1.5					5-Aug-17				oó/Utility)
### AD 1997 Control Co							, , ,	i .	
## Description Process Program	JED-690	Construction Duration (Celendar Days) (Hangar A)		Jul-17 D	5-Apr-18		Windstandstrups		
\$2.00 \$10 \$					2-540-17		NEGISHIONICARDE	The state of the s	
### 5- Control									
20 170 Controlled Dept (Controlled Dept (Controlled Dept Controlled Dep		Substantial Completion (Hangar A) (05-Apr-18)	0	0:	5-Apr-18*			♥ 8)dri	
CON-1470 Contraction Durkson (Calendor Duryle) (Funder to Duryle)									
### Stand Student of Stand Freibart Projecting 19	that and other throught you be provided the						unammanament.		
### State	JED-660	Start Structure / Skin / Finishes Pkg (Hangar B)	0 26-0	Oct-17				◆ Start Structure / Skin / Finishes Pkg (Henger B)
District Convention Carryon By Convention Carryon By Convention Carryon By Carry									
1.00 1.00			0	03	3-May-18*				Substantial Completion (Ha
CON-450			بيساديد إخبيب وببعب	THE REAL PROPERTY.				ļ	
ACC Barg CD Design / Prog 2 20 20-Am-17 10-Am-17 20-Am-17 10-Am-1			THOUSE INCOME CONTROL	MANAGE PARTY IN TH					
Conv-120	CON-4510	ABC Bldg CD Design / Plog 2	***********	ar-17 A 0	1-√un-17				
CON-1270 Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Earthwordy Control Earthwordy Earthwor) 100% Submital to City for Permits លានអាសារកកសារាជាតិសេសសារាជាក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្រុម នៅក្ន					00% Submittal to City fo	Permits	
CON-470	CON-1250					de Paris	Demottion & Utility :	emitting process	
COM-4720 Reaching a Rechange of Comments 10 10-Might-17 28-Might-17 10-Mig						J Ea	rthmoving / Dust Parmit		
CON-4-07 Contracts Contr						Rec	elve and Respond to Co	i rhments	
CON-4470							🗓 Resubmit & Review	W/ Comments for Approval	
CON-490 JED Harmos & Conversión (A prove) Sectodad Partire A & B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's / GMP Preparation Sectodad Partire A B Design CD's						نتقا	III City Review ABC E	kig Permit	
Columbia Columbia	CON-4800	Receive and Respond to Comments							
CON-4500 JED Hanger A & B Design CD's / GMP Preparation 10 11-May-17 24-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 10 11-May-17 1				JUL 17 HANDANNE			Resub	nit & Review w/ Comments for Approval	
CON-4400 Scottsdale Hangar A & B Design CD's / GMP Review & Approval	CD / Design Pkr	g 1 Estimate Review & Approvals in Additional Control of the Approval Control of the Approval		ay-17 A 🖽 🗰 (154 YEV #				
CON-4680 Prepare & Submit GMP to Commission 8 01-Jun-17 12-Jun-17									
CON-4400 Alport Commission Review & Approval S 13-Jun-17 19-Jun-17			8 01-			100	Prepare & Submit GM	e to Commission	
CON-4570 Commission Meeting to Review & Approve 0 19_Jun-17 OS_Jun-									
CON-4650 Deadline for Council to Review & Approve									
CDN-4350 Trade Partner ABC Bidg Pkg 2 Prixing 15 05xin-17 23xin-17 23xin-17 17-xi-17 17						-			
CON-4350 Trade Partner ABC Bidg Ptg 2 (PMP Preparation 15 05-Jun-17 23-Jun-17							Deadline for C	puncil to Review & Approve	
CON-4370 Scottsdale Partner ABC Bidg Pkg 2 / GMP Review & Approval 5 18-Aul-17 24-Aul-17	CON-4350	Trede Partner ABC Bldg Pkg 2 Prldng				100			
CDN-4680 Prepare & Submit GMP to Commission									
CON-4410 Alreort Commission Approvels CON-4410 Alreort Commission Approvels CON-4330 City Council Approvals CON-4710 Deadine for Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Deadine for Commission to Review & Approve Remaining Level of Effort Actual Level of Effort Council Approvals SDL - Design Package 1 (Hangars, Demo and Site) GMP Submission - 5/25/2017	CON-4690	Prepare & Submit GMP to Commission	5 25-	Ju-17 ;			Prepe	e & Submit GMP to Commission	
CON-4830 City Council Approvals CON-4710 Deadfine for Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Deadfine for Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Period Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Period Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Commission to Review & Approve CON-4710 Control Remaining Level of Effort Control Remaining Level Control Remaining Level Control Remaining Level Control Remaining Level Con	CAPIN STORE DANGES COMME	AND THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPER			8-Aug-17				
Remeining Level of Effort Actual Data Date: 22-May-17 / Run Date: 24-May-17 Actual Level of Effort Remai SDL - Design Package 1 (Hangars, Demo and Site) GMP Submission - 5/25/2017	CON-4830	City Council Approvals	5 21-	Aug-17 2	5-Aug-17		18	City Cound Approvals	
Actual Level of Effort Remai SDL - Design Package 1 (Hangars, Demo and Site) GMP Submission - 5/25/2017	CON-4710	Deadine for Commission to Review & Approve	0 1	2	1-Aug-17*	<u> </u>	•	Deadline for Commission to Review & Approve	<u> </u>
	Remainin								
	Actual Le	evel of Effort SDL - Design Pack				•		5/25/2017) LELUIN

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 54 of 61

		Page 2 of 8	
Activity ID (page 35 %) good	Activity Name	Orig Start Finish 21	017. appreside signatura de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la comp
		Dur May Jun	Jul Aug Sep Ort Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
CON-4730	Deading for Council to Review & Approve	0 28-Aug-17	Deadine for Council to Review & Approve
	TALIBULAN KATAN MANAN INTAKATAN BERMAHAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MANAN MAN		
E CON-4420	Receive GMP Approval	1 28-Aug-17 28-Aug-17	I Receive GMP Approval
rocurement :::		122 08-Jul-17 27-Dec-17	
	TETTI IRANIA II KUTI IRAA ILAA ITAINI II MAHAN IRAA INTAKA ILAA INTAKA INTAKA ILAA INTAKA ILAA INTAKA ILAA INT	THRUDUSHI I FRUMBURKAN SUNTEN HAVAN MU	
CON-4430 CON-1110	Award Hanger A & B Design CD's Pkg 1 LOI's Award Hanger A & B Design CD's Pkg 1 Subcontracts, Mobilization	2 06-Jul-17 07-Jul-17	I Award Hangar A & B Design CD's Pkg 1 LOI's BBB Award Hangar A & B Design CD's Pkg 1 Subcontracts, Mobilization
CON-1110	Award Hangar A & B Design CD & Prg 1 Subcontracts, Modification [Award Partner ABC Bidg Prg 2 LOI's	3 29-Aug-17 31-Aug-17	Award Partner ABC Bldg Pkg 1 Subcontracts, Mobilization
CON-1230	Award Partner ARC Bidg Pkg 2 Subcontracts	20 01-Sep-17 29-Sep-17	Award Partner ABC Bldg Pkg 2 Subcontracts
	BILE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PR	10 Jul 17 (19 30-Oct-17 (19 30	
11; Foundations (H	<mark>angars)</mark> it garak idi i secesi serika di 1917 shirima daga tapak 1915, da i 1977 da merenja secesi bir	71 ala ala di - 30 Ta a 10 Jul-17 : 1 18-Aug-17	
CON-4580	Prepare & Submit Concrete & Rebar Shops - Hengara	10 10-Jul-17 21-Jul-17	Prepare & Submit Concrete & Reber Shops - Hangers
CON-4580	Review & Approve Concrete & Rebar Shops - Hangars	10 24-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	Raview & Approve Concrete & Rebar Shops - Hangars
CON-4600	Fabricate & Deliver Concrete & Reber - Hengars	10 1 07-Aug-17 18-Aug-17	□□ Fabricate & Defver Concrete & Rebar - Hangers
CON-3490	Prepare & Submit Steel Shop Drawings - Hanger A	20 10-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	Prepare & Submit Steel Shop Drewings - Henger A
CON-3500	Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - Hangar A	10 07-Aug-17 18-Aug-17	Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - Hengar A
CON-3510	Plant Start-Up Steel Febrication - Hengar A	5 21-Aug-17 25-Aug-17	Plant Start-Up Steel Fabrication - Hangar A
CON-3520	Fabricate & Celver Steel - Hangar A	25 28-Aug-17 02-Oct-17	Fabricate & Deliver Steel - Hanger A
Steel (Hangar B)		60 10-Jul-17 02-Oct-17	
CON-3530	Prepare & Submit Steel Shop Drawings - Hangar B	20 10-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	Prepare & Submit Steel Shop Drawings - Hangar B
CON-3540	Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - Hangar B Plant Start-Up Steel Fabrication - Hangar B	10 07-Aug-17 18-Aug-17 5 21-Aug-17 25-Aug-17	Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - Hangar B
CON-3550 CON-3560	Fabricate & Defver Steel - Hangar B	25 28-Aug-17 02-Oct-17	Fabricate & Deliver Steel - Hangar B
Tilt - Up	Translated Convolution International Convolution Convo	45 10-Jul-17 11-Gap-17	Tankato a Conto Goo! - hargo b
CON-1430	3 Prepare & Submit Tilt-Up / Reber / Embed Shop Drawings - Hangar A & B	15 10-Jul-17 28-Jul-17	Prepare & Submit Tit-Up / Rebar / Embed Shop Drawings - Hanger A & B
CON-1340	Review & Approve Tilt-Up / Rebar / Embed Shop Drawings - Hangar A & B	10 31-Jul-17 11-Aug-17	Review & Approve Tit-Up / Reber / Embed Shop Drawings - Hangar A & B
CON-1330	i Till-Up Calce and Reactions - Hangar A & B	10 14-Aug-17 25-Aug-17	Tit-Up Calcs and Reactions - Hanger A & B
CON-1360	Fabricate & Deliver Tit-Up/ Reber / Embads - Hanger A & B	10 28-Aug-17 11-8ap-17	Fabricate & Deliver Tifl-Up/ Rober / Embeds - Hanger A & B
Hangar Doors CON-1150	Prepare & Submit Hangar Doors - Hangar A & B	80 10-Jul-17 30-Od-17 20 10-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	Prepare & Submit Henger Doors - Hangar A & B
CON-1150	Review & Approve Hangar Doors - Hangar A & B	10 07-Aug-17 18-Aug-17	Review & Approve Hengar Doors - Hangar A & B
CON-1170	Fabricate & Deliver Hangar Doors - Hangar A & B	50 21-Aug-17 30-Oct-17	Fabricate & Defver Hanger Doors - Hanger A & B
	ise (Within Pkg 1)	160 - 10 July 7 (1)	
	BC Building) the cities with the relation of a page of the mail deliberation as the contract of the cities of	20 10-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	
CON-3380	Prepare & Submit Concrete & Rebar Shops - ABC Bldg	10 10-Jul-17 21-Jul-17	Prepare & Submit Concrete & Reber Shops - ABC Bldg
CON-3390	Review & Approve Concrete & Reber Shops - ABC Bldg	10 24-lui-17 04-Aug-17	Review & Approve Concrete & Rebar Shops - ABC Bidg
Steel (ABC Build		20 10-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	D
CON-1270 CON-1280	Propere & Submit Steel Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg	10 07-Aug-17 18-Aug-17	Prepaje & Submit Steel Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg Review & Approve Steel Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg
CON-1290	Plant Start-Up Steel Fabrication - ABC Bldg	5 21-Aug-17 25-Aug-17	☐ :Plant Start-Up Steel Fabrication - ABC Bidg
Exterior 8kin		60 s 10-Jul-17 , 02-Qd-17 ;	
CON-4480	Prepare & Submit Curtainwal & Skin System Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg	50 10-Jul-17 18-Sep-17	Prepare & Submit Curtainwaii & Skin System Shop Drawings - ABC Bldg
CON-4850	Metal Panels Submit	50 10-Jui-17 18-Sep-17	Matel Panels Submit
CON-4490	Review & Approve Curtainwell & Skin Systems - ABC Bkig	10 19-Sep-17 02-Oct-17	Review & Approve Curtainwall & Skin Systems - ABC Bidg
CON-4860	Metal Ponele Approval	10 18-Sep-17 02-Oct-17	Motal Panels Approval
CON-1300	Fabricate & Deliver Steel - ASC Bidg	25 01-Sep-17 06-Oct-17	Fabricata & Deliver Steel - ABC Bidg
CON-3400	Fabricate & Deliver Concrete & Rebar - ABC Bldg	10 01-Sep-17 15-Sep-17	Febricate & Deliver Concrete & Rebar - ABC Blog
CON-4500	Fabricate & Deliver Curtainwall & Skin Systems - ABC Bldg	80 03-Oct-17 27-Dec-17	Fabricate & Delver Curtainwall & Skin Systems - ABC Bidg
Construction		210 10-hil-17 03-May-18	
THE WILLIAM STATES	ERNOLINKO VECENTERIOREN KLUDIO KOMORIUKO KOMORIO KOMORIO KARANTERIO KARANTERIO KARANTERIO KARANTERIO KARANTERI		
CON-3420	She Utity Make Sale	15 10-Jul-17 28-Jul-17	Site Ulity Make Safe
CON-5380	Instal Temp Site Fence	3 10-Jul-17 12-Jul-17	Install Temp Site Fence
CON-5390	Instal SWPPP BMP's	2 10-Jul-17 11-Jul-17	I Install SWPPR BMP's
CON-1120	Building Demolition	10 24-Jul-17 04-Aug-17	Building Demoitton
CON-3430	Site Demoition	10 ; 02-Aug-17 ; 15-Aug-17	Sile Demotion
TIN	0 11		

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 55 of 61

		Page 3 of 8	
Activity ID	Adivity Name	Orig Start Finish 20 Dur	T GRY WEIGHT BURNER AND THE SERVICE STATE STORE STORE SERVICE STORE SERVICE SERVICE STATE TO A SERVICE STATE S
		30 18-Aug-17 27-Sep-17	. Mul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jah Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug histoli Sta Unides
CON-5400	Install Site Utilities Reconfigure Existing Parking	20 16-Aug-17 13-Sep-17	Reconfigure Existing Parking
CON-3580	Install Parking Cenopy Foundations	5 14-Sep-17 20-Sep-17	☐ Install Parking Canopy Foundations
CON-4780	Install Fuel Parm	40 16-Nov-17 15-Jan-18	व्यक्तिकारकारका Install Fuel Form
Foundations 13.		222-Sep-1748	
CON-1500	Prep Pad - Hangar A	5 16-Aug-17 22-Aug-17 20 23-Aug-17 20-Sep-17	☐ Prep Pad - Hangar A
CON-3440 CON-3450	UG Plumbing - Hangar A	20 23-Aug-17 20-Sep-17 20 23-Aug-17 20-Sep-17	UG Plumbing - Hangar A UG Electrical - Hangar A
CON-1450	Continuous Soread Footings - Hangar A	1D 23-Aug-17 06-Sep-17	Continuous Spread Footings - Hangar A
CON-3740	FRP Slab on Grade - Hangar A	17 30-Aug-17 22-Sep-17	FRP Slab on Grade - Hangar A
di Structure in a		10 10 10 10 1551 1822/SCF21740 161/2DSF27401	
CON-1380	Form / Reinforce / Pour / Erect Tit-Up Walls - Hangar A	25 28-Sap-17 01-Nov-17	Form / Reinforce / Pour / Erect Tik-Up Walls - Hangar A
CON-1310	Ered Steel Structure - Hanger A Detail Steel and Trollis's - Hanger A	10 02-Nov-17 15-Nov-17 15 16-Nov-17 07-Dec-17	Erect Steel Structure - Hangar A Detail Steel and Troille's Hangar A
CON-1320 CON-1390	Roof Deck & Detail - Hangar A	15 24-Nov-17 14-Dec-17	Roof Deck & Detail - Hangar A
Exterior Envelo		24 - 18 - 18 - 18 - 18 - 18 - 18 - 18 - 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
CON-4870	Frama & Sheath Parapet Above Hangar Door - Hangar A	10 18-Jan-18 29-Jan-18	Frame & Sheath Parapet Above Hangar Door - Hangar A
CON-1180	Install Hanger Doors - Hanger A	10 18-Jan-18 29-Jan-18	Install Hangar Doors - Hangar A
CON-3570	Roof Blocking - Hanger A	5 18-Jan-18 22-Jan-18 10 23-Jan-18 05-Feb-18	☑ Roof Blodding - Hangar A
CON-3590 CON-4890	Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Membrane – Hangar A	10 23-387-16 03-780-18 10 30-Jan-18 12-Feb-18	Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Membrane - Hangar A
CON-4770	Tit-Up Cleaning / Pointing / Cauliding - Hangar A	15 06-Feb-18 26-Feb-18	Till-Up Cleaning / Pointing / Cauliding - Hangar A
CON-3600	Detail Roof Membrans - Hangar A	10 06-Feb-18 19-Feb-18	Detail Roof Membrane - Hanger A
CON-4880	Clad Hangar Door - Hangar A	10 13-Feb-18 26-Feb-18	Cled Hengar Door - Hangar A
Imedor		20 15-Dec-17 15-Jan-18	
CON-4740 CON-3780	Hangar Fra Protection System - Hangar A MEP OH - Hangar A	20 15-Dec-17 15-Jan-18	Hangar Fire Protection System - Hangar A
CON-3790	Paint Hangar Walis - Hangar A	10 22-Dec-17 08-Jan-18	Paint Hanger Walls - Hanger A
CON-5090	Paint Hengar Celling - Hangar A	10 09-Jan-18 22-Jan-18	Paint Hartgar Ce≋ng - Hangar A
CON-1640	Puli Wire - Hanger A	10 18-Jan-18 29-Jan-18	Pull Wirle - Hangar A
CON-1820	MEP Trim - Hanger A	15 23-Jan-18 12-Feb-18	MEP Trim - Hangar A
CON-1650 CON-1630	Prep Floors for Epoxy Coating - Hangar A Flooring Epoxy Install - Hangar A	7 13-Feb-18 21-Feb-18 10 22-Feb-18 07-Mar-18	Prep Floors for Epoxy Coating - Hengar A Flooring Epoxy Install - Hangar A
CON-1630	Construction Clean - Hangar A	5 D8-Mar-18 14-Mar-18	Construction Clean - Hangar A
CON-4120	JED Pre Punch - Henger A	i 5 15-Mar-18 21-Mar-18	☐ JED Pre Punch - Hangar A
CON-4130	Owner Punch - Hangar A	5 22-Mar-18 28-Mar-18	☐ Owner Punch - Hangar A
Hangar A Office		109 D2-Nov-17-1 1905 Apr-18-1	
CON-4920	Foundations - Hangar A Offices	5 02-Nov-17 08-Nov-17	Foundations - Hangar A Offices SOG - Hangar A Offices
CON-4930 CON-4910	SOG - Hangar A Offices - Masonry - Hangar A Offices	7 16-Nov-17 27-Nov-17	Masonry - Hanger A Offices
CON-4940	Steel Erection - Hangar A Offices	5 Z8-Nov-17 04-Dac-17	Steel Erection - Hanger A Offices
CON-4950	: Decking - Hangar A Offices	5 05-Dec-17 11-Dec-17	Decking - Hanger A Offices
CON-4950	Roof Prep - Hangar A Offices	5 12-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	Roof Prep - Hangar A Offices
CON-4970	Roofing - Hangar A Offices MEP OH - Hangar A Offices	5 19-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 10 27-Dec-17 10 27-Dec-17 10-Jan-18	Roofing - Hangar A Offices MEP OH - Hangar A Offices
CON-4980 CON-5070	MEP OH - Hangar A Offices Frame - Hangar A Offices	7 05-Jan-18 15-Jan-18	Frame - Hangar A Offices
CON-5100	MEP in-wall - Hangar A Offices	5 11-Jan-18 17-Jan-18	MEP In-wall - Hangar A Offices
- CON-5080	i Drywall - Hangar A Offices	10 12-Jan-18 25-Jan-18	Drywal - Hangar A Offices
CON-5080	Concrete Polishing - Hangar A Offices	10 26-Jan-18 08-Feb-18	Controlle Polishing - Hanger A Offices
CON-4990 CON-5040	Paint - Hanger A Offices Ceiling Grid - Henger A Offices	5 09-Fab-18 15-Feb-18 5 16-Feb-18 22-Feb-18	■ Páint - Hanger A Offices ■ Ceiling Grid - Hanger A Offices
CON-5020	MEP Finishes - Hangar A Offices	5 23-Feb-18 01-Mer-18	MEP Finishes - Hangar A Offices
CON-5050	Drop Tile - Hangar A Offices	5 02-Mar-18 0B-Mar-18	SEE Orop Tile - Hanger A Offices
CON-5030	Flooring - Hangar A Offices	5 09-Mar-18 15-Mar-18	Flooring - Hangar A Offices
CON-5110	Construction Clean - Hangar A Offices	5 18-Mar-18 22-Mar-18	Construction Clean - Hangar A Offices
CON-5120	JED Pre Punch - Henger A Offices	5 23-Mar-18 29-Mar-18 5 30-Mar-18 05-Apr-18	JED Pre Punch - Hanger A Offices
CON-5130	Owner Punch - Hengar A Ofices	5 30-Mar-18 05-Apr-18	
	Busiananing matangkan kan ang mang mang kan ang kanan kan ang kan ang kanan kan kan ang kanan ang kan ang kanan	NH KALSALUGUSTE III SAALII SAAGAA KAN KAN KAN KAN KAN KAN KAN KAN KAN K	The state of the s

Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 56 of 61

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 			pe 4 of 8	
Activity ID	Activity Name (1998) (1998) (1998) (1998) (1998) (1998) (1998)	: Orig	Start and	esse finish a servers	2017.446.4636.5636.6636.6636.6636.6636.6636.
		Dur		May	y Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Api May Jun Jul A
Foundations "		39	23-Aug 17	17-0d-17	
CON-1520	Prep Pad - Hangar B	5		28-Aug-17	☐ Prep Pad - Hangar 8
CON-1510	Continuous Spread Footings - Hanger B	10		20-Sep-17	Continuous Spread Footings - Hangar B
CON-3460	UG Plumbing - Hanger B	20	14-Sep-17	11-0d-17	েলানে UG Plumbing - Hanger B
CON-3470	UG Electrical - Hangar B	20		11-Oct-17	UG Electrical - Hanger B
CDN-3750	FRP Slab on Grade - Hangar B	17 HEEN		17-Oct-17	FRP Slab on Grade - Hangar B
CON-3610	Form / Reinforce / Pour / Erect Til-Up Wals - Hangar B	25	26-0d-17	30-Nov-17	
CON-3630	Front Remittee Prour Erect III-Op wass - hangar b Erect Steel Structure - Hanger B	10	01-Dep-17	14-Dec-17	Form / Reinforce / Pour / Brect Till-Up Wells - Henger B
CON-3640	Detail Steel and Trells's - Hangar B	15	Comparison of the company of the com	08-Jan-18	Dotall Stool and Trotts - Hangar B
CON-3650	Roof Deck & Detell - Hanger B	15	22-Dec-17	15-Jan-18	Roof Deck & Detail - Hangar B
15 Exterior Envelop			BOZEF JOHN LIN		
CON-3870	Roof Blocking - Hangar B	5	23~Jan-18	29~Jan-18	☐ Roof Blocking - Hangar B
CON-3680	Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Membrane - Hangar B	15	30-Jan-18	19-Feb-18	. Cover Board / Tapered Insult / Roof Membrane - Han
CON-1190	Install Hanger Doors - Hanger B	[10	30-Jan-18	12-Feb-18	Instal Hangar Doors - Hangar B
CON-5340	Frame & Sheath Parapet Above Hangar Door - Hangar B	10	30-Jan-18	12-Feb-18	Frama & Sheath Parapet Above Hangar Door - Hangar
CON-5350	Install Metal Panel System - Hangar B	10	13-Feb-18	26-Feb-18	Install Metal Panel System - Hangar B
CON-3590 CON-4780	Detail Roof Membrane - Hanger B	10 15		05-Mar-18 19-Mar-18	Detail Roof Membrane - Hangar B
CON-4780 CON-5360	TIR-Up Cleaning / Pointing / Caulking - Hangar B Clad Hangar Door - Hangar B	10	27-Feb-18	19-Mar-18	Tit-Up Cleaning / Pointing / Cauliding - Hang
Interiors	Cao nangar poor - nerga o		7.16-Jan-18		Clad Hangar Door - Hangar B
CON-4750	Henger Fire Protection System - Hangar A	20	16-Jan-18	12-Feb-18	Hangar Fire Protection System - Hangar A
CON-3810	MEP OH - Hangar B	20	16-Jan-18	12-Feb-18	MBP OH - Hangar A
CON-3840	Paint Hangar Walls - Hengar B	10	23-Jan-18	05-Feb-18	Paint Hangar Walls - Hangar B
CON-5370	Paint Hangar Ceiling - Hangar B	10	06-Feb-18	19-Feb-18	Peint Hangar Celling - Hangar B
CON-4150	Pull Wire - Hanger B	10	ference between the sections	26-Feb-18	Pull Wire - Hanger B
CON-4180	MEP Tilm - Hangar B	15	di amin'ny faritr'i National ao amin'ny faritr'i Amerika.	12-Mar-18	MEP Trim - Hangar B
CON-3830	Prep Floors for Epoxy Coating - Hangar B	7	13-Mar-18	21-Mar-18	Prep Floors for Epoxy Coeting - Hangar B
CON-4200	Flooring Epoxy Install - Hangar B	10	22-Mer-18	04-Apr-18	Flooring Epoxy Install - Hanger B
CON-4210	Construction Clean - Hangar B	5	05-Apr-18	11-Apr-18	Construction Clean - Hangar B
CON-4220 CON-4230	3 JED Pre Punch - Hanger B 3 Owner Punch - Hanger B	5	12-Apr-18 19-Apr-18	18-Apr-18 25-Apr-18	☐ JED Pre Punch - Hangar B
Hannar B Office	- Owner Pontal – Hangar B	1 100			□ Owner Punch - Hangar B
CON-5150	Foundations - Hangar B Offices	5	01-Dec-17	07-Dec-17	题 Foundations - Hangar B-Offices
CON-5160	SOG - Hangar B Offices	5	08-Dec-17	14-Dec-17	SOG - Hangar B Offices
CON-5140	Masonry - Hangar B Offices	7	15-Dec-17	26-Dec-17	Masonry - Hangar, B Offices
CON-5170	Steel Erection - Hanger B Offices	5	27-Dec-17	03-Jan-18	■ Steel Erection - Hangar B Offices
CON-5180	Decking - Hangar B Offices	5	04-Jan-18	10-Jan-18	Decking - Hangar B Offices
CON-5190	Roof Prap - Hangar B Offices	5	11-Jan-18	17-Jan-18	Roof Prep Hangar B Offices
CON-5200	Roofing - Hangar B Offices	5	18-Jan-18	24-Jan-18	Roofing Hengar B Offices
CDN-5210	MEP'OH - Hanger B Offices	10		07-Feb-18	MEP OH - Hengar B Offices
CON-5260	Frame - Hangar B Offices	7	02-Feb-18		Frame - Hangar B Offices
CON-5280	MEP In-wall - Hangar B Offices	10		14-Feb-18 22-Feb-18	MEP In-wall - Hanger B Offices
CON-5270 CON-5250	Drywall - Hangar B Offices Concrete Polishing - Hangar B Offices	10	Z-A		Drywall - Hangar B Offices
CON-5250	Concreta Possning - Hangar B Offices Paint - Hangar B Offices	5	09-Mar-18	15-Mar-18	MATE Concrete Potathing - Hangar B Offices ME Paint - Hangar B Offices
CON-5290	Celling Grid - Hangar B Offices	5	16-Mar-18	22-Mar-18	IN Celling Grid - Hangar B Offices
CON-5230	MEP Finishes - Hangar B Offices	5	23-Mar-18		MEP Finishes - Hangar B Offices
CON-5300	Drop Tile - Hanger B Offices	5	30-Mar-18	05-Apr-18	Drop Tile - Hanger B Offices
CON-5240	Flooring - Hanger B Offices	5	06-Apr-18	12-Apr-18	■ Fixorting - Hangar B Offices
CON-5310	Construction Clean - Hangar B Offices	5	13-Apr-18	19-Apr-18	Construction Clean - Hangar B Of
CON-5320	JED Pre Punch - Hanger B Offices	5	20-Apr-18	26-Apr-18	■ JED Pre Punch - Hangar B Offs
CON-5330	Owner Punch - Hanger B Offices	i 5 witanalo	27-Apr-18	03-May-18	Owner Punch - Hangar B Offi
		咖啡			
CON-3720	Prep Grade - Hangar A/B & Site	5	16-Jan-18	22-Jan-18	Prep Grade - Hanger A/B & Site
CON-3710	Curb & Gutter - Hangar A/B & Site	10	23-Jan-18	05-Feb-18	Curbia Gutter - Hanger A/B & She
CON-3730	FRP Sidewells - Hanger A/B & Site	15	06-Feb-18	26-Feb-18	FRP Sidewalks - Hangar AG & Site
CON-1550 CON-5430	Landscaping - Hanger A/B & Site Install Fences & Celtes	15	27-Feb-18 06-Mar-18	19-Mar-18 02-Apr-18	Landscaping - Hanger A/B & Site
L CUN-0430 .	Millionia L. Autoria of Phillips	. 20	UU-Mar-18	, uz-Apr-10	Install Fences & Gales
*** 1	у С ш				

Exhibit C to
Contract No.
2017-060-COS
Page 57 of 61

		Page 5 of 8	
Activity ID	Activity Name	. Out Start Finish	2017
CON-1460	Asphal - Hangar AB & Sile	5 20-Mar-18 26-Mar-18	n Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
CON-1530	São Signago	10 27-Mar-18 09-Apr-18	☐ Asphalt - Hangar A/B & Site
CON-1490	Striping	5 27-Mar-18 02-Apr-18	E∃ Striping
CON-8420	Instal Covered Parking Cenoples - Hangar A/B & Site	20 03-Apr-18 30-Apr-18	Install Covered Parking Canoples
CON-4280	TAB - Hangar A	7 : 08-Mar-18 : 15-Mar-18	
CON-4270	TAB - Hangar B	7 05-Abr-18 13-Apr-18	TAB - Hangar A
Closeout		25 E 19 MAZIO 24 JULIB II	Lig (ro-rauge)
CON-4280	Closeout	25 19-Jun-18 24-Jul-18	Closed
CON-4300	Commissioning	15 19-Jun-18 10-Jul-18 .	Commissio
	ess Center (Package 2 - Not in Contract)	227 01-5cp-17 24-Jul-18:0	
HED-0060	開発を表現している。 ・ Construction Duration (Calendar Days) (ABC Bidg - Foundations / Structure / Sign / Interiors)	202 01-Sep-17 18-Jun-18	Charles of the Control of the Contro
\$ JED-0100	Start Foundations (ABC Bidg)	0 01-Sep-17	◆ Start Foundations (ABC Bldg)
JED-0200	Structure Complete (ABC Bidg)	0 04-Dec-17	♦ Structure Complete (ABC Bidg)
, JED-0300	Skin Weather Tight (ABC Bkig)	0 22-Jan-18	◆ Skin Weather Tight (ABC 8kig)
JED-0400 JED-0500	Startup Perm Power (ABC Btdg) Startup HVAC (ABC Btdg)	0 15-Feb-18 0 19-Feb-16	◆ Startup Perm Power (ABC Bidg) ◆ Startup HVAC (ABC Bidg)
JED-0600	Substantial Completion (ABC Bidg) (18-Jun-15)	0 18-Am-18*	◆ Substantial Comp
CON-4290	Final Completion	0 24-Jul-18	♦ Final C
	OTO STATILO KOM OTO OTO OTO OTO OTO OTO OTO OTO OTO O		
CON-1740 CON-1690	Grading / Foundation Prep - ABC Bidg Drilled Plers - ABC Bidg	5 01-Sep-17 08-Sep-17 8 18-Sep-17 27-Sep-17	☐ Grading / Foundation Prep - ABC Bidg BEED Drillad Piers - ABC Bidg
CON-1710	Trench / Reinforce / Pour Grade Beams - ABC Bldg	11 28-Sup-17 12-Oct-17	Trench / Reinforce / Pour Grade Beams - ABC Bldg
CON-1700	FRP Elev Ptt - ABC BKg	8 28-Sep-17 09-Oct-17	FRP Elev Pit - ABC Bldg
CON-1720	UG Plumbing - ABC Bbg	5 08-Oct-17 12-Oct-17 5 08-Oct-17 12-Oct-17	☐ UG Plumbing - ABC Bidg
CON-1730	LUG Electrical - ABC Blog Ethiopological and Communication of the Commun	5 08-Oct-17 12-Oct-17	☐ UG Electrical - ABC Bidg
INNECESSAMOREMAN	gurunganananananananananananananananananana	4 10-Oct-17 13-Oct-17	■ CMU Elev Shaft - ABC Bidg
CON-1750	Structural Steel - L1 to L2 - ABC Bidg	5 16-Oct-17 20-Oct-17	15 -Structural Steel - L1 to L2 - ABC Bidg
CON-1760	Structural Steel - L2 to Roof - ABC Bidg	5 23-Oct-17 27-Oct-17	Structural Steel - L2 to Roof - ABC Bidg
CON-1770	Deck & Detail L2 - ABC BHg Deck & Detail Roof - ABC BHg	8 30-Oct-17 06-Nov-17 B 07-Nov-17 14-Nov-17	Deck & Detail L2 - ABC Bidg ■ Deck & Detail Root - ABC Bidg
CON-1790	Reinforce & Place SOG - ABC Bidg	6 07-Nov-17 14-Nov-17	Reinforce & Place SOG - ABC Bldg
CON-1800	Reinforce & Place SOD - L2 - ABC Bldg	6 15-Nov-17 22-Nov-17	Reinforce & Place SOD - L2 - ABC Bidg
CON-1830	FRP RTU Curb - ABC Bidg CMU Parapet - ABC Bidg	3 24-Nov-17 28-Nov-17 2 24-Nov-17 27-Nov-17	EI FRP RTU Curb - ABC Bidg G CMU Parapet - ABC Bidg
CON-1810	CMU Ext Wall - S & E Elevation - ABC Bldg	5 28-Nov-17 04-Dec-17	☐ CMU Ext Wall - S & E Elevation - ADC Bidg
Root		59 1324-Nov-17/4 1916-Feb-18/1	
CON-1850	Roof Blocking - Mein Roof	5 30-Nov-17 06-Dec-17	☐ Roof Blocking - Main Roof
CON-1850 CON-1870	Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Mambrane - Main Roof Detail Roof Membrane - Main Roof	8 28-Dec-17 09-Jan-18 5 10-Jan-18 16-Jan-18	© Cover Board ∤Tapered Insul / Roof Mambrane - Main Roof Debai Roof Membrane - Main Roof
CON-1950	Sel RTU - Main Roof	2 10-Jan-18 11-Jan-18	1 Set RTU - Main Roof
CON-1980	CW RTU Connections - Main Roof	10 12-Jan-18 25-Jan-18	CW RTY Connections - Main Roof
CON-1970 CON-1990	(Électrical RTU Connections - Main Roof HVAC RTU Connections - Main Roof	5 12-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 5 12-Jan-18 18-Jan-18	☐ Electrical RTU Connections - Main Roof ☐ HVAC RTU Contractions - Main Roof
CON-2000	Pul & Term RTU Cables - Main Roof	10 19-Jan-18 01-Feb-18	Pul & Term RTU Cables - Main Roof
CON-3480	Startup RTU - Main Roof	2 15-Feb-18 16-Feb-18	Sartup RTU - Mein Roof
Stair Tower	Fig. 1 Control of the control of the	39 24-Nov-17 19-Jan-18	D. Comm. Market
CON-1880 CON-1890	Frame - Stair Tower Sheath - Stair Tower	2 24-Nov-17 27-Nov-17 2 28-Nov-17 29-Nov-17	☐ Frame - Stair Tower I Sheath - Stair Tower
CON-1900	Weather Barrier - Stair Tower	2 30-Nov-17 01-Dec-17	Westher Barrier - Statr Tower
CON-1950	Z-Girts / Insulation - Stair Tower	5 28-Dec-17 04-Jan-18	☐ Z-Girts / Insulation - Stair Tower
CON-1910 CON-1920	Metal Panels - Stalt Tower	3 05-Jan-18 09-Jan-18 2 10-Jan-18 11-Jan-18	Metal Panels Stair Tower
CON-1920	Roof Blocking - State Tower Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Membrane - State Tower	2 10-Jan-18 11-Jan-18 4 12-Jan-18 17-Jan-18	■ Roof Blocking - Stair Tower □ Cover Board / Tapered Insul / Roof Membrane - Stair Tower
CON-1940	Datell Roof Membrane - Stair Towor	2 18-Jan-18 19-Jan-18	Detail Roof Membrane - Stair Tower
	T N O M		

Exhibit C to

Contract No.

2017-060-COS

Page 58 of 61

			Pe	ge 6 of 8			
	Albity Name	Orlg Dur	Slari	Finish Ma	201 V Jun	retri tiet it 1700 eeu 1700 til 1800 in de de 1900 valde in 1900 til 1900 t	2018
III Elevation		831	24-Nov-17	22-Mar-18	, and the same	Jail Sep. Sep. Sep. Sep. Sep. Sep. Sep. Sep.	Mar Apr May Jun Jul
	Ад на висте раз II од ороје (4 прет на Georgia да С1 С100 грб срве виста на Срво прета у Силосија на	68	::29-Nov-17				
ON-2520	Frame Soffi - S Elev - L1		29-Nov-17	05-Dec-17		☐ Frame Soffit - 6 Elev - L	
ON-2540	Sheath Soffit - S Elev - L1		07-Dec-17	11-Dec-17		. ☐ Sheath Sofft - S Elev -	
ON-2530	Weether Barrier Soffit - S Elev - L1	2	12-Dec-17	13-Dec-17		■ Weather Barrier Soffil	
ON-2550 ON-2580	Z-Girls / Insulation Soffit - S Elev - L2 Metal Panels Soffit - S Elev - L2	7	2B-Dec-17	08-Jan-18	1		don Goffit - S Elev - L2
ON-2580	Metal Panels Som - S Elev - L4 Storefront System - S Elev - L1	15	09-Jan-18	29-Jan-18		Metal P	anels Soffit - S Elev - L2
	Storetron System - Siziev - L1	16	13-Feb-18 24-Nov-17	08-Mar-18			Storefront System - S Elev - L1
ON-2180	Frame Ext Well - 6 Elev - L2	65	24-Nov-17	28-Nov-17	1	_	
ON-2170	Sheathing - 9 Elev - 1.2	3	29-Nov-17	01-Dep-17	1	Frame Ext Well - S Elev - L	?
ON-2180	Weather Barrier - S Elev - L2	2	04-Dec-17	05-Dep-17	1	II Sheathing - S Elev - L2	
ON-2570	Steel Trefs - 8 Elay - L2	8	08-Dec-17	15-Dec-17	ŧ	Weather Barrier - S Elev	
ON-2590	Paint Treits - 8 Elev - L2	5	18-Dec-17	22-Dec-17	1	Steel Trets - S Elev -	
ON-2070	CW Framing - S Elev - L2	7	28-Dec-17	08-Jan-18		☐ Paint Tretts - S Elev	
ON-2080	CW Glazing & Sealant - S Elev - L2	6	09-Jan-18	16-Jan-18	ł.	CW Framing	
ON-2090	CW Pressure Plate - S Elev - L2	- 6	17-Jan-18	24-Jan-18			å Sealant - S Elev - L2
ON-2100	Screen System - 8 Elev - L2	13	25-Jan-18	12-Feb-18			ssure Plate - S Elev - L2
ON-2580	BA Fans - S Elev - L2	10	13-Feb-18	25-Feb-18			: BA Fans - S Elev - L2
icony	TELECENIA DE LA TRESE ESTADO EN ESTADO DE PERMISO DE LA PERMISO DE LA TRESE DELLA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DELLA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DELLA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DE LA TRESE DELLA TRESE DE	80	29-Nov-17	22-Mar-18			- CATBUS - 5 CMV - CZ
ON-2010	Frame - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fascia	5	29-Nov-17	05-Dec-17	1 1	DB Frame - S Elev - Balcony	i Somt/Easts
ON-2020	Sheath - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fascia	4	D8-Dep-17	11-Dec-17	1 [☐ Sheath - S Elev - Balcony	
ON-2030	Weather Barrier - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fascia	2	12-Dep-17	13-Dec-17	1 1		jav - Balcony Soffit / Fascia
ON-2040	Z-Girts / Insulation - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fescia	8	09-Jan-18	18-Jan-18	1		suistion - 6 Elev - Balcony Soffit / Faada
ON-2050	Metal Panels - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fascia	17	30-Jan-18	21-Feb-18	1 1		Metal Panels - S Elev - Balcony Soffit / Fasda
ON-2110	Waterproofing - S Elev - Bakony	10	13-Feb-18	26-Fab-18	1	(er)	Waterproofing - S Elev - Balcony
ON-2130	Flood Test - S Elev - Baltony	1 1	27-Feb-18	27-Feb-18	1 1		Flood Test - S Elev - Balcony
ON-2120	Pavers - S Elev - Balcony	10	28-Feb-18	13-Mar-18	1 1		Pavers - S Elev - Balcomy
ON-2140	Steel Guerdrall - S Elev - Balcony	5	14-Mar-18	20-Mar-18	1 1		Steel Guardraff - 8 Elay - Balcony
ON-2150	Paint Guardrail - S Elev - Bolcony	2	21-Mar-18	22-Mar-18	<u>.</u>		Paint Guardrall - S Elev - Balcony
st Edvation	en en en en en en en en en en en en en e	8	05-Dec-17	14-Dec-17			
ON-2310) Paint CMU - W Elev - L1	026 1811 4	05-Dec-17	08-Dep-17		☐ Paint CMU - W Elev - L	
ON-2290	Storefront Windows - W Elev - L1	7 1	11-Dec-17	14-Doc-17	I	☐ Paint CMU - W Elev - L	
ON-2300	Ext Doors & Hordware - W Elev - L1	3	11-Dec-17	13-Dec-17		D Ext Doors & Hardware	
:::1:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::		76	08-Dec-17	23-Mar-18		U EXCIDIOS & HARDWARE	2 ~ VV EI6V - L1
ON-2190	Frame Ext Wall - W Elay - L2	5	06-Dac-17	12-Dec-17	1 1	Frame Ext Wall - W E	Av. 13
ON-2200	Sheathing - W Elev - L2	7	13-Dec-17	21-Dec-17	1	Sheathing - W Elev	
ON-2210	Weather Barrier - W Elev - L2	4	22-Dep-17	28-Deo-17	1	☐ Weether Barrier	
ON-2250	CW Framing - W Elev - L2	2	09-Jan-18	10-Jan-18	1	CW Freming	
ON-2260	CW Glazing & Sealant - W Elev - L2	4	17-Jan-18	22-Jan-18	1		ing & Sealant - W Elev - L2
ON-2220	Z-Girts / Insulation - W Elev - L2	4	19-Jan-18	24-Jan-18	1		Insulation - W Elev - L2
ON-2270	CW Pressure Plate - W Elev - L2	3	23-Jan-18	25-Jan-18			ssure Plate - W Elev - L2
ON-2240	Storefront Windows - W Elev - L2	4 1	08-Feb-18	13-Feb-18			orefront Windows - W Elev - L2
ON-2230	Metal Penels - W Elev - L2	e :	22-Feb-18	06-Mar-18			Metal Panels - W Elev - L2
ON-2280	Screen System - W Elev - L2	13	07-Mar-18	23-Mat-18	<u> </u>		Screen System - W Elev - L2
In Elevation		104	15-NoV-17	RHEIZAMZHEHE	1		Same Section - 44 Clox - TX
Midda.		58	::15-Nov-17:	07-Feb-18	1		
ON-2460	Steel Entry Structure - N Elev - L1	5	15-Nov-17	21-Nov-17	1	☐ Steel Entry Structure - N Elev	(-L1
ON-2320	Freme Ext Wall Base for CW - N Elev - L1	3 .	13-Dec-17	15-Dec-17		■ Frame Ext Wall Base	
ON-2330	Sheathing Wall Base for CW - N Elev - L1	2	22-Dec-17	26-Dec-17			ase for CW - N Elev - L1
ON-2470	Frame Soffit - N Elev - L1	4	26-Dec-17	28-Dec-17	I i	☐ Freme Soffit - N	Elev - L1
ON-2340	Weather Barrier - N Elev - L1	2	27-Dao-17	28-Dec-17	1		N Elev - L1
ON-2480	Sheath Solfit - N Elev - L1	. 4	02-Jan-18	D5-Jan-18		☐ Sheath Soffit -	N Elev - L1
ON-2490	Weather Barrier Soffit - N Elev - L1	2	08-Jan-18	08-Jan-18	{	□ Weather Barr	er Soffit - N Elev - L1
ON-2500	Z-Girts / Insulation Soffil - N Elev - L2	3	25-Jan-18	29-Jan-18	1	□ Z-Girts	/ Insulation Soffit - N Elev - L2
ON-2510	Motal Panels Soffit - N Elev - L2	į 3	30-Jan-18	01-Feb-18	į l		Penels Soffit - N Elev - 1.2
ON-2450	Storefront Windows - N Elev - L1	4	02-Feb-18 18-Dec-17	07-Feb-18 20-Mar-18	l	Stor	efront Windows - N Elev - L1
	o planta il 1974 ggia grato potra il indigui gastori del publici esti il diglici citti dalla il 1900 lei lei l						

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 59 of 61

			Pag	ge 7 of 8	-
	Activity Name	Orig Dur	Start		2017
		1200			dul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jun Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul
CON-2350 CON-2360	Frame Ext Wail - N Elev - L2 Sheathing - N Elev - L2		18-Dec-17 26-Dec-17	22-Dec-17 04-Jan-18	Frame Ext Wall - N; Elav - L2
CON-2370	Weather Barrier - N Elev - L2		05-Jan-18	10-Jan-18	Sheathing - N Elev - L2
CON-2440	Storefront Windows - N Elev - L2	4	11-Jan-18	16-Jan-18	☐ Woother Serfler - N Elov - L2 ☐ Storefront Windows - N Elov - L2
CON-2420	Z-Girta / Insulation - N Elev - L2		30-Jan-18	02-Feb-18	L3 Storeiron(vvindows - N Elay - L2
CON-2430	Metal Penels - N Elev - L2		07-Mar-18	20-Mar-18	Z-Grist Ansulation - N Elev - L2
Curtain Wall		66	11-Jan-18	12-Apr-18	Memiranes - M Eby - CZ
CON-2380	CW Francing - N Elev - CW	e tara massalas e	11~Jan-18	19-Jan-18	E CW Framphg - N Elsov - CW
CON-2390	CW Glazing & Sealant - N Elev - CW		23-Jan-18	31-Jan-18	☐ CW Glazing & Sealant - N Elev - CW
CON-2400	CW Pressure Plate - N Elev - CW	6	01-Feb-18	08-Feb-18	☐ CW Pressure Plate - N Elev - CW
CON-2410	Screen System - N Elev - L2	14	26-Mar-16	12-Apr-18	Screen System - N Elev - L2
ist Elevation	den i paste palgadis de mandril promisco en fisione palgadis estilibratificación en municipalmente.		26-Dac-17.		
<u> </u>	<u> 19-11-19-19-20-19-19-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-20-</u>		28-Dec-17	19-Feb-18	
CON-2620	Frame Ext Wall Base for Store front - E Elev - L1		26-Dao-17 05-Jan-18	28-Dec-17 08-Jan-18	☐ Frame Ext Wall Base for Storefront - E Elsy - L1
CON-2630 CON-2640	Sheathing Wall Base for Storefront - E Elev - L1 Washer Barrier - E Elev - L1	2	05-Jan-18 09-Jan-18	10-Jan-18	■ Sheathing Wat Base for Storetron - E Elev - L1 ☐ Weather Barder - E Elev - L1
CON-2650	Storefront Windows - E Elev - L1	14	14-Feb-18	19-Feb-18	© Storefront Windows - E Elev - L1
2	Landanni August - C Co. C.		29-Dec-17	18-Apr-18	Ci Stotentour Ashidows - F FloA - [1]
CON-2680	Frame Ext Wall - E Elev - L2	5	29-Dec-17	05-Jan-18	☐ Frame Ext Well - E Elev - L2
CON-2670	Sheathing - E Elev - L2	3	09-Jan-18	11-Jan-18	Sheething - E Elev - L2
CON-2800	Steel Stairs - E Elev - L2	5	12-Jan-18	18-Jan-18	Steel Stairs - E Flev - L2
CON-2680	Weather Barrier - E Elev - L2	2	19-Jan-18	22-Jan-18	■ Weather Barrier - E Elev - L2
CON-2610	Precast Stair Treads - E Elev - L2	2	19-Jan-18	22-Jan-18	Precest Steir Treads - E Elev - 1.2
CON-2690	Z-Girts / Insulation - E Eley - L2	5	05-Feb-18	09-Feb-18	☐ Z-Girts / Insulation - E Elev - L2
CON-2700	Storefront Windows - E Elev - L2	4	20-Feb-18	23-Feb-18	Storefront Windows - E Elev - L2
CON-2710	Metal Panels - E Elev - L2		21-Mar-18	11-Apr-18	Matal Panels - E Elev - L2
CON-2720	Steel Guardrall - E Eley - L2	3	12-Apr-18	16-Apr-18	☐ Steel Guardrafi - E Ekey - L2
CON-2730	Paint Guardrail - E Elay - L2 pulse annual des response authorise de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la companya de la companya del companya de la companya de la companya de la companya de la companya del company	1100000000	17-Apr-18	18-Apr-18	☐ Paint Guardrail - E Elev - L2
	KATRING NEDURADA PROTEKTI KATRIKA KATA DELEGIKA NAHARI DUTAN ZA DULUM PERDADA HADI ALIKUKARAN DELAGUA PENTA P				
augh-in (1997)		44	24-Nov-17	1 26-Jun-18:1	
			24 Nov. 17	43 len 40	
Level 1	e lande de certa de esta potata di sectori i de dicenzal i la interprita dell'interdisposite della de	34	24-Nov-17-	1000.000.000.000.000.000.000.000.000.00	TTT E & Tan David Dalam Jan. 14
CON-2740	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walse - L1	34 10	24-Nov-17	07-Dec-17	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walks - L1
Level 1 CON-2740 CON-2790	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walls—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1	10 15	ومصومون وروي الجمومات كنساء	1000.000.000.000.000.000.000.000.000.00	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
evel 1: CON-2740 CON-2780 CON-2750	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals— L1 Stydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HVAC Main Rough-In - L1	34 10	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 29-Dec-17	Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1
CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2750 CON-2770	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walls—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1	10 15 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 29-Dec-17 26-Dec-17	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2750 CON-2770 CON-2800	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals – L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1	10 15 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 29-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17	☐☐☐☐ Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 ☐☐☐ HVAC Main Rough-In - L1 ☐☐☐ Electrical OH Rough-In - L1
CON-2740 CON-2780 CON-2750 CON-2770 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2820	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walb — L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 HVAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1	34 10 15 12 12 12 6 3	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 29-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HVAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Fough-in - L1
CON-2740 CON-2780 CON-2750 CON-2770 CON-2800 CON-2780 CON-2820 CON-2820 CON-2810	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Parkillons - L1 Fris Protection OH Rough-In - L1 Fris Protection OH Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wal Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wal Rough-In - L1	34 10 15 12 12 6 3 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 29-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-18 04-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior OH Rough-in - L1 His Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
evel 1	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walbs – L1 Shydronic Ord Rough-In – L1 HVAC Main Rough-In – L1 Electrical Ord Rough-In – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Frame Protection Ord Rough-In – L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In – L1 Plumbling Wall Rough-In – L1 HM Door Frames – L1 HM Door Frames – L1	10 15 12 12 12 6 3 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 25-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-18 04-Jan-18 28-Dec-17	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
evel 1:	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic Crit Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Crit Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardfots - L1 Frame Hardfots - L1	10 15 12 12 12 6 3 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 25-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-18 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic Main Sough-in - L1 Hydronic Main Sough-in - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 Frame Hardids - L1
evel 1:	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardfüs - L1 HVAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HVAC Branch Rough-In - L1	34 / 10 16 15 12 12 6 3 12 12 12 8 8 5 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec17 28-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 12-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
evel 1: CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2780 CON-2820 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2770 CON-2780	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walbs – L1 Shydronic Orl Rough-In – L5 HVAC Main Rough-In – L1 Electrical Orl Rough-In – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Frame Interior Partitions – L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In – L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In – L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In – L1 HM Door Frames – L1 Frame Harddds – L1 HVAC Branch Rough-In – L1	34 10 10 15 12 12 6 3 12 12 12 8 8 15 12 12 134 15 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 08-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 26-Dec17 15-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-16 28-Dec17 22-Dec17 12-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fine Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hybriding Wall Rough-in - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 HYAC Brench Rough-in - L1
evel 1: CON-2740 CON-27790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2890 CON-2890 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2970 CON-2970 CON-2780 CON-2780 CON-2780 CON-2850	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HVAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions—L1 Frame Interior Partitions—L1 Frame Protection OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames—L1 Frame Hardids—L1 HVAC Brench Rough-In - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—12	34 10 10 15 12 12 6 3 12 12 12 8 8 3 5 12 12 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 28-Dec17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-18 04-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
_evel 1:	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic Crit Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Crit Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardidis - L1 HVAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L2	34 10 15 12 12 6 3 12 12 8 3 5 12 13 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 08-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-16 28-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 12-Ze-Jan-18 1-Ze-Jan-18 1-Ze-Jan-18 1-Ze-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 Frame Rough-in - L1 Frame Rough-in - L1
_evel 1:	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Free Protection OH Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames—L1 Frame Hardids - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L2 HYAK Main Rough-In - L2	34 10 10 15 12 12 6 3 12 12 8 8 15 12 10 15 15 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 D4-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 1-26-Jan-18 21-Dec-17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Walls - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2
evel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2800	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 HYAC Brench Rough-In - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L2 HYAC Main Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2	34 / 10 16 12 12 12 12 12 13 15 15 12 12 15 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 19-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 12-Jun-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jun-18 21-Dec-17 15-Jun-18 10-Jun-18 10-Jun-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
wel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAG Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Plumbing Walf Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardidis - L1 HVAG Branch Rough-In - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2	34 10 15 12 12 12 12 10 15 10 15 12 12 10 15 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 D4-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 1-26-Jan-18 21-Dec-17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Harddids - L Frame Harddids - L Frame Rough-in - L1 Frame Rough-in - L1 Frame Rough-in - L1 Frame Rough-in - L2 HYAC Main Rough-in - L2 HYAC Main Rough-in - L2 Frame Electrical OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2
avel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 HYAC Brench Rough-In - L1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L2 HYAC Main Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2	34 10 15 12 12 12 12 10 15 10 15 12 12 10 15 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-16 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 1-28-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
Avel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walbs—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical OH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - L1 HM Door Frames - L1 Frame Harddds - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-In - L2 Electrical OH Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2	34 10 15 12 12 12 15 15 15 12 15 12 15 15	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 18-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 27-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec-17 26-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 04-Jan-16 04-Jan-16 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 12-Dec-17 13-Jan-18 14-Jan-18 18-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior OH Rough-in - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Hardids - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Walls - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Electrical OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2
awel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2910 CON-2910 CON-2910 CON-2950	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walbs—L1 Hydronic Of Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Orl Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L1 HWD Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardidis - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2 Frame interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2	34 10 16 12 12 12 12 13 15 12 15 12 15 12 15 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 1	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dac-17 26-Dac-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dac-17 12-Dac-17 D4-Jan-16 D4-Jan-16 28-Doc-17 22-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 26-Dac-18 26-Dac-18 12-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Hardids - L Frame Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Electrical OH Rough-in - L2 Electrical
	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Wal Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L2 Electrical CH Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical CH Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2	34 10 10 10 12 12 12 12 13 15 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-17 27-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 22-Dsc-17 22-Dsc-17 22-Dsc-17 22-Dsc-17 22-Dsc-17 33-Jsn-18 33-Jsn-18	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 28-Dec17 12-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 13-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
wel 1: CON-2740 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2850	Frame & Top Rock Priority Walbs—L1 Hydronic Of Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Orl Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L1 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L1 HWD Door Frames - L1 Frame Hardidis - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2 Frame interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Plumbing Wals Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2	34 10 10 10 12 12 12 12 13 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 26-Dec17 15-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec17 12-Dec17 12-Dec17 12-Dec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec18 10-Jec17 15-Jec18 10-Jec18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L1 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 Frame Hardids - L Frame Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Electrical OH Rough-in - L2 Electrical
wel 1: 1 CON-2740 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2750 CON-2850 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2850	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Electrical CH Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Wal Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic CH Rough-In - L2 Electrical CH Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical CH Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Flumbing Wal Rough-In - L2	34 10 10 15 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	24-Nov-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 08-Desc-17 18-Desc-18 1	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 26-Dec17 25-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Fire Protection OH Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Bough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Bough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Bough-in - L1 Electrical Wall Bough-in - L1 HWAD Brench Rough-in - L1 Frame Harddis - L1 Frame A Top Root Priority Walls - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wall Rough-in - L2
CON-2760 CON-2780 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Shytronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Orl Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Mark Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic Orl Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Fire Protection Orl Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Firame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L2	34 10 112 12 12 12 12 12 1	24-Nov-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-18 18-Dsc	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 28-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 22-Dec17 22-Dec17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec17 22-Jan-18 28-Dec17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 13-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18 28-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1
Level 1: CON-2740 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2820 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2850 CON-2850 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2860 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2870 CON-2880 CON-2880 CON-2880 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2810 CON-2820 CON-2820 CON-2820 CON-2830 CON-2830 CON-2830	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—1.1 Hydronic CH Rough-In - 1.1 HYAC Main Rough-In - 1.1 Electrical OH Rough-In - 1.1 Frame Interior Partitions - 1.1 Frame Protection OH Rough-In - 1.1 Electrical Wall Rough-In - 1.1 Plumbing Wall Rough-In - 1.1 HM Door Frames - 1.1 Frame Hardids - 1.1 HTM Door Frames - 1.1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Wals - 1.2 HYAC Branch Rough-In - 1.1 Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals - 1.2 HYAC Main Rough-In - 1.2 Electrical OH Rough-In - 1.2 Electrical OH Rough-In - 1.2 Frame Interior Partitions - 1.2 Frame Interior Partitions - 1.2 Frame Interior Partitions - 1.2 Frame Interior Partition - 1.2 Frame Interior Partition - 1.2 Frame Hardids - 1.2 HM Door Frames - 1.2 HM Door Frames - 1.2 Frame Hardids - 1.2 HMAC Branch Rough-In	100 16 12 12 12 12 12 12 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	24-Nov-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 08-Dec-17 18-Dec-18 18-Dec	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 26-Dec17 25-Dec17 15-Dec17 12-Dec17 12-Dec17 22-Dec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 12-Jec17 13-Jec18 12-Jec17 15-Jec18 10-Jec18 11-Jec18 12-Jec18 12-Jec18 12-Jec18 13-Jec18 14-Feb18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1 HYAC Main Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L1 HWAC Branch Rough-in - L1 Frame Harddos - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Whits - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Hydronic OH Rough-in - L2 Electrical OH Rough-in - L2 Frame Harddos Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Electrical Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Frame Harddos - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2 Hydronic Wal Rough-in - L2
CON-2760 CON-2780 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2790 CON-2800 CON-2800 CON-2810 CON	Frame & Top Rock Priority Wals—L1 Shytronic CH Rough-In - L1 HYAC Main Rough-In - L1 Electrical Orl Rough-In - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Interior Partitions - L1 Frame Mark Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L1 Frame A Top Rock Priority Wals - L2 Hydronic Orl Rough-In - L2 Electrical Wals Rough-In - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Frame Interior Partitions - L2 Fire Protection Orl Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Furnbing Wal Rough-In - L2 Firame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 Frame Harddis - L2 HYAC Branch Rough-In - L2	34 10 112 12 12 12 12 12 1	24-Nov-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 08-Dsc-17 18-Dsc-18 18-Dsc	07-Dec17 29-Dec17 29-Dec17 26-Dec17 26-Dec17 25-Dec-17 15-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 12-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 22-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 28-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 26-Dec-17 12-Jan-18 26-Dec-17 15-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 10-Jan-18 12-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 18-Jan-18 09-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18 29-Jan-18	Hydronic OH Rough-in - L1

Exhibit C to
Contract No.
2017-060COS
Page 60 of 61

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			0 -40		
Ictivity ID	Activity Name	Orig :	Pa Bar Slait Bar	ge 8 of 8 Sector Finish teads	50	2017
		Orig Dur			Aay Jun	. Jul Aug Sep. Oct Nov. Dec Jun Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Au
CON-3100 In	ntarior Storefront - L1	5	22-Feb-18	28-Feb-18		interior Storefront - L1
	Tape & Finish Hardids - L1	5	05-Mar-18	09-Mar-18		☐ Tape & Finish Hardtds - L1
h	Prime & Paint - L1	7	12-Mar-18	20-Mar-18		É Prime & Paint ~ L1
	Websi Panal Column Wrap - L1	5	21-Mar-18			☐ Metal Panal Column Wrap - L1
	Deling Grid - L1	4	21-Mar-18	25-Mar-18		☐ Celling Grid - L1
	Electrical Fotures - L1	6 :	27-Mar-18 27-Mar-18	11-Apr-18 03-Apr-18	1	Electrical Fixtures – L1 ☐ GRD'a – L1
	Sare Cabinets - Li	4	27-Mer-16	30-Mar-18		☐ GMD's-U
	Fire Sprinkler Trim - L1	4	27-Mar-18	30-Mar-18	1	D Fire Sprinkler Trim - L1
	Porcelain Floor Tile - L1	18	02-Apr-18	25-Apr-18		Porcelain Floor Tile - Li
CON-3050 P	Plumbing Fixtures - L1	4	02-Apr-18	05-Apr-18	i	Q Plumbing Fixtures - L1
	Doors & Hardware - L1	7 ;	26-Apr-18	04-May-18	1	Doors & Hardware - L1
	TAB L1 - ABC Bldg	7 [07-May-18	15-May-18		TAB L1 - ABC Bldg
	Final Paint - L1	. 5	07-May-18			☐ Final Paint - L1
	Construction Clean - L1	5	07-May-18	11-May-18	1	☐ Construction Clean - L1
	ÆD Pre Punch - L1	5	14-May-18 21-May-18			☐ JED Pre Punch - L1
CON-3200 O	Owner Punch - L1	104	21-May-18 23-Jan-18	25-May-18 18-Am-18		☐ Owner Punch - L1
	<u>a de la compansa dan adela di adela de adri, mandre ad la dela dela dela dela dela dela de</u>	2	23-Jan-18	24-Jan-18		I Set Elect Gear - L2
	Pul & Term Elect Feeders - L2	10	25-Jan-18	07-Feb-18		Pull & Term Elect Feeders - 12
	Startup Elect Gear - L2	5	08-Feb-18	14-Feb-18		91artup Elect Gear - L2
CON-2940 H	Hang Drywall - L2	17	15-Feb-18	09-Mer-18	1	Hang Drywell - LZ
	Tape & Finish Drywall - L2	12	12-Mar-18	27-Msr-18		Tape & Finish Drywell - L2
	Hang Hardiids - L2	3	12-Mar-18	14-Mer-18		0 Heng Hardfids - L2
	interior Storefront - L2	5	15-Mar-18			☐ Interior Storefront - L2
(1) in a proper proper proper production (asset)	Tape & Finish Hardids - L2	5	28-Mar-18			Tape & Finish Hardles - L2
	Prime & Paint - L2	7	04-Apr-18 13-Apr-18			Prime & Paint - L2
	Metal Panel Column Wrap - L2 Celling Grid - L2	4	13-Apr-18	18-Apr-18		☐ Metal Panel Column Wrap - L2 Model Panel Column Wrap - L2
	Ceurg Grito - L2 Interior Calling Panels - L2	20	19-Apr-18	16-May-18		Bit Celling Grid - LZ
	Electrical Fixtures - L2	12	19-Apr-18		1	Em Electrical Flatures - L2
	EMONITORI I INVII DE 1 EM. GRO'S - L2	6	19-Apr-18	26-Apr-18	[GRD's - L2
	Base Cabinets - L2	4		24-Apr-18	i	Base Cabinets - L2
CON-3300 F	Fire Sprinkler Trim - L2	4	19-Apr-18	24-Apr-18	1	☐ Fite Sprinkler Trim - L2
CON-3310 P	Porcelain Floor Tile - L2	20		22-May-18	1	. Porcelain Floor Tile - に
	Plumbing Fixtures - L2	4	25-Apr-18	30-Apr-18	1	C] Plumbing Fixtures - L2
	Carpet Tile - L2	2	27-Apr-18	30-Apr-18		C Carpet Tile - L2
	Polshed Concrete - L2	4	07-Мву-18	10-May-18		Polished Concrete - L2
	Kächen Equipment - L2 Doors & Hardware - L2	10 3	11-Mey-18 23-May-18		- 1	Kitchen Equipment - L2
	Doors & hardware - LC TAB L2 - ABC Bbσ	7	29-May-18		1	■ Doors & Hardware - Li TAB L2 - ABC 8Hag
	Final Paint - L2	5	29-May-18			IM Final Paint - L2
	Construction Clean - L2	5	29-Mey-18			Construction Clean
	ED Pre Punch - L2	6	05-Jun-18	11-Jun-18		■ JED Pre Punch-
CON-3370 C	Owner Punch - L2	5	12-Jun-18	18-Jun-18		M Owner Punch -
		HILLIN				
Service encountries of the service of the	CIP Planters & Benches - ABC Building	7 ;	22-Nov-17	01-Dec-17		CIP Planters & Senches - ABC Building
	Plaza Paving - ABC Bidg		13-Apr-18			Plaza Paving - ABC Bitig
CON-1480 P				07-May-18		□ Landscaping - ABC Bldg
CON-1480 P CON-1580 L	Landscaping - ABC Bldg Soiar Shadas - ABC Bldg		27-Apr-18 27-Apr-18			☐ Solar Shades - ABC Bldg

Exhibit C to Contract No. 2017-060-COS Page 61 of 61

EXHIBIT D STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 6, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES (Penalty of this bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS	S:
with its principal of the Surety), as Surety, are held and firmly	(hereinafter called the Principal) as Principal, and corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of ffice in the City of, (hereinafter called bound unto the City of Scottsdale, County of Maricopa, State of), for the payment or bind themselves, and their heirs, administrators, executors cally, firmly by these presents.
	o a certain written contract with the City of Scottsdale, dated the or Bid No. (bid number), Project No. AB59, (TERMINAL AREA hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the
fulfills all of the undertakings, covenant original term of the contract and any ext during the life of any guaranty required undertakings, covenants, terms, condition	s obligation is such, that if the Principal faithfully performs and s, terms, conditions and Contracts of the contract during the ension of the contract, with or without notice to the surety, and under the contract, and also performs and fulfills all of the ons and Contracts of all duly authorized modifications of the ce of which modifications to the surety being hereby waived, the mains in full force and effect.
Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liability provisions of Title 34, Chapter 6, Arizona this Contract. The prevailing party in a supertorney fees that may be fixed by a Jud the construction to be performed under the construction of the performed under the construction of the performed under the construction of the performed under the performed under the performed under the performed under the performed under the performed under the performed under the performed under the performance of the performance o	is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 6, ties on this Bond shall be determined in accordance with the Revised Statutes, to the extent as if it were copied at length in uit on this bond shall recover as part of the judgment reasonable ge of the Court. The performance under this bond is limited to er the contract and does not include any design services, ces, maintenance services, operations services or any other
WITNESS our hands the day of _	, 2017.
PRINCIPAL	-
BY:	_
SURETY (SEAL)	_ ·
AGENCY OF RECORD	
AGENCY ADDRESS	_

PROJECT NAME - TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT

EXHIBIT E STATUTORY PAYMENT BOND

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 6, OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES (Penalty of this bond must be 100% of the Contract Amount)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE	: PRESENTS:						
That,, with its Surety), as Surety, are held a in the amount of said Principal and Surety bin jointly and severally, firmly by	a corpora s principal office in and firmly bound unt and themselves, and the	einafter called tion organized a the City of to the City of Sco_ Dollars (\$ heir heirs, admin	and existi	ounty of Ma	he laws _ (herein aricopa, S	of the St after calle State of Ar	ate o
WHEREAS, the Principal has day of	, 2017, for Bid No contract is hereby	No. (bid number	r), Projec	t No. AB	59, (TE	RMINAL .	ARE/
NOW, THEREFORE, the cor all persons supplying labor of the work provided for in the co	or materials to the P	rincipal or the Pi	rincipal's	subcontract	ors in the	e prosecut	
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the Arizona Revised Statutes, ar conditions and limitations of copied at length in this Contra	nd all liabilities on thi Title 34, Chapter 6,	s bond shall be	determine	d in accord	ance with	the provi	isions
The prevailing party in a suit may be fixed by a Judge of the		ecover as a part	of the jud	gment reas	onable at	torney fee	s tha
WITNESS our hands the	day of		2017.				
PRINCIPAL							
BY:							
SURETY (SEAL)							
AGENCY OF RECORD							
AGENCY ADDRESS							

15531112v1

PROJECT NAME -- TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT

PROJECT NO: AB59

Page 1 of 1

AFFIDAVIT REGARDING SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS

CONTRACT NUMBER:	PROJECT NUMBER: AB59
PROJECT NAME: AIRPORT TE	RMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT
To the City of Scottsdale, Arizon	a
	claims for materials, rental of equipment and labor used in of the above project, whether by subcontractor or claimant in jed.
estimate of \$	consideration of \$
Signed and dated this c	day of 2017.
CONTRACTOR	
BY:	
STATE OF ARIZONA)
COUNTY OF MARICOPA) ss)
The foregoing instrument was su 2017.	bscribed and sworn to before me this day of,
NOTARY PUBLIC	My Commission Expires

CONTRACTOR'S NOTICE OF FINAL PAY ESTIMATE

CONTRACT NUMBER:	PROJECT NUMBER: AB59
PROJECT NAME: TERMINAL AREA REDEVE	LOPMENT
To the City of Scottsdale	
This notice confirms acceptance by Contracto \$ which represents the balanc payment for all retentions held and adjusted fina	or of final contract payment in the amount of se due for subject project. This amount includes if quantities.
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT, including final p	pay estimate: \$
Signed and dated this day of	2017.
BY:	
Title:	
For:	
STATE OF ARIZONA)) ss	
COUNTY OF MARICOPA)	
The foregoing instrument was subscribed and sv 2017.	worn to before me this day of,
NOTARY PUBLIC	My Commission Expires

CONTRACTOR'S NOTICE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE

PROJECT NAME: TERMINAL AREA REDEVELOPMENT

CONTRACTOR NAME: (Contractor)

FINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT:

Construction on the above project was completed on _____ and on ____ a final inspection was made of the subject improvements by this office. The work substantially conforms to the approved plans and specifications. We, therefore, accept those portions within the public right-of-way into our system for maintenance.

Approved By:

Construction Administrator

Construction Admin Supervisor

CC:

City Clerk

Accounting Director Risk Management Director

Tax Audit Manager

